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Narrative

Purpose: The purpose of this contract is to provide for the routine maintenance and the emergency
repair of Nassau County traffic signals and miscellaneous electrical traffic devices that fall under the

Jurisdiction of the Nassau County Department of Public Works.

Discussion: The Ndssau County Department of Public Works is responsible for the maintenance of over
1850 traffic signals and other miscellaneous electrical traffic devices. The purpose of this contract is
to provide the Departmen't' with a means to ensure that these traffic signals and devices are routinely
maintained and re¢paired in the event of an emergency, by licensed electricians.

This contract will ijl'epla(:e existing contract T6225002M which expires on December 31, 2016. The bid
was analyzed and i;fou,nd to be acceptable.

lmpact on Funding: | This contract is funded from the DPW operating budget and Capital budget 62017,
The total cost of the 2 year contract is approximately $7,000,000.00. Therefore, this contract will
result in an annual expenditure of approximately $2,800,000 per year from operating and
$1,400,000,00 from the Capital budget. Theé contract is scheduled to begin on January 1, 2017,
Funding has been requested in the 2017 budget.
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Recommendation: Given the potential safety concerns of not maintaining these traffic signals and 53
miscellaneous devices, the Department recommends that this contract be awarded to Welsbach -, e
Electric Corp., L,1; /y /7 Qf, N
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RULES RESOLUTION NO. -2016

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND

EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.I.

WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of
Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract T62250-03M, NASSAU
COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATION, [“Contract”], as
more particularly described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with
the Clerk of the Legislature; and

WHEREAS, the Department is representing to the Rules Committec that the term
of this contract is two (2) years and that the estimated expenditures under this contract is
seven million dollars ($7,000,000); and

WHEREAS, the firm of WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.I.

[“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible bid for the work described in

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the

Department, and
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i’ . .
WHEREAS_',:‘ the funding for this contract is from operational funds approved by

H

the Nassau County IJ%)gislature, and
RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, based

on the representati(%hs of the Department and the recommendation of the Commissioner

of the Department,}éuthorizes the County Executive to award and execute the said

contract with the v'er}dor.
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"":n Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Welsbach Electric Corp., L.I.

2, Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: §  7,000,000.00

Amount to be encumbered: $ 4,000,000.00 ;@ /b /

Thisisa v New Contract Advisement Amendment
If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement — NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
Ifamendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 2 years

Has work or services on this contract commenced? Yes v No
If yes, please explain:
4. Funding Source:
_'_/__ General Fund (GEN}) __ Grant Fund (GRT)
_v  Capital Improvement Fund {(CAP) Federal %
___ Other State %
County %
Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract? Yes / No
If not, will it require a future borrowing? < Yes No
Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? / Yes No N/A
Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? Yes / No N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to ;5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is reguested:

Traffic signal maintenance contract to quickly repair, make smergency repairs, modify, and/or inspect
County-owned 1600 plus traffic signals according to Federal regulations and for safety. Timely repairs
are critical fo the traffic signal system,

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Yes No N/A
Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature Yes No N/A

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. ldentify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months;

@Ceads Q# SOK







AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approval
Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true and
accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan, I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official
deliberations.

/C@Q%WL MM}% /QQ/QI// L

Signature Title Dat

Print Name

COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.
Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County’s own routing slip, current
NIFS printouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature
communication documents and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the
item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being
subimitted to NIFA for review,

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.






George Maragos
Comptroller

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
240 0ld Country Road
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Attach this form along with all personal, professional or human services coniracts, contract renewals, extensions
and amendments.

CONTRACTOR NAME: Welsbach Electric Corp., L.I.

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS: __ 300 Newtown Road, Plainview, NY 11803

FEDERAL TAX ID #: 11-2354251

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (“i”) after one of the following
roman numerals, and provide all the requested information.

1. 4 The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement

for sealed bids. The contract was awarded after a request for sealed bids was published
in Newsday on 6/15/2016 . The sealed bids were publicly opened on
7/19/2016. __1_of 1 sealed bids were received and opened.

I1. 0 The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals.
The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on
[date]. Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by

advertisement in [newspaper], posting on industry websites, via
email to interested parties and by publication on the County procurement website. Proposals were due
on [date]. [state #] proposals were received and evaluated. The

evaluation committee consisted of

(list # of persons on
committee and their respective departments). The proposals were scored and ranked. As a result of the
scoring and ranking, the highest-ranking proposer was selected.






II1. O This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract.

The contract was originally executed by Nassau County on [date]. Thisis a
renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or RFP
(copics of the relevant pages are attached). The original contract was entered into
after

[describe
procurement method, i.e., RFP, three proposals evaluated, etc.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation
of the contractor’s performance for any contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not
received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be
permitted to continue to contract with the county.

IV. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three
proposals were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the
department head describes the proposals received, along with the cost of each
proposal.

L1 A. The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR:

L B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s)why the
contract was awarded to other than the lowest-cost proposer. The attachment includes a specific
delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed
superior, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other
proposers.

V. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not
obtain at least three proposals.

[J A. There are only one or two providers of the services sought or less than three providers
submitted proposals. The memorandum describes how the contractor was determined to be the
sole source provider of the personal service needed or explains why only two proposals could be
obtained. If two proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was
awarded to the lowest cost proposer, or why the selected proposer offered the higher quality
proposal, the proposer’s unique and special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to
perform in the most immediate and timely manner.

[0 B. The memorandum explains that the contractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a
federal or New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. {Copies of the relevant
documents are attached).

L1 C. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
required through a New York State Office of General Services contract
1n0. » and the attached memorandum explains how the purchase is
within the scope of the terms of that contract.







[? D. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 119-o, the department is purchasing the services
required through an inter-municipal agreement.

VI. O This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a

competitive process has not been initiated, Attached is a memorandum that explains the reasons
for entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department
intends to initiate a competitive process for the future award of these services, For any such contract, where
the vendor has previously provided services to the county, atfach a copy of the most recent evaluation of
the vendor’s performance. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must
explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county.

In certain limited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance
evaluations may not be possible because of the nature of the human services program, or because of a
compelling need to continue services through the same provider. In those circumstances, attach an
explanation of why a competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicable.

VIL O This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering
or surveying services. The attached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance
with Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No. 928 of 1993, including its receipt and evaluation of annual
Statements of Qualifications & Performance Data, and its negotiations with the most highly qualified
firms.

Instructions with respect te Sections VIII, IX and X: All Departments must check the box for VIIL
Then, check the box for cither IX or X, as applicable.

VIIL ChParticipation of Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County
Contracts. The selected contractor has agreed that it has an obligation to utilize best efforts to hire
MWBE sub-contractors. Proof of the contractual utilization of best efforts as outlined in Exhibit “EE”

may be requested at any time, from time to time, by the Comptroller’s Office prior to the approval of
claim vouchers.

IX. epartment MWBE responsibilities. To ensure compliance with MWBE requirements
as éftlined in Exhibit “EE”, Department will require vendor to submit list of sub-contractor
requirements prior to submission of the first claim voucher, for services under this contract being
submitted to the Comptroller. '

X. LI Vendor will not require any sub-contractors.

In additipn, if this is u contract with an individual or with an entity that has only one or two employees: O a review of the
criferia set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1 C.B. 296, attached as Appendix A to the
Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004, concerning independent contractors and employees indicates that the
contractor would not be considered an employee for federal tax purposes,

Départmen“fHFﬁd Signature

(7707

Date { 7 °

NOTL: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be included in the county’s “staff summary” form
in lien of a separate memorandum.
Compt. form Pers./Prof. Services Contracts: Rev. 03/16 3
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April I, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two
years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the
campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County
Exccutive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?
If yes, to what campaign committee?

NONE

2, YERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or
Vendor authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees
identified above were made fieelv and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental
- benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration.

Vendor: Welsbach Electric Corp. of LI, .
, Dated:  September 6, 2016 Signed: Mw

Print Name: loseph P. Florio

Title: President / C.E.O.

Rev. 3-2016
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term
“lobbyist” means any and every person or organization retained, employed ot designated by any
olieit to influence - or promote a mattet befors - Nassau County, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads, legislators or cormnmittees, including but not limited to the Open
Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are
not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to
County regulation, procurements. The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, direstor,
trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when
discharging his or her official duties.

?*(D,JG'

2. List whether and where the person/ ﬂfgamzation is 1'egistéred as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau
County, New York State):

No NE
3. Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or o1 whose behalf, the

Jobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

Nolg

55 of 315 Contrast No. T62250-03M
NC Traflic Signal Malntenance Specification

B N






P e 2 b = 1 e e ety

4. Describe lobbyin

g activity conduected, or 1o be conducted, in Nassau County,
client(s) for each activit

and identify
y listed, Seepage4 for a complete description of lobbyin

g aclivities,

i\(mfé

5. The nams of persons,
expects to lobby:

P(or(é

organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist

86 of 215 Contract No. T62250-03M

NG Traffie Slgnat Maintenance Specifcation






6. 1f such lobbyist is retaived or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or

empioyrnent:you-m1.1st~at-taehJa-eopy—of—su_ch. document;.and if agreement of retainer or

1!
;

employment is orel, attach a written. statement of the substance thereof. If the written agreement
of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the client by whom you
have been authorized to lobby, separately attach such a written authorization from the client,

1. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corpotate officers provided campaign
contributions pursuant to the New York State Flection Law in (a) the petiod beginning April 1,
2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning Aptil 1, 2018, the period
beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure,
to'the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the -
campaign committees of any candidates forany of the following Nassau County elected offices:
the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County
Legislator? If yes, to what campaign committee?

i\( oNe

| understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of
Information Tectnology (“IT”) to be posted on the County’s website,

I also mnderstand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must
give written notice to the County Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood
the foregoing statements and they are, 1o his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersiened further certifies and affirms fhat the contribution(s) to the campaign committess
listed above were made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental

benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration,
r
%pm -

Dated: Eu\t’;ﬁ, 201E Signed: .
Print Name; (\Jo%‘f’ H 7. flotio
Title: 4 MES m:pi-r! teo.
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence

: any determination made by the

Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including

by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals,
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitati

ot soljcitation, award or
on, award or administration of a grant,

loan, or agreement ivolving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Bxecutive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nasgau, its agencies, boards,
cotnmissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committes, the Planning Comumdssion, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real propesty subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
slected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the

acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in, v

cal property, with respect to a license

or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the Proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of

any rule having the foree and sffect of law; the decision to

hold, timing or outcome of any rate

making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature ovetsight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; orany
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rale or regulation, including any determination
made to support ot oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such Ie gislation has been formally introduced and whethet or not such

rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or “lobbying acitvities” does not

legislation, rules, regulations or rates; persons advising cli

inclnde: Persons engaged in drafting
ents and rendering opinions on

proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates, where such professional services are not
otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or administrative

action on such rules, regulations or rates: newspapers and

other periodicals and radio and

television stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection
with proposed legistation, rules, tegulations or rates are Hmited to the publication or broadcast of
news items, editorials or other cominent, or paid advertisements; persons who participate as

witnesses, attorneys or other representatives in public rule

-making or rate-making proceedings of

a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public
record thereof and &ll preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attetnpt to

influence g Counly agency in an adjudicatory proceeding,
State Administrative Procedure Act

v
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in Ink. If you need mora space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them ta the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR

AWARD
lo%?H 7. ﬁ'brb\-o

1,  Principal Name
Date of birth
Home address

Clty/state/zip

Business address 3000 Hevtovy Lo
City/state/zip “Purbived , yy 11802
Telephone (511 49‘{-00!?,5
Other present address(es) -
City/state/zlp -
Telephone -

List of cther addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submiiting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President 02 | |5 jAo02 Treasurer ___ /1
Chairman of Board / / Sharehclder / /
Chlef Exec. Officer 02 j 15 j2#*Secretary [/
Chief Finansial Ofticer _|[_/ 05 /1% Partnor __/____/
Vice President 0% /01 /1992 [ 1
{Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questlonnaire?
YES ___ NC X [§ Yes, provide details.

;L. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of securily or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submiiting the questionnaire? YES __ NO X _ Y Yes, provide detalls.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the cne submitiing the questionnaire? YES __ NO X
If Yes, provide details.
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6. Has any governmental etity awarded any contracts to 3 business Or organization listed in

Section 5 in the past 3 years while you wers a principal owner or officer? YES ___ NO A
If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answar is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency,

Provide a detalled response o all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it fo the questionnaire,

7. Inthe past (5) years, havs you andfor any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit

organizations listed In Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or offlcer:

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?

YES NO _X . IfYes, provide details for each such instance.

Been daclared in dsfault and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any

contracts cancelled for cause? 'YES NO X If Yes, provide detals for each
such instance.

Been denied the award of g confract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited to, failure to meet pre-quallfication standards? YES
NO i Yes, provide dstails for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it:
and/or is any action pending that could farmally debar or otherwise affect such
business's ability to bid or bropose oncontract? YES ___ NO X If Yes, provide
details for each such instance,

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptey petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptey procesdings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, bean in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptey procesdings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is
any such business now the subjact of any panding bankruptcy proceedings, whenaver
initiated? If ‘Yes', provide details far sach sush instance. {(Provide a detalled response to all

quastions checked "YES", |f Yyou need more space, photacopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire,)

a)

b)

c)

Is thera any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO _>£_ If Yes, provide
detalls for each such charga,

Is there any mis'demeanor charge pending agalnst you? YES NO K If
Yes, provide detalls for each such charge,

Is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO X_ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge,

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other ¢rime, an alement of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of husiness? YES ___NoO _})_4‘_ If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction,
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9.

10,

1.

12.

&) n-the-“past-s—years-,—have-you‘been.convicted _ after trial or by plea, of &

misdemaanor? )
YES __ _ NO If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been found In violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO If Yes, provide detalls for each such
pocurrence.

In addition ta the infarmation provided in response to the previous questions, in the past &
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any fedaral -state or local prosecuting or investigative agency -andfor the
subject of an Investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at, .
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in

response to Question 57 YES NO X If Yes, provide detalls for each such
investigation.
Iny addition to the informatlon provided, in the past 5 years has any business of organization

listed In response to Question §, been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civil
anti-irust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited fo federal, stats, and |ocal regulatory agencies while you were a

principal owner oy officer? YES NO If Yes; provide detalls for each such
investigation. o
In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affillated business listed in

response to Question § hedl any santtlon imposed as a resutt of judicial or ad inistrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES NO _/  If Yes,
provide details for each such instance,

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other agsessed charges, including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO Y I Yes, provide details for each such
year.

51cf 316 Contract No. T62260-03M
NG Traffic Signal Malntenance Specificatian






CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAU DULENTLY MADE (N
CONNEGTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE

SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE W

ITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT

BiD OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE

FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.
l, loa»zm T, fopio

, being duly sworn, state that { have read and understand all

the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, Information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in

- cireurmnstances. acourring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is frue to the best of my knowledge,

information and balief. | understand that the County will
guestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into 2 ¢

entity,

o , :
Sworn to before me this 19 day of b‘n‘-‘»”/ 20 il

[

\v(a,emaﬁ ELE CTRIC Oaﬁ-,p.-oF LI
Name of submitting business

} el T, FLoio

Print namM

Signature

Vm \DE‘F‘T’/ {.E.0,
Title

0F ;1 19 ; 2oik
Date
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rely on the information supplied in this
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DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of New York
"7 Mo, 01KUB096716

Quallfiad In Suffoik County
Ndtary-#Tiblic i Sut

August 4, 3018
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Busliness History Form

e

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County,
taking into consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to
perform the services required by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the public Interest.

In addition to the submisston of proposals, each proposer shail complete and submit this
questionnaire. The guesticnnaire shall be fllled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or hy
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a responss, even if response is “nona" or “not-applicable.”
No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Date: kuU«I 19, 2010
o
1) Proposer's Legal Name: V‘(Ctﬁ»%w-l BUetree, ﬁmu? of L.J

2) Address of Place of Business: Foo fewmw @ﬂ?w»((ley(, M\!I \\80%

{ist all other business addresses used within last five years:

ik

3) Mailing Address (if different): t(/p’
Phone : (‘;’llb dgy. 0025

Does the business own or rent its facilities? KE"M‘

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: o1, 232, 9169

5} Federal LD, Number: ___[- zascfzﬁ |

8),-Thepropeserisg (chaeck one). Scle Proprietarship Partnership
Gorparation Y Pther (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or squipment expenses with any other
husiness?
Yes ___ No if Yes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control ane or more other businesses? Yes__ No X_ If Yes, please
provide details.
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9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/for is it & subsldiary of, or controlled by,
any other business? Yes X No___ If Yes, provide details.
Nt elecie C"“ﬁ" of LT, 15 & v(mq_u’; ByiEr S’u%mmuf 0 _EH0pe %m? (L.

10} Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Massau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes _ No X IfYes, state the
natne of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of band and reason for such cancellation
or forfelture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract),

—

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes _ No A
If Yes, state date, court Jurisdiction, amount of liabiliies and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners andfor officers andfor any
affilfated business, been the stbject of a criminal investigation and/or a clvil anti-trust
investigation by any fedsral, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in
the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the subjact of
a criminal Investigation and/or a clvil anti-trust investigation by any faderal, state ot looal
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was refated to activities
performed at, for, or on behalf of an afflliated business,

Yes __ No If Yes, provide details for each such investigation,

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers ancfor any
affilialed business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including
but not limitad to federal, state and local regulatory agencies? Andior, in the past b years,
has any owner and/or officer of an affillated business been the subject of an investigation by
any government agency, including but not imited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencles, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business. Yes ___ No_ X If Yes, provide detalls for each such investigation.

14} Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business
had, either befors or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertained to events that allegedly oceurred during the time. of employment by the
submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

&) Any felony charge pending? Yes___ No ,& If Yes, provide detalls jor
each such charge,

o} Any misdemsanor charge pending? Yes N07X_ If Yes, provide details
for each such charge,

¢} Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony
and/or any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the
underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business? Yes __ No )ﬁ_
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If Yes, provide detalls for each siich conviction

d) inthe past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
Yes___ No_X_ IfYes, provide detalls for each such conviction.

e} In the past 5 years, been found In violation of any administrative, statutory, or
regulatory provisions? Yes ___ No _‘& If Yes, provide details for each such
ocourrence. :

15YIn the past (5) years, nas ihis business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sancticn imposed as a result of judiclal or administrative proceedings with
respect to any professional license held? Yes No X If Yes, provide details for
pach such instance.

16) For the past (5) tax years, nas this business. falled to file any required tax retumns or failed to
pay any applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not
limited to water and sewer charges? Yes__ __ No _X_ If Yes, provide details for each
such year, Praovide a detailed response to all questions chacked ‘YES', If you heed more
space, photocopy the appropriate page and altach it to the guestionnaire.

Provide a detailed response to all questions shecked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below, NOTE: Ifno

conflicts exist, ploase expressly state “No conflict exists.”
{) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting on behalf of Nassau County.

No (ofpu 0T gx1ovs
(iy Any family relationship that any smployee of your firm has with any County

public servant that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

Ko lonficr eIees

(iify Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or
the appearance of a conflict of interast In acting on behalf of Nassau Gounty.

o (oeucr eusTs

h) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure tha
County that a conflict of interest would pot exist for your firm in the future,
T 15 Wersgaed gueeaue fnp.5 f
Coirolr bF \KTBEST Be, Gubperral  Mampbiert 15 1l g onaek iU
At Gutn TvE m?mes Wourp Be Korldie ko Acnoas guasued To

Spap Jowfren”
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A. Include a rasume or detailad description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,

deronstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any priar similar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposat MUST include:
Date of formation:

iy  Name, addresses, and position of a| persons having a financial interest In the
company, including shareholders, members, general or limited partner:

i)  Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company;

iv)  State of incorparation (if applicable); A Q{Gb Jols”
Acriiei fot Uismg HANUAL ax

V)  The number of smployees in the firm; 3?:\&2 5‘7 % 6

vi)  Annual revenue of firm;

viiy  Summary of relevant accomplishments

vili) Copies of &l state and local licenses and permits,

B. Indicate number of years in business. (20 ‘;ﬂ‘fg

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpfulin determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to parform these services, M/zﬂ’

D. Provide names and addressas for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer

has provided simllar services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer’s capability to
perform this work.

Company |{r5y( ,\’amf- Srate D.o, T,

Contact Parsan UG 0 AT
y

Address 224 »EM’J‘PWM, Swee o

/
Clty/State Au Mg, Ned ‘faUé Dol
Telephone ( faﬁvI\) 508, 3-g08 B
Fax# (631) $48. 902
E-Mail Address CLlipuro barr.%fﬁ.m’l_ us

W

PP ST
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Company %(AGS#U- COuw\j DA

Contact Person____ SHE\ DUKILE

Address 1184 Faosggrr hvg, Su e 182

City/State \Nemmeue | Hew \!DM- 11590

Telephone [ S\k) §%2. 048’

Faxd______ (SW) %4263

E-Mail Addréss S pukate (@ b(ﬁé;m dr)uarr\fl“\! .-%;« 3
N ——— )

Company Ao 3. Hrostrgrd

Contact Person @mg Kuébo

Address Voo Yl STeeeT

City/State __ Hoenmarm, New Mok 1243

Telephone ( {0'5% 251 .ﬁﬂfgﬁ"

k(B30 351 20l

E-Mail Address Do (@ Aou %Jumﬁ’gmw,r(xf, us
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT

BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

I, N o Y. meo , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnalre and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied fult and complete answers to each item thersin to the best of my
knowledge, Information and bellef; that | will notify the County In writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submisslon of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that li information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information suppliad in this

questionnaire as additional inducement to enterinto a contract with the submitting business
entity,

Sworn to before me this l‘?ﬁ day of l&luj 20 16
. DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of Now York
No. 01KUG006716
NoteryPublic Qualified In Suffolk County

; Expires August 4, 2019

Name of submitting business: \I{E‘tﬁ BACH Blerpil CO‘U,"? b LI
By: ..SD%’VH T Fowe

Print name

Sighafurd

Yes :wwr/(}-wtﬁ D, .

Title ! : -
0% 14, 2ol S
Date v 7
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Page 1 of 4
COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S ANiJ VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: \/‘(guawﬁ{-\ B au.f. o L,
Address; Fov el fost

City, State and Zip Code: ?L,Mr(*f tew | New :fem 11805

2. Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: \|. 235 LlLZS" )
3. Type of Business: & Public Corp Partnership Joint Venture

Ltd. Liability Co ____Closely Held Corp Other (specify)

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or compatable body, all pertners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all paries
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officets of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets if necessary):

5'2’5 EHLol %.wui, Wt 2ot5 fouie @v,gom*

5. Tist names and addresses of all sharcholders, members, or patners of the firm, If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly
tield Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in lisu-of completing this section,

See Eé}w& %ﬁbuﬁ, (e, 2015 AN’N\ML, 1?-2‘4‘?»4:1"“
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Page 2 of 4

6. List all affiiiated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line
1. above (if none, enter “None™). Attach a separate disclosute form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract, Such disclosure shall

be updated to-inctude affiliatsd ox subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

9@5 Erfﬂ,o& gmuf; NG, 2018 ANMUAL—QE?DM”. o mgq%smmm}; CTHew

T M elTeRer of Lm’ﬁ I \;(nu,'@z'nm«%,?mr i Ty PE%M;}MI‘EE”
oF Tws (adacr

7. List all lobbyists whose services were wiilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, ‘
bid, post-bid, ete.). If none, enter “None,” The terta “lobbyist” means any and every person or
organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter
before - Nassan County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or
committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committes and
Planning Commissiost, Such matiers include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procuremants, The
term “lobbyist” does not inciuds any officet, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties,

(2) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s);

None
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, See below for a complete
description of lebbying activities.

Nol&

() List whether and where the persor/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g.,
Nassan County, New York State):

Nowé

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor ot Vendor authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
stateraents and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and acourate. '

Dated: &L»LU'! \4, 2016 Signed: M €
U ' &
Pring Name: érpe@?H Y, e

Title: “Vaes \pm:-r/ f.e.0.
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassan County Legisiatuce, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, setvices or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of 4 grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made oy the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect {o the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boatds, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contractin g for services for the County; any dstermination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; tho proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection, by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law 3 the deeision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commigsion;
any determination regarding the calendaring ot scope of any legislature oversight heating;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order,; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employes of the county to
SUPpOrt or Oppose any stats or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
mads to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whethsr or not such e gislation has been formally introduced and whether or 1ot such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[E4] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31,2015

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-8267

EMCOR Group, Inc.

(Exact name of vegistrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 11-2125338
(State or ather jurisdiction of (I.LR.S, Employer
incerpotation or organization) Identification NMumber)

301 Mertlit Seven
Norwalk, Connecticut 06851-1092

(Address of principal executive offices) {Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including aren eode: (203) 849-7800
Securities registered pursnant te Section 12(b) of the Act:

Titte of each class Name of ench exchange on which registered

Common Stack New York Stock Exchange
Sceurities reglstered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by cheek mark if the regisirant is » well-lnown seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No DO
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Secnrities Exchange Act. Yes [1 No X
Indicate by check mark whether the regisirant (1) has fited all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was requited to file such reports), and (2) has been subjeot to such filing requivrements for the past 90 days, Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electranically and posted on its corporals Web sits, if any, every [nteractive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (Scction 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant wes required to
shbinit and post sach files). Yes No [

Tndicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Ttem 405 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best
of registrant’s knowledge, i definitive proxy or information statements incorparated by reference in Part I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by checle mark whether the registrant is a large sccelerated fHler, an aceelerated filer, 2 non-accelerated filor, or a smaller reporting company. Sce the definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” "accelerated filer” and “swaller reporting company”™ in Rule | 2b-2 of the Exchange Act,

(Do not checle if a smaller reporting
Large accelerated filer Aceclerated filer 0 Non-accelerated filer O  company) Smaller reporting company a

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is  shell company (2s defined by Ruis 12b-2 of the Exchange Act), Yes [1 No

The aggregate neacket value of the common stock held by non-affitiates of the registrant was approximately $2,245,000,000 us of the lust business day of the registrant’s most
recently completed second fiscul quarter, based upon the closing sale price on the New York Stock Exchange reported for such date. Shares of common stock held by each
executive officer and director and by each person who owns 5% or more of the cutstanding common stock (based solely on filings of such 5% holders) have been excluded from
such calewlation as such persons muy be deemed to be affiliates, This determination of affiliate stafus is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purpeses.

Number of shares of the registrant’s common gtock outstanding as of the close of business on February 22, 2016: 60,659,492 shares.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part HL. Portions of the definitive proxy statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which docwment will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A not kater than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates, ave incorporated by reference into Ferns 10 through 14 of Part 11
of this Form 10-K,
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FORWARD-LLOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information included in this repott, or in ather materials we have filed or will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™ (as
well as information included in oral statemenis or other written statements made or to be made by us) contains or may contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 {the “1995 Act”). Such statements are being made pursuant to the 1995 Act and
with the intention of obtaining the benefit of the “Safe Harbor” provisions of the 1995 Act, Forward-looking statements are based on information available ta
us and our perception of such information as of the date of this report and cur current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about the industries in
which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts. They contain words such as “anticipate,” “estimats,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “may,” “can,” “could,”
“might,” variations of such wording and other words or phrases of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of our future operating or financial
performance, and other aspects of our business, including market share growth, gross profit, project mix, projects with varying profit margins. selling, general
and administrative expenses, and trends in our business and other charactedzations of future events or circumstances. From time to time, forward-looking
statements also are included in our other periodic reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K, in press releases, in our presentations, on our website and in other material
released to the public. Any or all of the forward-looking statements included in this report and in any other reports or public statements made by us are only
predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those identified below in the “Risk Faetors” section, the “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” section, and other sections of this report, and in our Forms 10-Q for the three
months ended March 31, 2015, Jung 30, 2015 and September 30, 2015 and in other reports filed by us from time to time with the SEC as well as in press
releases, in our presentations, on our website and in other material released to the public. Such risks, uncertainties and assumptions are difficult to predict,
beyond our control and may tum out to be inaccurate causing actual results to differ materially from those that might be anticipated from our forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, fiture events or
otherwise. However, any further disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted.
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PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

References to the "Company,” "EMCOR,” “we,” “us,” “our” and similar words refer to EMCOR Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the
context indicates otherwise.

General

We are one of the largest electrical and mechanical construction and fucilities services firms in the United States. Tn addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services. In 2615, we had revenuss of approximately $6.7 billion. Our services are provided to a broad range of commercial,
industrial, utility and institutional customers through approximately 70 operating subsidiaties and joint venture entities. Our exeeutive offices are located at
301 Memitt Seven, Norwalk, Connecticut 06851-1092, and our telephone number at those offices is (203) 849-7800.

We specialize principally in providing construction services relating to electrical and mechanieal systems in all types of non-residential and certain
residential facilities and in providing vartous services relating to the operation, maintenance and management of facilities, including refineries and
petrochemical plants,

Due to a historical pattern of losses in the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we anncunced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued operations,

We design, integrate, install, start-up, operate and maintain vatious electrical and mechanical systems, including:
+ Electric power transmission and distibution systems;

+ Premises electrical and lighting systems;

+ Low-vollage systems, such as fire alarm, security and process control systems;

*  Voice and data communications systems;

* Roadway and transit lighting and fiber optic lincs;

* Heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation systems;
+ Fire protection systems;

- Plumbing, process and high-purity piping systems;

« Controls and filtration systems;

= Water and wastewater treatment systems;

» Central plant heating and cooling systems;

+  Crane and rigging services;

»  Millwright services; and

+  Steel fabrication, erection, and welding services,

Our building services operations, which are provided to a wide range of facitities, including commercial, utility, institutional and governmental facitities,
include:

+  Commercial and government site-based operations and maintenance;
+ Facility maintenance and services, including reception, security and catering services;

+  Qutage services to utilities and industrial plants;
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< Military base operations support services;

+ Mobile mechanical maintenance and services;

» Floor care and janitorial services;

+  Landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal;

+ Facilitiess management;

«  Vendor management;

« Call center services;

+ Installation and support for building systems;

v Program development, imanagement and maintenance for energy systems;

» Technical consulting and diagnostic services;

+ Infrastructure and building projects for federal, state and local govemmental agencies and bodies; and

+  Small modification and retrofit projects.

Qurindustrial services are provided to refineries and petrochemical plants and include:

+  On-site repairs, maintenance and service ofheat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping;

«  Design, manufacturing, repair and hydro blast cleaning of shell and tube heat exchangers and related equipment;

+  Refinery turaround planning and engineering services;

+  Specialty welding services;

«  Overhaul and maintenence ofcritical process units in refineties and petrochemical plants; and

«  Specialty technical services for refineries and petrochemical plants,

We provide construction services and building services directly to cotpotations, municipalities and federal and state governmental entities,
owners/developers, and tenants of buildings. We also provide our construction services indirectly by acting as 2 subcontracter to general contractors, systems

suppliets, property managers and other subcontractors. Our industrial services generally are provided directly to refineries and petrochemical plants.
Worldwide, as of December 31,2015, we had approximately 29,000 employees.

Our revenues are derived fom many dilferent customers in numerous industries, which have operations in several ditferent geographical areas. Of our 2015
revenues, approxituately 94% were generated in the United States and approximately 6% were generated in foreign countries, substantially all in the United
Kingdorm. In 2015, approximately 33% of revenues were detived from new construction projects, 18% wore derived from renovation and retrofit of customer's
existing facilities, 35% were derived from our building services operations, and 14% were detived from our industrial services operations.

The bread scope of out operations is more particularly described below, For information tegarding the revenues, operating income and total assets of each
of our segments with respect to each of the last three years, and our revenues and assets attributable to the United States and the United Kingdom for the last
thtee yeats, see Note 17 - Segment Information of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.

Operations

The electrical and mechanical construction services industry has grown over the years due principally to the increased content, complexity and
sophistication of electrical and mechanical systems, as well as the installation of more technologically advanced voice and data communications, fighting,
and environmental control systems in all types of facilities in large part due to the intepration of digital processing and information technology. For these
reasans, buildings need extensive electrical distribution systems. In addition, advanced voice and data communicatien systems require sophisticated power
supplies and extensive low-voltage and fiber-optic communications cabling. Moreover, the need for substantial environmental controls within a building,
due to the heightened need for climate control to maintain extensive computer systems at optimal temperatures, and the demand for energy savings and
environmental controls in individual spaces have over the years expanded opportunitics for our electrical and
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mechanical services businesses. The demand for these services is typically driven by non-residential construction and renovation activity.

Electrical and mechanical construction services primarily involve the design, integration, installation and start-up, and provision of services relating to:
(a) electric power transmission and distribution systems, including power cables, conduits, distribution panels, transformers, generators, uninterruptible power
supply systems and related switch gear and controls; (b) premises electrical and lighting systems, including fixtures and controls; (e} low-voltage systems,
such as fire alarm, security and process control systetns; (d) voice and data communications systems, including fiber-optic and low-veltage cabling;
(¢) roadway and transit lighting and fiber-optic lines; (f) heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation systems;
{g) fire protection systems; (h) plumbing, process and high-purity piping systems; (i} controls and filtration systems; (j) water and wastewater treatment
systems; (k) central plant heating and cooling systems; (1) cranes and rigging; (m) millwrighting; and (n) steel fabrication, erection and welding.

Electrical and mechanical constructien services generally fall into one of two categories: (a) large installation projects with contracts often in the multi-
million dollar range that involve construction of manufacturing and commercial buildings and institutional and public works projects or the fit-out of large
blocks of space within commercial buildings and (b) smaller installation projects typically involving fit-out, renovation and retrofit work,

Our United States electrical and mechanical construction services operations accounted far about 51% of our 2015 revenues, approximately 65% of which
were telated to new construction and approximately 35% of which were related to renovation and retrofit projects. Due to a historical pattern of losses in the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market conditions in the United Kingdom for the
foreseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the construction market in the United Kingdom,
During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the construction operations of our United
Kingdom segment forall periods are presented as discontinued operations. Accordingly, we focus in the United Kingdom principally on building services,

We provide electrical and mechanical construction services for both large and small installation and renovation projects. Our largest projects have
included those: (a) for institutional purposes (such as educational and correctional facilities and research laboratories); (b) for manufacturing purposes (such
as pharmacentical plants, steel, pulp and paper mills, chemical, food, autemotive and semiconductor manufacturing facilities and power generation); {¢} for
transportation purposes (such as highways, bridges, aiports and transit systems}; (d) for commercial purposes (such as office buildings, data centers,
convention centers, sports stadivms and shopping malls); (¢) for hospitality purposes (such as resorts, hotets and casinos); () for water and wastewater
purposes; and (g) for healtheare purposes. Our lacgest projects, which typically range in size from $10.0 million up to and occasionally exceeding $150.0
millien and are frequently multi-year projects, represented approximately 27% of our worldwide construction services revennes in 2015.

Qur projects of less than $10.0 million accounted for approximately 73% of our worldwide construction services revenues in 2015, These projects are
typically completed in less than one year They usually involve elecirical and mechanical construction services when an end-user or owner undertakes
construction or modification of a facility te accommodate a specific use. These projects frequently require electrical and mechanical systems to meet special
needs such as critical systems power supply, fire protection systems, special environmental controls and high-purity air systems, sophisticated electrical and
mechanical systems for data centers, new production lines in manufacturing plants, and office arrangements in existing office buildings. They are not usually
dependent upon the new construction market. Demand for these projects and types of services is often prompted by the expiration of leases, changes in
technology, or changes in the eustomer’s piant or office layout in the normal course ofa customer’s business.

We have a broad customer base with many long-standing relationships. We perform construction services pursuant to contrcts with owners, such as
corparations, municipalities and other governmental entities, general contractors, systems suppliers, construction managers, developers, ather subcontractors
and tenanis of commercial properties. Institutional and public works projects are frequently long-term complex projects that require significant technical and
management skills and the financial strength to obtain bid and performance bonds, which are often a condition to bidding for and winning these projeets,

We also install and maintain lighting for streets, highways, bridges and tunnels, traffic signals, computerized traffic control systems, and signal and
communication systems for mass transit systems in several metropolitan areas. In addition, in the United States, we manufacture and install sheet metal air
handling systems for both our own mechanical construction operations and for unrelated mechanical contractors, We also maintain welding and pipe
fabrication shops in support of some of our mechanical operations.

Our United States building services segment offers 2 broad range of services, including operation, maintenance and service of eleetrical and mechanical
systems; commercial and govemment site-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance and
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services, including outage services to utilities and manufacturing facilitics; military base opetations support services; mobile mechanical maintenance and
services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; (acilities management; vendor management; call center services;
installation and suppost for building systems; progrm development, management and maintenance with respect to energy systems; technical consulting and
diagnostic services; infrastructure and building projects for federal, state and local govemmental agencies and bodies; and small modification and retrofit
projects.

These building services, which generated approximately 35% of our 2015 revenues, are provided to owners, opsrators, tenants and managers of all types of
facilitics both on a contract basis for a specified petiod of time and on an individual task order basis. O our 20 15 building services revenues, approximately
87% were generated in the United States and approximately 13% were generated in the United Kingdom,

Our building services operations have built upon our traditional electiical and mechanical services operations and our client relationships to expand the
scope of services being offered and to develop packages ofservices for customers on a regional and national basis.

Demand for our building services is often driven by customers’ decisions (o focus on their core competencies, customers’ programs to reduce costs, the
increasing technical complexity of their facilities and their mechanical, electrical, voice and data and other systems, and the need for increased reliability,
gspecially in electrical and mechanical systems. These trends have led to outsourcing and privatization programs whereby customers in both the private and
public sectors seck to contract out those activities that suppott, but are not directly associated with, the customer’s care busincss. Clients of our building
services business include federal and state govemnments, utilities, independent power producers, pulp and paper producers, and major corporations engaged
in information technology, telecommunications, phammaceuticals, financial services, publishing and other manufacturing, and large retailers and other
businesses with geographically dispersed portfolios throughout the United States.

We currently previde building services in a majority of the states in the United States to commercial, industrial, institutional and governmental customers
and as patt of our operations are responsible for: {a) the oversight of all or most of the facilities operations of & business, including operation and
maintenance; (b) servicing, upgrade and retrofit o fHHVAC, electrical, plumbing and industrial piping and sheet metal systems in existing facilities; (¢} interior
and exterior services, including tleor care and janitorial services, landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; (d) diagnostic and solution engineering for
building systems and their components; and () maintenance and support services to manufacturers and power producers.

In the Washington D.C. metropolitan area, we provide building scrvices at a number of preeminent buildings, including those that house the Secret Service,
The Fedetal Deposit Tnsurance Corporation, the National Foreign Affairs Training Center, and the Department of Health and Human Services, as well as other
govemment facilities including the NASA Jet Propulsion Laboratory in Pasadena, California. We also provide building services to a number of military
bases, including base operations suppot services to the Nuvy National Capital Region and the Ammy’s Fort Huachuea, Arizona, and are also invelved ina
joint venture providing building services to the Naval Support Activity Mid-South Base in Tennessee. The agreements pursuant to which this division
provides services to the federal government are frequently fora base year and a number of option years exercisable at the sole discretion of the govemment,
are often subject to renegotiation by the govemment in terms of scope of services, and are subject to termination by the govemment prior to the expiration of
the applicable term.

Our United Kingdom subsidiary primarily focuses on building services and currently provides a broad range of services under multi-year agreements to
public and private sector customers, including airlines, airports, real estate property managers, manufacturers and govemmental agencies.

Our industrial services business is a recognized leader in the refinery tumaround market and has a growing presence in the petrochemical market. In July
2013, we acquired RepconStrickland, Ine. expanding services we provide to our refinery and petrochemical custormers and significantly increasing the size of
our industrial services business. Our industdal services business: (a) provides after-market maintenance, repair and cleaning services for highly engineered
shell and tube heat excliangoers for refincries and petrochemical plants both in the field and at our own shops, including tube and shell repairs, bundle repairs,
and extraction services, and (5} designs and manufactures new highly engineered shell and tube heat exchangers. We alsa perfonn a broad range of
tumaround and maintenance services for critical units of refineries so as to upgtade, repair and maintain them, Such services include tumaround and
maintenance services relating to: (i) engineering and planning services in advance of complex refinery fumarcunds, (i} overhaul and maintenance of critical
process units (including hydrofluoric alkylation units, fluid catalytic eracking units, coking units, heatets, heat exchangers and related mechanical
equipment) during refinery and petrochemical plant shut downs, (iii) replacement and new construction capital projects for refineties and petrochemical
plants, and (iv) other related specialty technical services such as (a) welding, including pipe welding, and fabrication; heater, boiler, and reformer repairs and
replacements; converter repair and revamps; and vessel, exchanger and tower services; (o) tower and colurn repairs in refineries and petrochemical facilities;
(c) installation and repair ofrefiactory materials for critical units in process plants so as to protect
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equipment from corrasion, erosion, and extreme temperatures; and (d) acid-proofing services to protect critical components at refineries from chemical
exposure.

Competition

In our construction services, building services end industrial services businesses, we compete with national, regional and local companies, many of which
ate sinall, owner-operated entities that carry on their businesses in a limited geegraphic area, as well as with certain foreign companies. -

We believe that the electrical and mechanical construction services businesses are highly fragmented and our competition includes thousands of small
companies across the United States. In the United States, there are a few public companies focused on providing either efectrical and/or mechanical
construction services, such as Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., Comfort Systems USA, Inc. and Tutor Perini Corporation. A majority of our revenues are
derived from projects requiring competitive bids; however, an invitation to bid Is often conditioned upon prior experience, technical capability and financial
strength, Because we have total asscts, annual revenucs, access to bank credit and surcty bonding and expettise significantly greater than most of our
competitars, we believe we have a significant competitive advantage over our competitors in providing electrical and mechanical construction services,
Competitive factors in the electrical and mechanical construction services business include: (a) the availability of qualified and/or licensed petsonnel;
{b) reputation for integrity and quality; {c) safety record; (¢) cost structure; (¢) relationships with customers; (f) geographic diversity; (g} the ability to control
project costs; (h) experience in spocialized markets; {i) the ability to obtain surety bonding; (j) adequate working capital; (k) access to bank credit; and
() price. However, there are relatively few significant barriers to entry to several types of our construction services business. :

While the building services business is also highly fragmented with most competitors operating in a specific geographic region, a number of targe United
States based corporations such as AECOM Technolegy Corporation, Johnson Centrols, Inc., Fluor Corp., J&J Worldwide Setvices, Cushman & Wakefield
Inc., CB Richard Ellis, Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated, Sodexo, Inc., Aramark Corporation and ABM Industries Incorporated are engaged in this field,
as are large original equipment manufacturers such as Camier Corp. and Trane Ing, In addition, we compete with several regional finns serving all or portions
of the markets we target, such as Brickman Valley Crest, Inc., Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, Inc., SMS$ Assist, LLC and Ferandino & Sens, Inc. Cur
principal services competitors in the United Kingdom include ISS UK Ltd. and MITIE Group ple. The key competitive factors in the building services
business include price, service, quality, technical expertise, geographic scope and the availability of qualified personnel and managess. Due to our size, both
financial and geographic, and our technical capability and management experience, we believe we arc in a strong competitive position in the building
services business, However, there are relatively few barriers to entry to most ofour building services businesses.

In our industrial services business, we are a leading North American provider of after-market maintenance and repair services for, and manufacturing of,
highly engineered shell and tube heat exchangors and related equipment and a leader in providing specialized services ta refineries and petrochemical plants.
The matket for providing these services and products to refineries and petrechemical plants is highly fragmented and includes large national industrial
services providers, as well as numerous regional companies, including JV Industrial Companies Ltd., Matrix Service Company, Starcon, Tumer Industries,
Team, Inc., Cust-O-Fab, Dunn Heat, and Wyatt Field Service Company. In the manufacture of heat exchangers, we compete with both U.S. and foreign
manufacturers. The key competitive factors in the industrial services market include service, quality, ability to respond quickly, technical expettise, price,
safety tecord and availability of qualified personnel. Due to our technical capabilities, safety record and skilled workforce, we believe that we are in a strong
competitive position in the industrial services market we serve. Because of the complex tasks associated with tumarounds and the precision required in the
manufacture of heat exchangers, we believe that the barriers to entry in this business are significant.

Employees

At December 31, 2015, we employed approximately 29,000 peaple, approximately 56% of whom are represented by various unions pursuant te more than
375 collective bargaining agreements between our individual subsidiaries and local unions. We believe that our employee relations are generally good. Only
two of these collective bargaining agreements are national or regional in scope.

Backlog

Our backlog at December 31, 2015 was $3.77 billion compared to $3.63 billion of backlog at December 31, 2014, Backlog increases with awards of new
contracts and decreases as we perform werk on existing conimets. Backlog is not a term recognized under United States generally accepted accounting
principles; however, it is a common measurement 1sed in our industry. We include a project within our backlog at such time as a contract is awarded and
agreement on contract terms has been reached. Backlog includes unrecognized revenues to be realized from uncompleted construction contracts plus
unrecognized revenues expected to be realized over the remaining term of services contracts. However, we do not include in backlog contracts for which
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we arc paid on a time and material basis and a fixed amount cannot be determined, and if the remaining term of a services contract excseds 12 months, the
unrecognized revenues attributable to such contract included in backlog are limited to only the next 12 months of revenues provided for in the contract
award, Our backlog also includes amouats related to services contracts for which a fixed price contract value is not assigned when a reasonable estimate of
total revenues can be made from budgeted amounts agreed to with onr customer. Our backlog is comprised ef () original contract amounts, (b) change orders
for whick we have reeeived writien confirmations friom our customers, (¢) pending change orders for which wo oxpect to reoclve confirmations in the ordinary
course of business and (d) claim amounts that we have made against customers for which we have determined we have a legal basis under existing contractual
amrangements and as to which we consider recovery to be probable, Such claim amounts were immaterial for all periods presented. Our backlog does not
include anticipated revenues from unconsolidated joint ventures or variable interest entitics end anticipated revenues from pass-through costs on contracts
for which we are acting in the capacity of an agent and which are reported on the net basis, We belisve cur backlog is firm, although many contracts are
subject to cancellation at the election of our customers. Historically, cancellations have not had a material adverse effect on us. We estimate that 79% of our
backlog as o f December 31,2015 will be recognized as revenues during 2016.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and cuztent reports, proxy statements and other information with the Secutities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as
the “SEC”. These filings are available to the public over the internet at the SEC’s website at http://www.sce.gov. You may also read and copy any document
we file at the SEC’ Public Reference Room located at 100 I Street, N.E.,, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
informatien on the Public Reference Room.

Our Internet address is www.emcorgroup.com, We make available free of charge through www.emcorgroup.com our annual reports on Form 1¢-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reperts on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicabls after we electronically file sueh
material with, or fumish it to, the SBC. References to our website addressed in this report are provided as a convenience and do not constitute, and should not
be viewed as, an incorporation by reference of the information contained on, or available through, the website. Therefore, such information should not be
considered part of this report.

Our Board of Directors has an audit committee, a compensation and personnel committes and a nominating and corporate govemance committee. Bach of
these committecs has a formal charter, We also have Cotporate Govemance Guidelines, which include guidelines regarding related party transactions, a Code
of Ethics for our Chief Exccutive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, and a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Directors, Officers and Employees.
Copies of these charters, guidelines and codes, and any waivers or amendments to such codes whiclt are applicable to our executive officers, senior financial
cfficers or directors, can be obtained free of charge from our website, www.emcorgroup.com.

You may request a copy of the foregoing filings (excluding exhibits), charters, guidelines and codes and any waivers or amendments 1o such codes which
are applicable to our executive officers, senior financial officers or directors, at no cost by writing to us at EMCOR Group, Inc., 301 Merritt Seven, Norwalk,
CT 06851-1092, Attention: Corporate Secretary, or by telephoning us at (203} 849-7800.

ITEM LA. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a variety ofrisks, including the risks described below as well as adverse business and market conditions and risks associated with
foreign operations. The risks and uncertaintics described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or not
deseribed below which we have not determined to be material may also impair our business operations. You should carelully consider the risks described
below, togetier with all other information in this report, including information contained in the “Business,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Markst Risk™ sections, If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial position, results of operations and/or cash fiows could be adversely affected, and we may not be able to achieve our
goals. Such events may cause actual results to differ materiatly from expected and historical results, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Economic downturns have led to reductions in demand for our serviees. Negative conditions in the credif markets may adversely impact our ability to
aperate our business. The level of demand from our clients for our services has been, in the past, adversely impacted by slowdowns in the industiies we
service, as well as in the economy in general, When the general level of economic activity has been reduced from historical levels, certain of our ultimate
customers have delayed or cancelled projects or capital spending, especially with respect to more profitable private sector work, and such slowdowns
adversely affect our ability to grow, reducing our revenues and profitabitity. A number of economic factors, including financing conditions for the industries
we serve, have, in the past, adversely affected our ultimate customers and their ability or willingness to fund expenditures. General concems about the
fundamental soundness of domestic and foreign economies may cause ultimate customers to defer projects even ifthey
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have credit available to them. Worsening of financial and macroeconemic conditions could have a significant adverse effect on our revenues and
profitability.

Many afourclients depend on the availability of credit to help finance their capital and maintenance projects. At times, tightened availability of credit has
negatively impacted the ability of existing and prospective ultimate customers to fimd projects we might otherwise perform, particulatly those in the more
profitable private sector. As a result, our ultimate customers may defer such projects for an unknown, and perhaps lengthy, period. Any such deferrals would
inhibit our growth and would adversely affect our results of operations.

In a weak economic environment, particularly in a period of restrictive credit markets, we may experience greater difficulties in collecting payments fram,
and negotiating change orders and/or claims with, our clients due to, among other reasons, a diminution in our ultimate customers’ access to the credit
markets. If clients delay in paying or fail to pay a significant amount of our outstanding receivables, or we fail to suceessfully negotiate a significant portion
of our change orders and/or claims with clients, it could have an adverse effect on our liquidity, results of operations and financial position.

Our business has traditionally lagged recoveries in the general economy and, therefore, may not recaver as quickly as the economy at large.

Our business is vulnerable to the cyclical nature of the markets in which our clients operate and is dependent upon the timing and funding of new awards.
We provide construction and maintenance services to ultimate customers operating in a number of markets which have been, and we expect will continue to
be, cyclical and subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors beyond our control, including economic conditions and changes in client
spending.

Regardless of economic or market conditions, investment decisions by our ultimate customers may vary by location or as a result of other factors like the
availability of labor, relative construction costs or competitive conditions in their industries. Because we are dependent on the timing and funding of new
awards, we are therefore vulnerable to changes in our clients’ markets and investment decisions.

Our bustness may be adversely affected by significant delays and reductions int government appropriations. Curtailed spending aimed at reducing federal,
state and local budget deficits eould result in govemmental agencies or departments deforring or canceling projects that we might otherwisé have sought to
perform. Budgetary constraints and ongeing coacerns regarding the US. national debt may place downward pressure on spending levels of the U.S.
govemnment. Some of our businesses derive a significant portion of their revenues from federal, state and loeal govemmental bodies.

An increase in the prices of certain materials used in our businesses could adversely affeet our businesses, We are exposed to market risk of inereases in
certain commodity prices of materials, such as copper and steel, which are vsed as coniponents ol supplies or materials utilized in all of our operations. We are
also exposed to increases in energy prices, particularly as they relate to gasoline prices for our fleet of over 8,500 vehicles, While we believe we can increase
our prices to adjust for some prico increases in commodities, there can be no assurance that price inereases of commodities, if they were to oceur, would be
recoverable. Additionally, our fixed price contracts do not allow us to adjust our prices and, as a result, increases in material or fuel costs could reduce ocur
profitability with respect to such projects. Fluctyations in energy prices as well as in commodity prices of materials may adversely affect our custemers and as
a result cause them to curtail the use of our services. Recent declines in the price of oif have caused some of our refinery eustomers to curtail or delay
maintenance or capital projects. Further declines in the price of oil may adversely affect some of our refinery customers causing them to defer maintenance
and/or capital projects performed by companies in our United States industrial services segment or delay purchases or repairs of heat exchangers that are
manufactured and repaired by some of our companies,

Qur industry is highly competitive. Our industry is served by numerous small, owzner-operated private companies, a few public companies and several large
regional companies. In addition, relatively few barriers prevent entry into most of our businesses. As a result, any organization that has adequate financial
resolrces and access to technical expertise may become a competitor. Competition in our industry depends on numerous factors, including price. Certain of
our competitors have lower overhead cost structures and, therefore, are able to provide their services at lower rates than we are currently able to provide. In
addition, some of our competitors have greater resources than we do. We cannot be certain that our competitors will not develop the expetise, experience and
resources necessary to provide services that are superior in qualily and lower in price to ours. Similarly, we cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain
or enhance our competitive position within our industries or maintain a customer base at current levels, We may also face competition from the in-house
service organizations of existing ot prospective customers, particularly with respect to building services. Many of our customers employ personnel who
perform some of the same types of building services that we do. We cannot be certain that our existing or prospective customers will continue to outsource
building services in the future,
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We are o deceniralized company, which presents certain risks. While we believe deccntralization has enhanced our growth and enabled us to romain
responsive to epportunities and to our customers® needs, it necessarily places significant control and decision-making powers in the hands of local
management. This presents various risks, including the risk that we may be slower or less able te icentify or react to problems affecting a key business than
we would in a more centralized environment,

Our business may also be affected by weather conditions, Adverse weather conditions, particularly duting the winter season, could impact our construction
services aperations as those conditions affect our ability to perform efficient work outdoors in certain regions of the United States, adversely affecting the
revenues and profitabilily of those aperations. However, the absence of snow in the United States during the winter could cause us to experience reduced
tevenues 2nd profitability in our United States building services segment, which has meaningful snow remaval operations, In addition, cooler than normal
temperatures during the summer months could reduce the need for our services, particularly in our businesses that install or service air conditioning units, and
result in reduced revenues and profitability during the period such unseasonal weather conditions persist.

Our husiness may be affected by the work environment. We perform our work under a variety of conditions, including but not limited to, difficult terrain,
difficult site conditions and busy urban centers where delivery of materials and availability eflaber may be impacted, cican-room environments where strict
procedures nust be followed, and sites which may have been exposed to harsh and hazardous conditions, especially at chemical plants, refineries and other
process facilities, Performing work under these conditions ca negatively affect efficiency and, therefore, our profitability.

Our dependence upon fixed price contracts could adversely affect our business. We currently generate, and expect to continue to generate, a significant
portion of our revenues fiom fixed price contracts. We must cstimate the total costs ofa particular project to bid for fixed price contracts. The actual cost of
labor and materials, however, may vary from the costs we originally estimated. These variations, along with other risks, inherent in performing fixed price
contracts, may cause actual gross profits from projects to differ from those we originally estimated and could result in rsduced profitability or losses on
projects. Depending upon the size of a particular project, varations from the estimated contract costs can have a significant impact on our operating results
forany fiscal quarter or year.

We conld incur additlonal cosis to cover cerlain guarantees. In some instances, we guarantes completion of a project by a specific date or price, cost
suvings, achisvement of certain performance standards or performance of our services at a certain standard of quality, If we subsequently fail to mest such
guarantees, we may be held responsible for costs resulting from such failures, Such a failure could result in our payment of liquidated or other damages. To
the extent that any of these events oceu, the total costs of a project could exceed the original estimated costs, and we would experience reduced profits o1, in
some cases, a loss,

Many of our controcts, especially our building services contracts for governmental and non-gevernmental entities, may be canceled on short notice, ond
we may be unsuccessful in replacing such contracts if they are canceled or as they are completed or expire. We could expetience a decrsase in revenues, net
income and liquidity ifany of the following occur:

« customers cancel a significant number of contracts;

+ we fil to win a significant number of out existing contracts upon re-bid;

+  we complete a significant number of non-recurring projects and cannot replace them with similar projects; or

+ we fail to reduce operating and overhead expenses consistent with any decrease in our revenues.

We may be unsuccessful in generating intemal growth. Ourability to generate internal growth will be affected by, among other factors, our ability to:
+ expand the range of services offered to custorners to address their evolving needs;

+ attract new customers; and

+ increase the number of projects performed for existing customers.

In addition, existing and potential customers in the past have reduced, and may continue to reduce, the number or size of projects available to us because
of general economic conditions or due to their inability to abiain capital or pay for services we pravide. Many cof the factors affecting our abilily to generate
internal growth are beyond our control, and we cannot be certain that our strategies will be successful or that we will be able to generate cash flow sufficient
to fund our operations and to support intemal growth. If we are not successful, we may not be able to achieve internal growth, expand operations or grow our
business.
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The departure of key personnel could disrupt cur business. We depend on the continued efforts of our senior management, The loss of key personnel, or
the inability to hire and retain qualified executives, could negatively impact our ability to manage our business,

We may be unable to attract and retain skilled employees. Our ability to grow and maintain productivity and profitability will be limited by our ability to
employ, tiain and retain skilled personnel necessary to meet our requirements. We are depetident upon our project managers and field supervisors who arc
responsible for managing our projects; and there can be no assurance that any individual will continue in khis or her capacity for any particular period of time,
and the loss of such qualified employees could have an adverse effect on our business. We cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain an adequate
skilled labor force necessary to operate efficiently and to support our business strategy or that labor expenses will not increase as a result of a shortage in the
supply of thesc skilled personnel, Labor shortages or incrzased labor costs could impair our ability to maintain our business or grow our revenues,

Our unionized workforee could adversely affect our operations, and we participate in many multiemployer union pension plans which could result in
substantial liabilities being incurred. As of December 31, 2015, approximately 56% of our employees were covered by collective bargaining agreements,
Although the majority of these agreements prohibit strikes and work stoppages, we cannot be certain that strikes or work stoppages will not oceur in the
future. However, only two of our collestive bargaining agreements are national or regional in scope, and not all of our collective bargaining agreements
expire at the same time, Strikes or work stoppages would adversely impact our relationships with our customers and could have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We contribute to over 200 multiemployer union pension plans based upen wages paid to our
unicn employees that could result in our being responsible for o portion of the unfunded liabilities under such plans. Our potential liability for unfunded
liabilities could be material. Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, we may become liable for our proportionate share of a multiemployer
pension plan’s underfunding, if we cease to contribute to that pension plan or significantly reduce the employees in respect of which we make contributions
to that pension plan. See Note 14 - Retirement Plans of the notes to consolidated financial statements incleded in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data for additional information regarding multiemployer plans.

Fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates impact our financial results, We have operations in the United Kingdom, which in 2015 accounted for 6% of
our revenues. Qurreported financial position and results of operations are exposed to the effects (both positive and negative) that fluctuating exchange rates
have on the process of translating the financial statements of our United Kingdom operations, which are denominated in local enrrencies, into the U.S, dollar,

Our faifure to comply with environmental laws could resuli in significant liabilities. Our operations are subject to various laws, including environmental
laws and regulations, among which many deal with the handling and dispesal of asbestos and other hazardous or universal waste products, POBs and fuel
storage. A violation of such laws and regulations may expose us to various claims, including claims by third parties, as well as remediation costs and fines.
We own and lease many facilities. Some ol these ficilities contain tuel storage tanks, which may be above or below ground. If these tanks were to leak, we
could be responsible for the cost of remediation as well as potential fines. As a part of our business, we also install fue! storage tanks and are somstimes
required to deal with hazardous materials, all of which may expese us to environmental liability.

In addition, new laws and regulalions, siricter enforcement of existing laws and regulations, the discovery of previously unknown contamination or leaks,
or the imposition of new clean-up requirements could require us to incur significant costs or become the basis for new or increased liabilities that could harm
our financtal position and results of operations, although certain of these costs might be covered by insurance. In some instances, we have obtained
indemnification or covenants ftom third parties (including predecessors or lessors) for such clean-up and other obligations and liabilities, and we believe
such indemnities and covenants are adequate to cover such obligations and liabilities. However, such third-party indemnities or covenants may not cover all
of such costs or third-party indemnitors may default on their obligations. In addition, unanticipated obligations or liabilities, or future obligations and
liabilities, may have a material adverse eifect on our business operations, Further, we cannot be certain that we will be able to identify, or be indemnified for,
all potential environmental labilities relating to any acquired business.

Adverse resolution of litigation and other legal proceedings muay havn our operating results or financial position. We are a party to lawsuits and other
legal proceedings, most of which occur in the nermal course of our business. Liligation and other legal proceedings can be expensive, lengthy and distuptive
to normal business operations. An unfavorable resolution of & particular legal proceeding could have a malerial adverse effect on our business, operating
resulls, financial position and cash flows, and in some cases, on our repufation or cur ability to obfain projects from customers, including governmental
entities. See llem 3. Legal Proceedings and Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financiat statemeats included in Item 3.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for more information regarding legal proceedings in which we are involved.

Opportunities within the government sector could lead to Increased governnental regulation applicable to us. As a government contractor we are subject
to a number of procurement rales and other regulations, any deemed violation of which could lead to fines or penaltics or a loss of business. Government
agencies routinely audit and investigate govemment contractors. Government agencies may review a contractor’s performance under its contracts, cost
structure and compliance with applicable laws, regulations
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and standards, If govemment agencies determine through these audits or reviews that costs are impreperly allocated to specific coniracts, they will not
reimburse the contractor for those costs or may require the contractor to refund previously reimbursed costs. [f government agencics detetmine that we are
engaged iu impropet activity, we may be subject to civil and eriminal penalties and debarment or suspension from doing business with the government.
Government contracts are also subject fo renegotiation of terms by the govemment, termination by the government prior to the expitation of the term, and
non-renewal by the government.

A material portion of our business depends on aur ability to provide surety bonds, We may be unable to compete for or work on certain projects if we are
not able to obtain the necessary surety bonds. Our construction contracts frequently require that we obtain from surety companies and provide to our
customers payment and performance bonds as a condition to the award of such contracts, Such surety bonds secure our payment and performance obligations.
Under standard terms in the surety market, surety companies issue bands on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time er require
the posting of collateral as a condition to issuing any bonds. Current or future market conditions, as well as changes in our sureties’ assessment of our or their
own operating and financial risk, could cause our surety companies to decline to issue, or substantially reduce the amount of, bonds for our work or to
increase our bonding costs. These actions can be taken on short notice. If our surety companies were to limit or eliminate our access to bonding, our
alternatives would include seeking bonding capacity from other surety companies, increasing business with clients that do not require bonds and posting
other forms of collateral for project petformance, such as letters of credit, parent company guarantees or cash, We may be unable to secure these alternatives in
a timely manner, on acceptable terms, or at all. Accordingly, if we were to experience an interruption or reduction in the availability of bending, we may be
unable to compete for or work on certain projects, Increases in the costs of surety bonds also could adversely impact our profitability.

We are effectively self-insured against many potential liabilities. Although we maintain insurance policies with respect te a broad range of risks, including
automobile liability, genera! liability, workers’ compensation and employee group health, these policies do not cover all possible claims and certain of the
policies are subject to large deductibles. Accordingly, we are effectively self-insured fora substantial number of actual and potential claims, In addition, if
any of our insutance carrisrs defaulted an its obligations to provide insuranee covemge by reason of its inselvency or for other reasens, our exposure to
claims would increase and our profits would be adversely affected. Cur estimates for unpaid claims and expenses are based on knawn facts, historical trends
and industry averages, ulilizing the assistance of an actuary. Wo reflect these liabilities in our balance sheet as “Other accrued cxpenses and liabilities” and
“Other long-term obligations.” The determination of such estimated liabilities and their appropriateness are reviewed and updated at least quarterly.
However, these Liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to many relevant factors, the effects of which are often unknown, including the severity ofan
injury or damage, the determination of liability in proportion to other parties, the timeliness of reported claims, the effectiveness of our risk management and
safety programs and the terms and conditions of our insurance policies. Our accruals are based upon known facts, historical trends and our reasonable
estimate of future cxpenses, and we believe such accruals are adequate. However, unknown or changing trends, risks or circumstances, such as increases in
claims, 2 weakening economy, increases in medical costs, changes in case law or legislation or changes in the nature of the work we perform, could render our
current estimates and accruals inadequate. In such case, adjustments to our balance sheet may be required and these increased liabilities would be recorded in
the petiod that the experience becomes known. Insurance earriers may be unwilling, in the future, to provide our cument levels of coverage without a
significant increase in insurance premivms and/or collateral requirements to cover our obligations to them. Increased collateral requirements may be in the
form of additional letters of credit andfor cash, and an increase in collateral requirements could significantly reduce our liquidity. If insurance premiums
increase, and/or ifinsurance claims are higher than our estimates, cur profitability could be adversely affected.

Health care reform could adversely affect our operating results. Tn 2010, the United States government enacted comprehensive health care reform
legislation. To dste, we have not experienced material costs related to the health care reform legislation; however, it is possible that our operating results
and/or cash flows conld be adversely affected in the future by increased costs, expanded liability exposure and requirements that change the ways we provide
healthcare and other benefits to our employees,

We may incur liabilities or suffer negative financial impact relating to occupational, health and safety matters. Our operations are subject to extensive
laws and regulations relating to the maintenance of safe conditions in the workplace, While we have invested, and will continue to invest, substantial
resources in our robust oceupational, health and safety programs, many of our businesses iuvolve a high degree of aperational tisk, and there can be no
agsurance that we will avoid significant exposure. These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of property and
equipment and other consequential damages and could lead to suspension ofoperations, large damags claims and, in extreme cases, criminal fiability.

Our customers seek fo minimize safety risks on their sites and they frequently review the safety records of confractors during the bidding process. If our
safety record wete tc substantially deteriorate over time, we might become ineligible te bid on certain work and our customers could cancel our contracts
and/or not award us future business.

Acquisitions could adversely affect our business and results of operations, As patt of our growth strategy, we acquite companies that expand, complement
and/or divetsify our businesses. Realization of the anticipated benefits of an acquisition will depend, among other things, upon our ability to; (a) effectively
conduct due diligence on companies we propose to acquire to identify problems at these companies or (b) recognize incompatibilities or other obstacles to
successful integration of the acquired business
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with our other operations and gain greater efficiencies and scale that will translate into reduced costs in a timely manner. However, there can be no assurance
that an acquisition we may make in the future wilt provide the benefits anticipated when entering into the transaction. Acquisitions we have made and futurs
nequisitions may expose us to operational challenges and risks, including the diversion of management’s attention from our existing businesses, the failure to
retain key personnel or customers of the acquired business and the assumption of unknown liabilities of the acquired business for which there are inadequate
reserves. Our ability to sustain our growth and maintain our competitive position may be affected by our ability to identify and acquire desirable businesses
and successfully inteprate any business acquired,

Our resulls of operations could be adversely affected as a result of goodwill and other identiflable intangible asset impairments. When we acquire a
business, we record an asset called “goodwill” equal to the excess amount paid for the business, including liabilities assumed, over the fair value of the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets of the business acquired. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) requires that all business
combinations be accounted for using the acquisition method of acceunting and that certain identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business cembination
be recognized as assets apat from goodwill. FASE Accounting Standard Codification (*ASC™) Topic 350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other* {“ASC 350™)
provides that goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets that have indefinite usetul lives not be amortized, but instead must be tested at least annually
for impairment, and identifiable intangible assets that have finite useful lives should continue to be amortized over their useful lives and be tested for
impaimient whenever faots and circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be fully recoverable. ASC 350 also provides specific guidance for
testing goodwill and other non-amortized identifizble intangible assets for impairment, which we test annually sach October 1. ASC 350 fequires
managetnent to make certain estimates and assumptions to allocate goodwill to reporting units and to determine the fair value of reporting unit net assets and
liabilities. Such fair value is determined wsing discounted estimated future cash flows. Our development of the present value of future cash flow projections is
based upon assumptions and estimates by management from a review of our operating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and margins and the
weighted average cost of eapital, among others. Much of the information used in assessing fair value is outside the control of management, such as interest
rates, and these assumptions and esfimates can change in future periods. Thete can be no assurance that our estimates and assumptions made for purposes of
our goodwill and identifiable intangible asset impaimment testing will prove to be accurate predictions of the future, If our assumptions regarding business
plans or anticipated growth rates and/or margins are not achieved, or there is a rise in Interest rates, we may be required to record goodwill and/or identifiable
intangible asset impaimment charges in future periods, whether in connecticn with our next annual impairment testing on October 1, 2016 or earlier, i an
indicator of an impairment is present prior to the quarter in which the annual goodwill impairment test is to be performed, It is not possible at this time to
determine if any such additional impairment charge would result or, if it does, whether such a charge would be material to our results of operations.

We did not record an impairment of our gocdwill or identifiable intangible assets for the year ended December31, 2015.

Amounts included in our backlog may nof result in actual revenues or transiate into profits. Many contracts are subject to cancellation or suspension on
short notice at the diseretion of the client, and the confracts in our backlog are subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as
adjustments to the costs relating to the contract. We have historically experienced variances in the components of backlog related to project delays or
cancellations resulting from weather conditions, external market factors and ecopomic factors beyond our control, and we may experience more delays or
cancellations in the future. The risk of contracts in backlog being cancelled or suspended generally increases during periods of widespread slowdowns.
Accordingly, there is no asswrance that backlog will actually be realized, If our backlog fails ta materinlize, we could experience a reduction in revenues and
a decline in profitability, which could result in a deterioration of cur financial position and liquidity.

We account for the majority of our construction profects using the percenlage-of-completion method of accounting; therefore, variations of actual results
from our assumptions may reduce owr profitability. We recognize revenues on construction contracts using the percentage-oficompletion method of
accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 603-35, “Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts”. See Applicaticn of Critical
Accounting Policies in Item 7. Management's Discussion and Anulysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Under the petcentage-of-
completion method of accounting, we record revenue as work on the contract progresses, The cumulative amount of revenues tecorded on n contract at a
specified point in time is that percentage of total estimated revenues that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs, Accordingly, contract revenues
and total cost estimates are reviewed and revised as the work progresses. Adjustments are reflected in contract revenues in the period when such estimates are
revised, Estimates are based on management’s reasonzble assumptions and experience, but are only estimates. Variations of actual results from assumptions
on an unusually large project or on a number of average size projects could be material, We are also required to immediately recognize the fill amount of the
cstimated loss on a contract when estimates indicate such a loss, Such adjustments and accrued losses could result in reduced profitability, which could
negatively impact our cash flow from operaticns.

The loss of one or a few customers could have an adverse effect on us. A few clients have in the past and may in the future account for a significant portion
of our revenues in any one year or over a period of several consecutive years. Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our significant
clients, our clients may unilaterally reduce, fail to renew or terminate
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their contracts with us at any time, A loss of business fom a significant client could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, and
results of operations.,

We are increasingly dependent on sophisticated information technology and infrastructure. We rely on information technology systems and hardware and
third party software to run critical accounting, project management and fnancial information systems. If software vendors decide to discontinne further
development, integration or long-term sofiware maintenance support for our information systems, or there is any system or hardware intenuption, deluy,
breach of security, loss of data, we may need to migrate some or all of our accounting, project management and financial information to other systems. In
addition, data privacy or security breaches may pose a risk that data, including intellectual property or personal information, may be exposed to unauthorized
persons or the public. These disuptions or breaches could result in financial, legal, business ot reputaticnal harm te us.

Our failure to comply with anti-bribery statutes such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK, Bribery Act of 2010 could result in fines, criminal
penalties and other sanctions that cotld have an adverse gffect o our business. The U.S, Foreign Comupt Practices Act {the “FCPA”), the UK. Bribery Act
(the “Bribery Act™) and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making impreper payments
to foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We conduct a modest amount of business in a few countries that have experienced
corruption to some degree. If we were found to be liable for violations under the FCPA, the Bribery Act or similar anti-bribery laws, either due to our own acts
or omissions or due to the acts or omissions of others, we could incur substantial legal expense and suffer civil and criminal penalties or other sanctions,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as ourreputation.

Certain provisions of our corporate governance documents could make an acquisition of us, oi @ substantial interest In us, more difficult. The following
pravisions of cur certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as ¢urrently in effect, as well as Delaware law, could discourage potential proposals to acquire us,
dolay or prevent & change in control of us, or limit the price that investors may be willing to pay in the future for sharcs of our common stock:

« ourcertificate of incorporation permits our board of directors to issue “blank check™ preferred stock and to adopt amendments to curbylaws;

+ our bylaws contain restrictions regarding the right of our stockhalders to nominate directors and to submit propesals to be considered at stockholder
meetings;

« our certificate of incorparation and bylaws limit the right of our stockholders to call a special meeting of stockhelders and to act by wiitten consent;
and

« we are subject to provisions of Delaware law, which prohibit us from engaging in any of a broad range of business transactions with an “interested
stockholder” for a period of three years following the date such stockholder becomes classified asan interested stockholder.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2, PROPERTIES

Our operations are conducted primarily in leased properties. The following table lists facilities over 50,000 square feet, both leased and owned, and
identifies the business segment that is the principal user of each such facility.

Approximate Lease Expiration Date,
Square Feet Unless Owned
1168 Fesler Street : e R
El Cajon, Califomia {b) _ o 7 . 67,560 8/31/2020
22302 Hathaway Avenue
Ha_yward, Califom_ia () _ 105,000 7/31/2021
* 4462 Corporate Centei Drive T B i A T
Los Alamitos, California (8) . AT ' - R o .. 57,863 CeT ,12.’3_1'/2019
18111 South Santa Fe Avenue
Ranche Dominguez, Califomia (d) 66,246 12/31/2016
940 Remillard Court o ) : ) : ' D .
San Jose, Califomia (c) : : L i o 119,560 S0 042024
5101 York Street
Denver, Colorado () 77,553 2/28/2019
345 Sheridan Boulevard ) : T : S R . T
Lakewood, Colorado (a) L 63,000 o : Owned
3100 Woodcreek Drive
Downers Grove, Itlinois (a) 56,551 73172017
2219 Contractors Drive ' ' = - . g
- Fort Wayne, Indiana (b) . ST - 175,000 - P 7312023
7614 and 7720 Opportunity Drive
Fort Wayne, Indif:m_a () _ _ 144,695 10/31/2018
2655 Garfield Avenue T L o , - e B
* Highland, Irdiana (a) T o . . : 51765 S T6I30/2019
4150 Highway 30
St. Gabriel, Louisiana (d) 90,000 Owned
1750 Swisco Road T : S R S
Sulphur; Louisiana (d} - o S _ o ! . ) 112,000 : ; Owned
11F-01 and 111-21 t4th Avenue
College Point, New York (a) 73,013 2/28/2024
70 Schmitt Boulevard - . . ' o ) : ’ o : ST
" Famiingdale, New Yotk {b) o . ' ' ' - 76,380 . .T31/2026
2102 Tobacco Road
Purham, North Carolina (b) 55,944 373172016
2900’Nawpa_\rk Drive - . T i . o . o o
Norton, Ohio.(b) - o ’ i e o i . 91,831 o 117172017
1800 Markley Street
Noiristown, Pennsylvania (¢) 93,000 9/30/2021
- 227T1ndeCc’)_ui’( ) ! . ) ) . . e . . ’ B . B E
. Aiken, South Carolina () - R o - ' Co B8000 -0 T 9f30/2016
6045 Cast Shelby Drive
Memphis, Tennessec (c) 53,618 4/30/2018
937 Pine Street : _ L _ R . T '
Beaument, Texas (d) ~ .. -~ . | : - X . o o 78962 o ‘Owied
895 North Main Street
Beaumont, Texas {d} ) 75,000 Owned
410 Flato Road z . : : ' o : : :
Corpus Christi, Texas {d) . ' S 1 1) I Owned
5550 Airline Drive and 25 Tidwell Road
Houston, Texas (b) 97.936 12/31/2019
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Approximate Lense Expiration Date,
Square Feet Unless Owned
12415 Highway 225 . B
La Potte, Texas{d) S © 78,000 - - Owned
2455 West 1500 South
Salt Lake City, Utah (a) 58,33¢% 3/31/2018

We believe that our property, plent and equipment are well maintzined, in good operating condition and suitable for the purposes for which they are used.

See Nate 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data for additional information regarding lease costs. We utilize substantially all of our leased or owned Fcilities and believe there will be no
difficulty either in negotiating the renewal of our real property leases as they expire orin finding alternative space, if necessary.

{a} Principally used by a company engaged in the “United Stutes electrical construction and facilities services’ segment.
(b} Principally used by a company engaged in the “United States mechanical construction and facilities services™ segment.
(¢) Principally used by a company engaged in the “United States building services” segment.

(d) Principally used by a company engaged in the “United States industrial services” segment.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

One of our subsidiaries, USM, Inc. (*USM™), doing business in California provides, among other things, janitorial services to its customers by having those
services performed by independent janitorial companies, USM and one of its customers, which owns retail stores (the *Customer”), were co-defendants in a
federal class action lawsuit brought by six empleyees of USM’s California janitorial subcontractors. The action captioned Federico Vilchiz Vasquez, Jesus
Vilchiz Vasquez, Francisco Domingo Claudie, for themselves and all others similarly situated vs. USM, Inc. dba USM Services, Inc,, a Pennsylvania
Corperation, et al,, was commenced on September 5, 2013 in a Superior Court of California and was removed by USM on November 22, 2013 to the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California. The employees ulleged in their complaint, among other things, that USM and the Customer,
during a period that began before our acquisition of USM, viclated a Califernia statute that prohibits USM from enteting into a contract with a janitotial
subcontractor when it knew ot should have known that the contract did not include funds sufficient to allow the janitorial subcontractor to comply with all
local, state and federal laws or regulations goveming the labor or services to be provided. The employees asserted that the amounts USM paid te its janitorial
subcontractors were insufficient to allow those janitorial subcontractors to meet their obligations regarding, among other things, wages due for all hours their
employees worked, minimum wages, overtime pay end meal and rest breaks. These employees sought to represent not only themselves, but also all other
individuals who provided janitorial services at the Custemer's stores in Califomia during the relevant four-year time period, We do not believe USM or the
Customer violated the California statute or that the samployees could have brought the action as a class action on behalf of other employees of janitorial
companies with whom USM subcontracted for the provision of janitorial services to the Customer, The plaintiffs sought a declaratory judgment that USM
had viclated the California statute, monetary damages, including all unpaid wages and interest thereon, restitution for unpaid wages, and an award of
attorneys’ fees and costs.

USM and its Customer have settled the claims asserted in the class action pursuant to the terms of a consent decree approved by the federal judge in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of California on February 16, 2016, which followed a determination by the Court of the consent dectee’s
faimess, adequacy and reasonableness, Under the terms of the consent decree, USM will (a) pay an aggregate of $1.0 million (i) for monetary relief to the
members of the class, (ii) for awards to the class representative plaintiffs, {iii) for California Labor Code Private Attomey General Act payments to the State of
California for an immaterial amount, and {iv) for all costs ot notice and administtation of the claims process, (b) pay to counsel for the class an aggregate of
$1.3 millien, of which $0.2 million has been allocated for their reimbursable costs and Htigation expenses and $1.1 million has been allocated for attornoys’
fees, and {c) monitor USM’s California subcontractors providing janitorial services te its Customer in accordance with agreed upon procedures designed
principally to ensure janitorial employees of those subcontractors are paid no less than minimum wage.

We are involved in sevetal other proceedings in which damages and claims have been asserted against us. Other potential claims may exist that have not
yet been asserted against us. We believe that we have a number of valid defenses to such procecdings and claims and intend to vigorously defend ourselves.
We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse offect on our finaneial position, results of opetations or liquidity. Litigation is subject to
many uncertainties and the outcome of litigation is not predictable with assurance. It is possible that some litigation matters for which reserves have not been
established could be decided unfavorably to us, and that any such unfavorable decisions could have a material advetse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or liquidity. See Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencics of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for a discussion regarding certain other legal proceedings,

ITEM 4, MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Information concemning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1563(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Strest Reform and
Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.104) is included in Exhibit 95 to this Form 10-K,
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EXECUTLIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Anthony J. Guzzi, Age 51; President since October 2004 and Chief Executive Officer since January 2011, From Cctober 2004 to January 2011, Mr. Guzzi
served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company. From August 2001, until he joined the Company, Mr. Guzzi served as President of the Noth American
Distribution and ARermarket Division of Camier Corporation (“Canier™). Camier is a manufacturer and distributor of commercial and residential HVAC and
refiigeration systems and equipment and a provider of after-market services and components ofits own products and those of other manufacturers in both the
HVAC and refrigeration industries. Mr. Guzzi is alse a member of our Board of Directors.

Sheldon T. Cammaler, Age 76; Vice Chairman since January 2016. From September 1987 to January 2016, Mr. Cammaker was Executive Vice President
and General Counsel of the Company, and from May 1997 to January 2016, Mr. Camnaker was alse Secretary of the Company. Prior to September 1987,
Mr. Cammaker was a senior partner of the New York City law firm of Botein, Hays & Sklar,

R. Kevin Matz, Age 57; Exccutive Vico President-Shared Services of the Company since December 2007 and Senior Vice President-Shared Services from
Tune 2003 to December 2007. From Aprl 1996 to June 2003, Mr. Maiz served s Vice President and Treasurer of the Company and Staff Vice President-
Financial Services ofthe Corpany from March 1993 to April 1996.

Mark A. Pompa, Age 51; Fxecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since April 2006. From June 2003 to April 2006,
M, Pempa was Senior Vice President-Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, and fiom June 2003 to January 2007, Mr. Pompa was alse Trcasurer of the
Company. From September 1994 to June 2003, Mr. Pompa was Vice President and Controller of the Company.

Maxine L. Mauricio, Age 44; Seniot Vice President, General Counsel and Seerctary of the Company since January 2016, From January 2012 to December
2015, Ms. Mauricio was Vice President and Deputy General Counsel of the Company, and from May 2002 to December 2011, she served as Assistant General
Counsel of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Mauricio was an associate at Ropes & Gray LLP.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
Market Information. Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “EME”.

The following table sets forth high and low sales pricss for our common stock for the perinds indicated as reported by the New York Stock Exchange:

2015 High Low
First Quatfer . - ' oo $ 4720 $. 3983
Second Quarter $ 48.84 3§ 43.74
Third Qurarter $ 4BR9. 3 4342
Fourth Quarter b 5237 % 42.85
2014 _ High Low
First Quarter ) ’ ' $ 47817 % 4012
Second Quarter 3 48.00 § 43.41
Third Quarter '$ 4604 $ . 3996
Fourth Quarter 3 4587 % 38.68

Holders. As of Febmary 22, 20186, there were approximately 224 stockholders of record and, as of that date, we estimate there were approximately 33,305
beneficial owners holding our common stock in nominee or “street” name.

Dividends. We have paid quarterly dividends since October 25, 2011, We expect that quarterly dividends will be paid in the foreseeabls future. Pror to
October 25, 2011, no cash dividends had been paid on the Company’s commen stock. We currently pay a regular dividend of $0.08 per share, Our 2013
Credit Agreement places limitations on the payment of dividends on our common stock. However, we do not believe that the terms of such agreement
currently matetially limit our ability to pay a quarterly dividend ¢f$0.08 per share for the foteseeable future,

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table sunumarizes, as of December 31, 2015, certain information
regarding equity compensation plans that were approved by stockholders and equity compensation plans that were not approved by stockholders. The
information in the table and in the notes therete has been adjusted for stock splits.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
A B C

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to be Weighted Average Exercise Future Issuance under Equity
Issued upon Exercise of Price of Qutstanding Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Options, Warrants and (Excluding Sceurities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights Reflected in Column A)
E§1|i1ycdrﬁpcﬁsqlioh Plins Approved by Secirity Hdlc-lcrk. S B oLp0s613 g e o 74w ©1,849266 @
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders o — — —
Total - . SRR S D UL00SE13T g 0 T T g ST 1,349,266

(1} [ncluded within this amount are 698,887 restricted stock units awarded fo our non-employee directors and employees. The weighted average exercise price would have been
$23.42 had the weighted average exercise price caleulation excluded such vesiricted stock nits.

{2) Represents shares of our common stock available for fiture issuance under our 2010 Incenfive Plan (the "2010 Flan"), which may be issuable in respect of options and/or
stock appreciation rights granted under the 2010 Plan and/or may also be issued pursuant o the award of restricted stock, unrestricted stock and/or awards that are valued in
whale or in part by reference to, or are otherwise based on the fair market value of, cur common stock,
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Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affilinted Purchasers
The following table summatizes repurchases of our common stock made during the quarter ended December 31,2015 by us:

Maximum Nunmber

Total Number of (or Approximate Dallar Value}
Shares Purchased as Part of Shares That May Yet be
Tatal Number of Average Price of Publicly Announced Purchased Under
Period Shares Purchased(!} Paid Per Share Plans or Programs the Plan or Prograis

October 1,2015t0 . - _ C _ TR ST
October31,2013 - - ) ) 93,612 .~ ’ $43.76 ) © 93,612 S 7 $339,396,205
November [, 2015 to

Nuv_ember30, 2015 524,493 $49.49 524,493 $313,424,535
December }, 2015 to _ _ : ) - o : : e
December 31,2015~ ° 1,207,919 o $49.05 : 1207919 - - S $254,139.815

(I} On September 26, 201 1, our Board of Direetors authorized us to repurchase up to $100.0 million of our outstonding commen stock, On December 5, 20 13, October 23, 2014
and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to an additional $100.0 million, $250.0 miltion and $200.6 millicn of cur owistanding comumon
stock, respectively. As of Decerber 31, 2013, there reimained available authorization for us fo repurchase aparoximately $254.1 million of cur shares, No shares have been
repurchased since the programs have been announced ather than pursuant to these publicly announced programs. Repurchases may be made from time to time as permitied by
securities laws and other legal requirements,
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from our zudited financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements, the related notes thersto and the report of our independent registered public accounting firm thereon included elsewhers in this and our

previously filed annual repotts on Form 10-K.

Sce Note 3 - Acquisitions of Businesses and Note 4 - Disposition of Assets of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data for & discussion regarding acquisitions and dispositions. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction
operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued
opetations. In addition, the results of operations for 2011 reflect discontinued operations accounting due to the disposition in August 2011 of our Canadian

subsidiary,

Income Statement Data
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues

Gross profit

Impairment Toss on'identifiable intangible assets
Gain on sale ofbuilding

Operating income ~ 7 o e
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc.

Basic earnings (foss) per common share;
From continuing operations - -
From discontinued operations

Diluted earnings {loss} per common share:
From continuing operations -
From discountinued operations

Balance Sheet Data
(In thousands)

Equity ( ~

Total assets

Goodwill - S

Borrowings under revolving credit facility

Term loan, including suirent maturities )
Other long-term debt, including current maturities

Cipital lease obligations, including curfent maturities

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

$ 6718726 5 6424965 $ 6333527 ' $ 6,195494 S 5450393
$ 944479 § 907246 $ 821,646 $ 803979 S 724,733
oo =8 LATLS S = 8 g i3ims
$ — 5 149§ — 3 — § -
$ 287,082 § 289878 § - 240350 § . 260303 § 214,119 .

§ 172286 § 168664 § 123792 S 146584 § 130826
Ty 4 s 26187 2a9 8T 233 % T 186
©.00) (0.07) 0.34) ©0.12} 0.10

$ 2748 . 2548 185§ 220§ 196"
§ 272 % 259 ' § 216§ 228 5. 182
(0.00) (0.07) (0.34) 0.12) 0.09

272§ 252§ 182. 3 216§ - 191

As of December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

$ 1480056 S 1420387 S 1479626 $ 1357179 § 1245131
$ 3,546470 $ 3388967 § 3465915 § 3107070 $ 3014076
$. 843,170 $ 834,102 $. 834825 §- 566588 % 566,805
3 — % — 8 — § 150,000 § 150,000
©$ 3150000 80 332500 § 350000 § - — §
$ 44§ 57 % 1n s 18 8 —
S 3869 8 2,883 § 4652 8 5881 % 4,857

(1)  During 2015, we repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of our common stock for approximately $112.3 miltion. Since the inception of the repurchase programs in
2011 through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9,9 million shares of our comman stock for approximately $395.9 million. ‘The repurchase of shares results in a
reduction of cur equity. We have paid quartetly dividends since October 25, 2011, We expest that quarterly dividends will be paid in the foresesabls future, Prior to October
25, 2011, tio cash dividends had been paid on the Company's cormmon stock, We currently pay a regular quarterty dividend of $0.08 per share.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESUL'TS OF OPIRATIONS

We are one of the largest electrical and mechanical construction and facilities services firms in the United States, In addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services. Our services are provided to a broad range of commercial, industrial, utility and institutional customers through
approximaiely 70 operating subsidiaries and joint venture entities. OQur offices are located in the United States and the United Kingdom.

Operafing Segmenls

We have the following reportable segments which provide services associated with the design, integration, installation, start-up, operation and
maintenance of various systems: (a) United States electrical construction and facilities services (involving systems for zlectrical power transmission and
distiibution; premises electrical and lighting systems; low-voltage systems, such as fite alarm, security and process control; voice and data communication;
roadway and transit lighting; and fiber optic lines); (b) United States mechanical construction and facilities services (involving systems for heating,
ventilation, air conditioning, refiigeration and clean-room process ventilation; fire protection; plumbing, process and high-purity piping; controls and
filtration; water and wastewater treatment; eentral plant heating and cooling; cranes and rigging; millwrighting; and steel fabrication, erection and welding);
{¢) United States building services; (d) United States industrial services: and (e) United Kingdom building services, The “United States building services™ and
“United Kingdom building services” segments principally consist of those operations which provide a portfolio of services needed to support the opertion
and maintenance of customers’ facilitics, including commercial and government sito-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance and services,
including reception, security and catering services; outage services to utilities and industrie] plants, military base operations support services; mobile
maintenance and services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, lot sweeping and snow remaval; facilities management; vendor management; call
center services; instaliation and support for building systems; program development, management and maintenance for energy systems; technical consulting
and diagnostic services; infrastiucture and building projects for federal, state and local govemmental agencies and bodies; and small modification and
retrofit projects, which services are not generally related to customers’ construction programs. The segment “United States industrial services” principally
consists of those operations which provide industrial maintenance and sarvices, including those for refineries ard petrochemical plants, including on-site
repairs, maintenance and service of heat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping; design, manufacturing, repair and hydre blast cleaning of shell and tube heat
exchangets and related equipment; refinery tumaround planning and engineeting services; specialty welding services; everhaul and maintenance of critical
process units in refineties and petrechemical plants; and specialty technical services for refineries and potrochemical plants.

We acquired three companies in 2015, each for an immatetial amount. Two of the companies acquired primarily provide mechanical coustruction services,
and their results of operations have been included in our United Stales mechanical construction and facilities services segment. The results ol operations for
the other company acquired have been included in our United States building services segment.

We completed the acquisition of RepeonStrickland, Inc. (“RSI”) during 2013, and its results have been included in our United States industrial services
segment since its acquisition, In addition, we completed two other acquisitions during 2013, and their results have been included in our United States
mechanical construction and facilities services segment. These acquired businesses expanded our service capabilities into new technical areas.
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2015 versus 2014
Overview

The following table presents selected financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except percentages and per share
data):

_ 2015 2014

Revenues o ' ' _ ' T $ 6718726 % . 6,424,965

Revenues increase from prior year _ 4.6% 1.4%
Restricturing expensés - .~ .~ - ' o : $ SRR Y JE 1,168
Impairment loss on identifiable intangibie assets $ — § 1,471
Gain on sals of building ' $ — § 11,749
Operating income $ 287,082 % 289,878
,'Operatiqg'mco'r'ne as a percentage of reveniucs _ : - o S 43% C 45%
Income from continuing operations o $ 172,567  § 178,117
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Ing. . L : D A 172,286 % 168,664
Diluted eamings per common share from continuing operations $ 272§ 2.59

The results of our operations for 2015 set new Company records in terms of revenucs and diluted eamings por share from continuing operations. Our 2015
results included increased revenues ftom all of our reportable segments. In addition, excluding the impact of the $11.7 million gain on the sale of a building
and the 31.5 million impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets in 2014, cur operating income {operating income as a percentage of revenues)
increased in 2015 compared to 2014, Ouroverall 2015 operating income and operating margin were favorably impacted by improved operating performance
within: (a) our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, partially attributable to revennes of $12.1 million recognized as a result
of the settlement of a claim on an institutional project located in the southeastem United States, and (b) our United States building services segment, as a
result of increased profitability within this segment’s mobile mechanical and commercial site-based services nperations,

Our opemting results for 2015 were negatively impacted by: (a) our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment, (b) our United
States industrial services segment and (c) our United Kingdor building services segment, Decreases in both operating income and operating margin within
our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment were partially attributable to approximately $10.1 million of losses incurred on
several transportation projects. Decreases in both operating income and operating margin within our United States industrial services segment were primarily
due to: (a) the negative impact of a nationwide strike by union employees of certain major oil refineries in the first hatf of 2015, which led to both deferrals
and losses of cettain turnaround projects that generate relatively high gross profit margins, and (b} a decrease in the billing mtes and related pross profit
margins within our industiial shop services opetations due te competitive market cenditions resulting from decreased demand for new heat exchangers as a
result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a curiailment in capital spending.

Two of the companies acquired in 2015, which are reported in our United States mechanical construetion and facilities services segment, generated
incremental revenues of §12.5 million and less than $0.1 million of operating income, net of $0.3 million of amortization expense associated with
identifiable intangible assets. The results of operations for the third company acquired in 2015, which are reported in our United States building services
segment, werg de minimis.

Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operntions

Revenues

As described in more detail below, revenues for 2015 were $6.7 billion compared to $6.4 billion for 2014, The increase in revenues for 2015 was primarily
attributable to: (a) increased revenes from both of our domestic construction segments, {b) increasod demand for our industrial field services within our
United States industrial services segment and (¢) increased revenues from our mobile mechanical services operations within our United States building
servicos scgment. Revenues increased within our United States industrial services segment despite a nationwide strike by union employees of certain major
oil refineries that negatively impacted the first half of2015.
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The following table presents our revenues for each of our operating segments and the approximate percentages that cach segment’s revenues were of total
revenues for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

% of % aof
2015 Tuotal 2014 Total
Revenues from unrelated entities:

. United States clectrical construction and facilities services . - $ . 1367342 . 20% § 1,311,988 20%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 2,312,763 34% 2,201,212 34%
- ‘Uniled States building services - I ' L3925 6% - 1,721,341 2%
United States industrial services 022,085 14% 839,980 13%
' Totd] United Stittes operations ' T 6,341,249 9a% . 60320 - 95%
United Kingdom building services 377477 6% 350444 5%
Total worldwide oprations . o : o $ 6718726 100% $ 6424965  100%

Revenues of our United States clectrical construction and facilities services segment were $1,367.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
comparad to revenues of $1,312.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increass in revenues was primarily attributable to an increase in
revenues from conumercial, healthcare and manufacturing construction projects, partially offset by a decrease in revenues from institutional construction
projects.

Our United States mechanical construction and facilitics services segment revenues for the year ended December 31,2015 were $2,312.8 million, a $111.6
million increase compared to revenues of $2,201.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in revenues was primarily attributable to an
increase in revenues frem commercial and institutional construction projects, pattially offset by a decline in revenues from manufacturing, waker and
wastewater 2nd transportation construction projects. The results for the year endod December 31, 2015 included $12.5 million of tevenucs generated by
compenies acquired in 2015.

Revenues of our United States building services segment were $1,739.3 million and §1,721.3 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase in
revetiues was primarily attributzhle to increased revenues from: () our mobile mechanical services operations, in part due to significant activity in the
Califomia and New England regions and increased project and retrofit activitics, and (b} our energy services operations. These increases were partially offset
by decreased revenues from: (a) our government site-based services operations as a result of the completion in 2014 of two large long-term site-based joint
venture projects not renewed pursuant to rebid, (b) our commercial site-based services operations as a result of: (i) a decline in add-on project activities, {ii) a
decrease in revenues from its snow removal activities, as a result of less snowfall in geographical areas in which many of our contracts are based on a per snow
event basis, and (iif) a decrease in revenues from suppliet management contracts.

Revenues of our United States industrial services sogment for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased by $82.1 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014, The increase in revenues was primarily due to large capital and maintenance project activity within our industrial field ssrvices
operations. Revenues increased within this segment despite a nationwide strike by union emplayees of certain major oil refineries that negatively impacted
the ficst halfof 2015,

Our United Kingdom building services segment revenues were $377.5 million in 2015 cempared to $350.4 million in 2014, The increase in revenues was
due to an increase in activity in the commercial market attributable to several new contract awards as well as increased work under existing contracts. The
increase in revenues was partially offset by a decrease of $29.2 million relating to the effect of unfavorable exchange 1ates for the British pound versus the
United States dellar,
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Backlog

The follewing table presents our operating segment backlog from untelated entities and their respective percentages of total backlog (in thousands, except
for percentages):

Ye of % of
December 31, 2015 Total December 31, 2014 Total
Backlog:

United States electtical construction and facilities services % 1,145,791 30% % 1,176,372 2%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 1,683,501 45% 1,473,018 41%
United States building setvices. - I _ h o 762,196 20% - 732,960 20%
United States industrial services 54,578 1% 101,154 3%
Total United States operations o ' - : 3,646,066 _937% © 3,483,504 96%
United Kingdom building services 125,097 3% 150,084 4%
 Total worldwide operations T 8 3771163 100% $ 3,633,388 100%

Our backlog at December 31, 2015 was $3.77 billion compared 1o $3.63 billien at December 31, 2014. This increase in backlog was primarily attributable
to an increase in backlog from our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment and our United States building services segment,
partially offset by lower backlog from cur other reportable segments. Backiog increases with awards of new contracts and deereases as we perform work on
existing contracts. Backlog is not a tenm recognized under United States generally accepted accounting principles; however, it is a common measurement
used in our industry, We include a project within cur backlog at such time as a contract is awarded and agreement on contract terms has been reached.
Backlog includes unrecognized revenues to be realized from uncompleted construction contracts plus unrecognized revenues expected to be realized over
the remaining term of services contracts. However, we do not include in backlog contracts for which we are paid on a time and material basis and a fixed
amount cannot be determined, and if the remaining term of a services contract exceeds 12 months, the unrecognized revenues attributable to such contract
included in backlog are limited to only the next 12 menths of revenues provided for in the contract award. Our backlog also includes amounts related to
services contracts for which a fixed price contract value is not assigned when a reasonable eostimate of total revenues can be made from budgeted amounts
agreed to with our customer. Our backlog is comprised of: (&) original contract amounts, (b) change orders for which we have received written confirmations
from our customets, (¢) pending change orders for which we expect to receive confimmations in the ordinary course of business and (d) claim amounts that we
have made against customers for whicl we have determined we have a legal basis under existing contractual arrangements and as to which we consider
recovery to be probable. Such claim amounts were immalerial for all periods presented. Our backlog does not include anticipated revenues from
unconsolidated joint ventures or variable interest entities and anticipated revenues from pass-through costs on contracts for which we are acting in the
capacity of an agent and which are reported on the net basis. We believe our backlog is firm, although many contracts are subject to cancellation at the
election of our customers. Historically, cancellations have not had a material adverse effect on us,

Cost of sales and Gross profit

The following table presents cost of sales, gross profit (revenues less cost of sales), and gross profit margin (gross profit as a percentage of revenues) for the
years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

2015 2014
Cost of sales ' S R T s $ 5774247 5 5,517,719
Gross profit _ $ 944470 % 907,246
Grosspi‘oﬁtma_rgin . —_— o ) e - :14:1-% . _-14.1%.

Our gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $944.5 million, a $37.2 million increase compared to the gross profit of $907.2 millien for the
year ended December 31, 201 4. Our gross profit margin was 14.1% for both 2015 and 2014. Favorable variances in both gross profit and gross profit margin
within: (a) our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, which included revenues of $12.1 million recognized ns a result of the
scttlement of a claim on an institutional project located in the southeastern United States, and (b) our United States building services segment were partially
offset by decreases in gross profit and gross prefit margin within our United Kingdom building services and our United States electrical construction and
facilities services segment. Gross profit within our United States industrial services segment slightly increased; however, gross margin within this segment
declined due to a decrease in the billing rates and related gross profit margins within our industrial shop services operations due to compstitive market
conditions resulting from decreased demand for new heat exchangers as a result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a curtailment in capital spending,
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Selling, general and adininisirative expenses

The foflowing table presents selling, general and administrative expenses and SG&A margin (selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenues) for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

2015 2014

Selling, gencral and admisistrative xpenses _ o . _ 5 656,573 8 626,478
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage ofrevenues 9.8% 9.8%

Our selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $656.6 million, a $30.1 million increase compared to selling,
goneral and administrative expenses of $626.5 million for the year ended December 31, 20 t4, Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 9.8% for both 2015 and 2014, The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was due to higher employee related costs such as
incentive compensation, salaries and medical insurance costs, as well as certain other costs including computer hardware and software expenses, partially
offset by a decrease in legal costs, [ncreased incentive compensation was principally due to higher anaual opetating results within certain opetations than in
2014, which resulted in increased accmals for their incentive compensation plans, The increase in selaries was attributable to an increase in headcount,
commensurate with an increase in revenues, as well as cost of living adjustments and merit pay increases.

Restructuring expenses

Restructuring sxpenses were $0.8 million and $1.2 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 2013 restructuring expenses included $0.9 million of
employee severance obligations and the reversal of $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2014 restructuring expenses included
$0.6 million of employee severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
balance of restructuring related obligations yet to be paid was $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively. The majority of obligations outstanding as of
December 31, 2014 was paid during 2015. The obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2015 will be paid during the first halfof2016.

Gain on sale of building

On July 22, 2014, we sold a building and land owned by one of our subsidiaries reported in the United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment. We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 miflion on this transaction in the third quarter 0f 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
on sale ofbuilding” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Impaivment loss on goodwill and tdentifiable intangible assets

No impaimment of our identifiable intangible asscts was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2015, In conjunction with our 2014 annual
impairment test on Qctober 1, we recoghized a $1.5 million non-cash impairment charge related to subsidiary trde names within the United States
mechanical construction and Gicilities services segment and thé United States building services segment. The 2014 impaimment primarily resulted from lower
forecasted revenues from two companies within these segments. Additionally, no impairment of our goodwill was recognized for the years ended December
31,2015 and 2014,
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Operating income (loss)

The following table presents by segment our operating income (loss) and cach segment’s operating income {loss) as a percentage of such segment’s
revenues fom unrelated entities for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 {in thousands, except for percentages):

% of % of
Segment Segment
2015 Revenues 2014 Revenues
Operating income (loss):
United States electrical constriction and facilities services . $ 82,225 - 60%  § 90,873 o 69%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 138,688 6.0% 114418 5.2%
United States building services - o o 70,532 ) 1% ' 65_,_83"5 T 3..8"_/:_'. .
United States industrial services 50,469 _ 6.1% 63,159 7.5%
Total United States operations ™~~~ = . o 47914 s5% © 334335 . 55%
United Kingdom building services _ 11,634 3.1% 15,011 4.3%
Corporate administration - -~~~ . s (71,642 . — ' "_(6-8-,57'8_)_. R
Restructuring expenses (824) — (1,168} —
Impairment loss on identifiable intariglble asseis : - — . = o ,47 13- —
Gain on sale of building o — —_ 11,749 —
© Totalworldwideopertions . o o 287082 0 43% . 289878 . . 45%
Other corporate items: _
Interest expense . . © o e o ' ) 8,932) e T 0,075
Interest ir_lcome 673 842
: ‘Inc_ome froin bohtinui'lig:bp'erﬂt'ions before iht}omf_: fax'f;s oo $ . 278,823 : S $ 7 281,645

As described in wore detail below, we had operating income of $287.1 million for 2015 compared to operating income of $289.9 million for 2014.
Operating margin was 4.3% and 4.5% for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Included within operating income for 2014 was an $11.7 miltion gain on the sale of' &
building, resulting in a 0.2% impact on cur consclidated operating margin for 2014,

Operating income of our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $82.2 million
compared o operating income of $90.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, The decrease in operating income for the year ended December 3 1,
2015 was due to a decrease in gross profit from transportation, institutional and manufacturing construction projects and an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses due to higher employee related costs such as incentive compensation and salaries. The decrease in gross profit from transportation
construction projects included approximately $10.1 million of losses incurred on several projects due to productivity issues and delays. The increase in
incentive compensation was principally due to higher annual operating results within certain operations then in 2014, which resulted in increased accruals
for certain of our incentive compensation plans. The decrease in operating income was partially offset by an increase in gross profit from: (a) commercial
construction projects, partially due to profits recognized on contracts in the Mid-Atlantic region and (b) healthcare construction projects, The decrease in
operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was attributable to a decrease in gross profit margin, partially as a result of losses recorded on
transportation projects, as well as an increase in the ratio of selling, general and administrative expenses Lo revenues resulting from an increase in incentive
compensation due to higher annual operating results within certain operations than in 2014,

Our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment operating income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $128.7 million, a
$24.3 million increase compared to operating income of $114.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Operating income was favorably impacted by
an increase in gross profit from institutional, commercial and manufacturing construction projects, partially offset by an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses. The results for 2015 included revenues of $12.1 million recognized as a result of the settlement of a claim on an institutional projeat
located in the southeastern United States. The results for2014 included the receipt of $3.0 million from former shareholders of a company we had acquired ag
4 result of the settlement of a ¢laim by us under the acquisition agreement; this payment has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The increase in sclling, general and administative expenscs was primarily the result of an increase in incentive
compensation due to higher annual operating results than in 2014, which resulted in increased aceruals for certain of our incentive compensation plans.
Companies acquired in 2015 generated operating income of less than $0.1 million, net of amortization expense of $0.3 million attributable to identifable
intangible assets, The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin.
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Operating income of our United States building services segment was $70.5 million and $65.9 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase in
operating income was primarily atributable to improved performance from: (a) our mobile mechanical services operations, partially due to increased
profitability in projects, retrofits, repair services work and service contracts, and (b} our commercial site-based services operations, partially due to a reduction
in legal costs, These increases were pattially offset by a decrease in operating income from: (a) our energy services operations as, in 2014, we benefited from
the successful completion of a large project and {b) our govemment site-based services operations as a result of the completion in 2014 oftwo large long-term
site-hased joint venture projects not renewed pursuant to rebid. The results for the year ended December 31, 2015 included income of approximately §2.7
million, net of associated legal costs, upan the favorable settlement of a claim by us against the former owner of 2 company we had previously acquired

within our commercial site-based services opetations, The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 3 1, 2015 was attributable to an increase
in gross profit margin.

Operating income of our United States industrial services segment for the yeat ended Deceriber 31,2015 decreased by $6.7 million compared to operating
income for the year ended December 31, 2014, The decrease in operating income was primaiily attributable to: (a) a decrease in gross profit from our
industrial shop services operations due to: (i) a decrease [n the billing rates and related gross prefit margins due to competitive market conditions resulting
from decreased demand for new heal exchangers as a result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a cuttailment in capital spending and (ii) the mix of
work, which included fewer repair projects than in 2014, that generate relatively high gross profit margins, (b) the negative impact of a nationwide strike by
union empleyees of certain major oil refineries in the first half of 2015, which led to both deferrals and losses of certain turnaround projects that generate
relatively high gross profit margins, and (¢} an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses due to higher employee related costs such as salaries
and employee benefits, partially as a result of increased headcount. The decrease in operating income was partially offset by large capital and maintenance
project activity within our industrial ficld services operations. The decrease in opetating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was attributable to a
decrease in gross profit margin,

Our United Kingdom building services segment’s operating income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $11.6 million compared to operating
income of $15.0 mitlion for the year ended December 31, 2014. The decrease in operating income and operating margin was primarily attributable to the
impacl of $4.8 million of income recognized in the second quarter of 2014 asa result of 2 reduction in the estimate of certain accrued contract costs that were
1o longer expected to be ineurred. The averall decrease in gross profit in this segment was partially offset by an increase in gross profit from both new
contract awards and increased project activity within the commercial market. This segment recorded a decrease in operating income of $0.9 million relating
to the effect of unfavorable exchange rates for the British pound versus the United States dollar.

Qur corpotate administration operating foss was $71.6 miltion for 2015 compared to $68.6 millicn in 2014, The increase in expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2015 was ptimarily due to an increase in certain employment costs, such as incentive compensaticn and salaries, as well as certain other
expenses including legal costs, The increase in incentive compensation was partially due to higher awards samed than in 2014, which resulted in increased
aceruals for certain of our incentive compensation plans.

Non-operating items

Interest expense was $8.9 million and $9.1 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The decrease in interest expense for 2015 compared €o 2014 was
primarily due to lower borrewings outstanding.

Interest income was $0.7 million and $0.8 millien for 2015 and 2014, respectively, The decrease in: interest income was primarily related to lower invested
cash balances.

For joint ventures that have been accounted for using the consolidation method of accounting, noncontrolling interest represents the ailocation ol eamings
to our joint venture partners who either have a minority-ownorship interest in the joint venture ovare not at risk for the majority of losses of the joint venture.

Our 2015 income Lax provision from continuing operations was $106.3 million compared to $103.5 million for 2014, The actual income tax rates on
income from continuing aperations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, were 38.1% and 37.4%, respectively, The increase in the 2015 income tax provision cempared to 2014 wag predominantly due to certain increases in
the state tax provision attributable to the mix of earnings and the effect of'a change in the United Kingdom statutory tax rate on deferred tax assets.
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Discontinued operations

Due to a historical pattem of losgses in the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foresceable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw fom the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction eperations in the United Kingdom, The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations.

2014 versus 2013
Overview

The following table presents selocted financia! data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except percentages and per share
data):

o _ 2014 213

Revenues L _ o L . o c% 6424965 8 6,333,527

Revenues increase from prior year 1.4% 2.2%
Restructuring-expensas A c $ 1l 68 s 647
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets $ 1,471 % —
Guin on sale 6_fbuiic1ing : : $ . 11,749 g -
Operating income $ 289,878 % 240,350
“Oi_ierating income és-—apéméntag'eofravenués— s ) ' : - ‘ . o R 45% 3.8%
Income from continuing operations 3 178,117 % 150,423
Net i-_r__l_dqme atiributable fo' EMICOR Group, I e L o R 16_'8,6_64 $ L ;1_23,79-2
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations 3 259 % 2,16

Overall revenues, aperating income and operating margin {operating income as a percentage of revenues) increased in 2014 compared te 2013. The
increase in revenues is primarily attributable to higher revenues from our United States industtial services segment and our United Kingdom building services
segment, partially offset by a decline in revenues from our (a) United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, (b) United States
building services segment and (¢) United States electrical construction and facilities services segment, Companies acquired in 2013, which are reported in pur
United States industrial segment and our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, generated incremental revenues of $231.2
million in 2014. This amount reflects acquired companies' revenues in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR ifi the
comparable 2013 period.

The increases in operating income were primarily attributable to improved operating performance within all of our reportable segments, except for our
United States electrical construction and facilities services scgment and cur United States building services segment, Operating income margins increased
within all of our reportable segments, except for cur United States electrical construction and facilities services segment and our United States industrial
services segment, In addition, our operating inceme and operating margin were favorably impacted by an $11.7 million gain on the sale of 2 building.
Companies acquired in 2013, which are reported in our United States industrial segment and our United States mechanical construetion and ficilities services
segment, contributed $9.3 million to operating income, net of $8.2 million of amortization expense associated with identifiable intangible assets, These
amounts reflect acquired companies' operating results in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013
period.
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Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
Revenues

As described in more detail below, revenues for 2014 were $6.4 billion compared to $6.3 billion for 2013, The increase in revenues for 2014 was primarily
attributable to revenues of $231.2 million attributable to companies acquired in 2013 (which reflects acquired companies' revenues in 2014 only for the time

period these entities wete not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period) and higher revenues from our United States industrial services segment and
our United Kingdom building services segment. This increasc was partially offset by lowerrevenues from our other reportable segments.

The following table presents our revenues for each of our operating segments and the approximate percentages that cach segment’s revenues were of total
revenues for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages):

Yo of % of
2014 Total 2013 Total
Revenues from unrelated entities:

Unitéd'S{_nteg.electfical-k:bhstruction andfac_ilitiesservices- o o T $ 131,988 20% $ - 1,34__5,750 -2_I'%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 2,201,212 34% 2,329,834 37%
B _'_',Upited_ States b'.u.ildin-g sﬁr.v'ic.és ’ ' N ) ' _1,721,341 27% - 1,794,978 T “?'.8%_'
United States industrial services 839,980 13% 519413 8%
- Total United States opetdtions . e 6074521 95% 5989975 . 95%
United Kingdom building services 350,444 5% 343,552 5%
Total worldwide operations © LS 6apEs o 100% S 6333927 . 100%

Revenucs of our Uniied States electrical construction and facilities services segment were $1,312.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to revenues of $1,345.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in revenues was primarily attributable to a decrease in
revenues fom institutional and manufacturing construction projects, primarily in the southern Califomia and Washington D.C. markets, as well as a decrease
in revenues from water and wastewater construction projects. These decreases were partially offset by nigher levels of work from transportation, commercial
and healthcare projects.

Cur United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $2,201.2 million, a $128.6
million decrease compared to revenues of $2,329.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, This decrease in revenues was primarily attributable to a
decline in revenues fiom manufacturing construction projects, partially as the result of the completion in 2013 of several farge projects within this market
sector, which were not replaced. This decrease was partially offset by: (a) an increase in revenues from commercial, hospitality and institutional construction
projects and (b) incremental revenues of $19.2 million generated by companies acquired in 2013, This amount reflects acquired companies' revenues in2014
only for the time petiod these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period.

Revenues of our United States building services segment were $1,721.3 million and $1,795.0 miilion in 2014 and 2013, respectively. This decrease in
revenues was primarily attributable to decreased revenues fonu: {a) our commercial site-based services operations, as & result of a decline in revenues from
supplier management contracts, including a large contract that was terminated by agreement of both patties, (b) our energy services operations, due to a
reduction it large project work, and () our govemnment site-based services operations, as & result of the completion of a large long-tern site-based joint
venture project located in the Pacific Northwest not renewed putsuant to rebid. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in revenues fiom our
mobile mechanical service operations, primarily within the California and New England markets,

Revenues of our United States industrial services segment for the year enrded December 31, 2014 increased by $320.6 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013, For the seven months ended July 31, 2014, RSI generated incremental revenues of $212.0 million. This ameunt reflects RST's revenues in
2014 only for the time period RSI was not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period. The increase in revenues was also attributable to an increased
demand for our industrial field services opetations, partially offset by a decrease in revenuss from our industrial shop services operations,

Our United Kingdem building services segment revenues were $350.4 million in 2014 compared to $343,6 million in 2013, This increase in revenues was
due to an increase of $16.9 million relating to the effect of favorable exchange rates for the British pound vetsus the United States dollar and increased
activity within the commereial and healtheare markets, partially offset by decreased activity within the transportation and institutional markets.
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Backlog

The following table presents our operating segment backlog from unrelated entities and their respective percentages of total backlog (in thousands, except
for percentages):

% of % of
December 31, 2014 Total December 31, 2013 Total
Backlog:

United States electrical construction and faeilities services ' $ 1,176,372 32% § 993,919 30%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 1473018 41% 1,325,941 40%
Uniited States building services .~ o O 732960 20% . 761835 . 23%
United States industrial services 101,154 3% 94,187 3%
Total United States operations C T T 343504 96% 3175902 1 95%
United Kingdom building services 150,084 4% 167,804 3%
* Total worldwide operations ' 5 3633588 100% $ 3343706 - 100%

Our backlog at December 31, 2014 was $3.63 billion compared to §3.34 billion at December 31, 2013, This increase in backlog was primanly attributable
to an increase in contracts awarded for work in our: (a} United States electrical construction and facilities services segment and (b) United States mechanical
construction and facilities services segment. Backleg increases with awards of new contracts and decreases as we perform work on existing contracts,

Cost of snles and Gross profit

The following table presents cost of sales, gross profit (revenues less cost of sales), and gross profit margin (gross profit as a pereentage of revenues) for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 {in thousands, except for percentages):

. . . 2014 2013
Costofsales T T T T T T TSS9 8 5 5LL86L -
Gross profit $ 207246 3 82 1-,646
Gross profit margin - - e s St : Ll B ' 141%0 150

Our gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $907.2 millicn, an $85.6 million inerease compared to the gross profit of $821.6 millicn for the
year ended December 31, 20[3. The increase in gross profit was primarily attributable to improved profitability within all of our reportable segments, except
for our United States electrical constiuction and facilities services segment, Gross profit in 2013 within our United States mechanical construction and
facilities services segment was negatively impacted by aggregate losses of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two projects located
in the southeastemn United States. Companies acquired in 2013 included in our United States industrial services segment and our United States mechanical
construction and facilities services segiment centributed an aggregate ¢f $35.9 million to gross profitin 2014. This amount reflects acquired companies' gross
profit in 2014 only for the time period these entitics were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period,

Our gross profit margin was 14.1% and 13.0% for 2014 and 2013, respectively, Gross profit margin for 2014 increased within most of our repertable
segments. Our consolidated gross profit margin benefited from an increase in revenues from our United States industrial services segment, which historically
generates higher gross profit margins than our other reportable segments. Gross profit margin for 2013 was adversely impacted by the two significant project
write-downs reported in our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, resulting in a 0.4% impact on consolidated gross profit
margin.

Sefling, general and administrative expenses

The following table presents selling, general and administrative expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues, for
the years ended December 3§, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages);

) _ _ 7 2014 2013
Selling, generul and administrative expenseés e o o : $ - 626478 % L 580,649
Selling, general and administrative expenses ag a percentage of reventues : 9.3% 9.2%

Our selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended Docember 31, 2014 were $626.5 million, a $45 & million inecrease compared to selling,
general and administrative expenses cf$580.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 9.8% and 9.2% for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
primarily resulted from: (a) $26.6 million of

29




Table ef Contents

expenses directly related to companies acquired in 2013, including amortization expense of $8.2 million attributable to identifiable intangible assets (which
reflect acquired companies' expenses in 2014 only for the time period these entities were tot owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period), (b) higher
employee related costs such as incentive compensation and employee benefits and (c) higher legal costs, including the unfavorable settlement of a legal
matter, In addition, our selling, general and administrative expenses as 4 peroentage of revenues increased due to higher revenues from our United States
industrial services scgment, which has a higher fixed cost structure than our other reportable segments. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the
vear ended December 31,2013 included $6.1 million of transaction costs associated with the acquisition of RSL Selling, general and administrative expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2013 were reduced by $6.8 million of income attributable to the reversal of contingent consideration accruals relating to
acquisitions made prior to 2013.

Restructuring expenses

Restructuring expenses were $1,2 million and $0.6 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively, The 2014 restructuring expenses included $0.6 million of
employee severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2013 restructuring expenses included $0.5 million of
employee severance obligations and $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the balance of
restructuring related obligations yet to be paid was $0.3 million and $0.2 miilion, respectively. The majority of obligations outstanding as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 wete paid during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Gain on sale of building

On July 22, 2014, we sold a building and land owned by one of our subsidiaries reported in the United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment. We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 million on this transaction in the third quarter of 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
cn sale ofbuilding” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

hipairment loss on goadwill and identifiable intangible assels

In conjunction with our 2014 annual impairment test on October 1, we recognized a $1.5 million non-cash impairment charge related to subsidiary teade
names within the United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment and the United States building services segment. The 2014
impairment primarily resulted from lower forecasted revenues from two companies within these segments. No impairmeni of our identifiable intangible assets
was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2013. Additionally, no impairment of our goodwill was recognized for the years ended December 31,2014

and 2013,

Operating income (loss)

The following table presents by segment our opemting income (loss) and cach segment’s operating income (loss) as a percentage of such sogment’s
revenues from untelzted entities for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages):

% of % of
Segment Segment
2014 Revenues 2013 Revenues
Operating income (less): ‘

Umtc S&_taitqs_:eleptriﬁ_a_l.(:'qn_str'q_qg-idn_-_zim_-:l_.fsa_{;i!_i_t_igé scwlces IR R 90,873 o 69% $ BLAE) R 73%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 14418 5.2% 93,765 4.0%
United Satosbudldingsemvises DT T eskas ol amw U Teranst T e
_U_|_1i_1'3(_1 States @ndustrial se_rvic_es ) 63,159 7.5% 38,763 7_.5%

.'.Tqi-f_a-lrljit_l_i:!;'eg.l:Sfaiés'obbrﬁt,ioiuré".' y T 7‘ o R - © 334,335 L R _5:;5'--% U 297,867 R 50%
United Kingdom building services s 15,0 1 4.3% 13,021 38%

 Cotporateadministration . L L (eRsTe) IR (11030 SRS
Restructuring expenses (1,168) - (64'7)__ —
_Inlpa'iﬁné;_ﬁ-t.'lpsé on i'dentiﬁablg: f{ntar_léib-le_fés's-cts._ Lo L S ) (1,4_7?'1) B — ﬁ T =
Gain on sale of building 11,749 — — —
",,_To:ta[-wa-ldjfwj’_i:déo'pé_rations  . S R 289,878 45% 2403500 T 3.8%
Other comorate items:
Chwemstexpense - oo sy eae)
Interest income ) 842 _ 1,128
_ilncb'r;ié-ﬁ;oﬁ1 i:.on.ti_riu_ing qf)"ér&fio‘ué b.efore.inéome:ta'xe_g _ R - I AT S L IR gL 232.000 0 ¢
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As described in more detail below, we had operating income of $289.9 millicn for 2014 compared te operating income of $240.4 million for 2013,
Operating margin was 4.5% and 3,8% for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Included within operating income for 2014 was an $11.7 million gain on the sale of a
building, resulting in a 0.2% impact on our consolidated operating margin for 2014, Opermting income for 2013 was negatively impacted by aggregate losses
of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two projects located in the southeastern United States, resulting in a 0.4% impact on our
consolidated operating margin for 2013.

Operating income of our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $90.9 million
compared to operating income of $98.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, The decrease in operating income for the year ended December 31,
2014 was primarily the result of a decrease in gross profit attributable to institutional, transportation, manufacturing and water and wastewater construction
projects, as well as an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses, mainly attributable to employment costs, This segment was also negatively
impacted by project losses incurred from one of our subsidiaries whose operations we are in the process of closing. The decrease in operating margin for the
yoar ended December 31,2014 was primarily the result of an increase in the ratic of selling, general and administrative cxpenses to revenues.

Our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment operating income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $114.4 million, a
$20.7 million increase compared to operating income of $93.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Operating income was favorzbly impacied by
an increase in gross profit from institutional, commercial, healthcare and hospitality construction projects, partially offset by a decrease in gross profit from
manufacturing and transportation construction projeets. The results for 2014 included the receipt of $3.0 million from former sharcholders of a company we
had acquired as a result of the settlement of a claim by us under the acquisition agreement; this payment has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales” in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The results for 2013 included aggregate losses of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two
projects located in the southeastern United States, resulting in a 1.1% impact on this segment’s operating margin, partially offset by $6.7 million of income
atiributable to the reversal of contingent consideration accruals related to acquisitions made prier to 2013, Companies acquired in 2013 generated operating
income of $0.9 million, net of amertization expense of $0.2 million attributable to identifiable intangible assets, for the year ended December 31, 2014,
These amounts reflect acquired companies' operating results in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable
2013 period. The increase in eperating margin for the year ended December 31,2014 was aitributable to an increase in gross profit margin.

Operating income of our United States building services segment was $65.9 millien and $67.2 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively, The decrease in
operating income was primarily attributable to a decrease in operating income from this segment’s: (a) commercial site-based services operations, due to: (i)
decreased volume from supplier management contracts and (i) higher legal costs, including the unfavorable settlement of a legal matter, and (b) encrgy
services operations, due to a reduction of large project work. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in gross profit from this segment's: (a) mebile
mechanical services operations, partially due to increased profitability in projects, retrofits and repair services work and (b) government site-based services
operations, partially due to the successful close-out of two large long-term joint venture projects and reduced selling, general and administrative sxpenses.
The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2014 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin,

Operating income of our United States industrial services segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 increased by $24.4 million compared to operating
income for the year ended December 31, 2013. For the seven months ended July 31, 2014, RSI contributed $8.4 million of operating inceme, net of $8.0
million of amertization expense attributable to identifiable intangible assets. These amounts reflect RSI's operating results in 2014 only for the time period
RSI was not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period, Operating income also benefited from an increase in demand for this segment’s industrial
field services. The increase in operating income was partially offset by a reduction in operating income from our industrial shop services operations, which
had benefited from exceptionally strong demand during the firsst quarter of 2013,

Our United Kingdom building services segment’s operating income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $15.0 million compared to operating
income of $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, This segment recognized income of $4.8 million during the second quarter of 2014, which
has been recorded as a reduction of *Cost of sales" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, as a result of a reduction in the estimate of certain accrued
contract costs that were no longer expected to be incurred, which was partially offset by a decrease in income from the commercial and transportation
markets. The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2014 was attributable to an inctease in gross profit margin and a decrease in the
ratio of selling, general and administrative expenses to revenues,

Our corporate administration operating loss was $68.6 million for 2014 compared to $69.9 million in 2013, Our corporaie administration operating loss for
2013 included $6.1 million of transaction costs associated with the acquisition of RSL The benefit of the absence of these transaction costs for 2014 was
partially offset by an increase in cerfain employmens costs, such as incentive

31




‘Table ¢t Contents

compensation and employee benefits. Also, our corporate administration operating loss for 2013 was reduced by the receipt of an insurnee recovery of
approximately $2.6 million that was reecived in January 2013 associated with a previously disposed of operation, which is classified as a component of "Cost
afsales” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

Mon-operating items

Interest expense was $9.1 million and $8.8 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The $0.3 million increase in interest expense for 2014 compared Lo
2013 was primarily due to increased borrowings associated with the term koan executed in November 2013,

Interest income was 50.8 million and §$1.0 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease in interest income was primarily related to lower invested
cash balances.

For joint ventures that have been accounted for using the consolidation method of accounting, noncontrolling interest represents the allocation nfeamings
to oir joint venture partrers who cither have a minority-ownership interest in the joint venture or are not at risk for the majority oflosses of the joint venture,

Cur 2014 incame tax ptovisicn from continuing operations was $103.5 million compared to $82.3 million for 2013. The actual income tax rates on income
from continuing operations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests, for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013, were
37.4% and 35.9%, respectively. The increase in the 2014 income tax provision compared te 2013 was primarily due to the effect of increased income before
income taxes and the 2013 reversal of previously unrecognized income tax benefits.

Discantinted operations

Due to a historical pattern of losses in the construetion operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended Iune 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction matket in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations it the United Kingdom. The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for alk periads are presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table presents nel cash provided by (used in) operating activities, investing activities and financing activities for the years ended
December31,2015, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

o N 2015 2014 2013
Netgash provided by operating actiyities =~~~ : -~ DL TTORGEEE S 246,657 1S 150,069
Net cash used in investing activities 3 (59.808) $ (21,668) $ (483,422)
Nt oash (used 1) provided by fnmncing aetivities =~ © T s (U9ATaY S 29050 8 167,031
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3 (2,610 3§ (2,796) § 832

Out consolidated cash balance increased by approximately $34.8 million fom $432.1 million at December 31, 2014 to $436.8 million at December 31,
2015. Net cash provided by operating activities for 2015 was $266.7 million compared to $246.7 million of net cash provided by operating activities for
2014. The increasc in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to: {2} a $70.7 million incrcase in net over-billings related to the timing of
customer billings and payments, () a $50.6 million increase in accounts payable and (o) a $40.5 million inctease in other working capital changes, partially
offset by a $142.7 million increase in accounts receivable. Net cash used in investing activities was $59.8 million for 2015 compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $21.7 million for 2014, The increase in cash wsed in investing activities was primarily due to payments to acquire businesses in 2015.
Net cash used in financing activities for 2015 decreased by approximately $80.5 millicn compared te 2014, The decrease in net cash used in financing
activities was primarily due to a decrease in funds used for the repurchase of common stock. Cash flows from discontinued operations were immaterial and are
not expected to significantly affect future liquidity.

Our consolidated cash balance decreased by approximately $7.8 million from $439.8 million at December 31, 2013 to $432.1 million at December 31,
2014. Net cash provided by operating activities for 2014 was $246.7 million compared to $150.1 million of net cash pravided by operating activities for
2013, The increase in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to: (a) 2 $46.1 million increase in net income, (b) a $30.6 million decrease in
accounts receivable and (¢) a $16.0 million reduetion in income taxes paid, partially offsst by a $12.2 million decrease in accounts payable, Net cash used in
investing activities was §21.7 million for 2014 compared to net cash used in investing activities of $483.4 million for 2013, The decrease in cash used in
investing activities was primarily due to the lack of acquisitions in 2014, Net cash used in financing activities for 2014 increased by approximately $397.0
million compared to 2013, The increase in net cash used in financing activities was primarily due to an
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increase in funds used for the repurchase of commen stock of $175.9 million, the repayment of long-term debt, and the payment of regular quarterly
dividends to stockholders, partially offset by an increase in proceeds from the exercise ofstock options,

The following is a summary of material contractual obligations and other commercial commitments (in millions);

Payments Due by Period

Less

than 13 35 After
Contractusl Obligations Tatal 1 year yoars years § years
Térm Loan {including interest cirrently at 1.67%) ) . $ 3294 §. - 227 § 3067 § s =
Capital lease obligations 4.1 1.5 1.5 1.1 —
Op_erat_ing.leases o IR s S . 2396 89 M3 50,1 463
Open purchase obligations @ 1,0212 802.4 1997 131 —
Other'long-,temi6bli_ga't'ions, including current potion® . - 3636 415 310.8 113 - - —
Liabilities related_tu un_cg:_rt_aip_i_ncnme tax positions 52 4.5 —_ —_ 0.7
Total Contrictual Obligations - - $. 19631 8 S 9315 3 9030 -§ Bl S - 470

Amount of Commitment Expirations by Period

Total Less
Amounts than 1-3 3-5 After
Other Commerglal Commitments ) Committed 1 year years years 5 years
Lettersoferedit - . ... g o992 § 992 -%. - — § o — 'y . o _.

(1) OnNoyember 235, 2013, we entered into a 2 $750.0 million revolving eredit facility (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility") and a $350.0 million term loan (the "Term Loaa"),
(collectively referred to as the "2013 Credit Agreement”). The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay ameounts drawn under our previous credit agreement. As of
December 31, 2015, the amount outstanding under the Term Loan was $315.0 million.

(2)  Represents open purchase orders for material and subcontracting costs related to conslruction and service contracts, These purchase orders are not reflected in our
consolidated balance sheets and should not impact future cash flows, a8 amotnts should be recovered through customer billings.

(3)  Represents primarily insurance related liabilities and liabilities for deferred income taxes, incentive compensation and deferred compensation, classified as other long-term
liabilities in fhe consolidated balance sheets. Cash payments for insurance and deferred compensation related liabilities may be payable beyond theee years, but it is not
practical to estimate these payments; therefore, these tinbilities ere reflected in the 1-3 years payment period, We provide funding to our pest retirement plans based on at least
the minimum funding required by applicable regulations. In determining the minimum required funding, we utilize current actuarial assumptions and exchange rates to
forecast estimates of amaunts that may be payable for up to five years in the future. In our judgment, minimum funding estimates beyond a five year time horizon cennot be
reliably estimated, and therefore, have not been includad in the table,

Until November 25, 2013, we had a revolving credit agreement (the “2011 Credit Agreement™) as amended, which provided for a revolving credit facility
of $750.0 million. The 2011 Credit Agreement was effective November 21, 2011, Effective November 25, 2013, we amended and restated the 2011 Credit
Agreement to provide fora $750.0 millian revolving credit facility (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility”) and a $350.0 milHon term loan (the “Term Lean™)
(collectively referred to as the “2013 Credit Agreement) expiring November 25, 2018, The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay amounts drawn
under the 2011 Credit Agreement. We may increase the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility to $1.05 billion if additional lenders are identified and/or existing
tenders are willing to increase their cutrent commitments. We may allocate up to $250.0 million of available capacity under the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility to letters of credit for our account or for the account of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credil Agreement is guaranteed by most of cur direct
and indirect subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of our assets and most of the assets of most of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility and the Term Loan contain various covenants providing for, ameng other things, maintenance of certain financial ratios and certain limitations on
payment of dividends, common stock repurchases, investments, acquisitions, indebtedness and capital expenditures. We were in compliance with all such
covenants as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, A commitment fee is payable on the average daily unused amount under the 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility, which ranges from 0.20% to 0.30%, based on certain financial tests, The fee was 0.20% of the unused amount as of December 31, 2013,
Borrowings under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and the
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Term Loan bear interest at (1) a rate which is the prime commetcial lending rate announced by Bank of Mentreal from time to time (3.50% at December 31,
2015) plus 0.25% to 0.75%, based on cettain financial tests or (2) United States dollar LIBOR (0.42% at December 31, 2015) plus 1.25% to 1,75%, based on
certain financial tests. The interest rate in effect at December 31, 2015 was £.67%. Fees for letters of credit issued under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility
range from 1.25% to 1.75% of the respective face amouiits of outstanding letters of credit and are charged based on eettain financizl tests. We capitalized
approximately $3.0 million of debt issuance costs associated with the 2013 Credit Agreement, This amount is being amortized over the life of the agreemenl
and is included as part of interest expense. We arc required to make principal payments on the Term Loan in installments on the last day of March, June,
September and December of each year, commencing with the calendar quarter ended March 31, 2014, in the amount of $4.4 million, with a final payment of
all unpaid principal and interest due and payable on November 25, 2018, As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the balance on the Term Loan
was $315.0 million and $332.5 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had approximately $99.0 million and $95.5
million of letters of credit outstanding, respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility as of December 31,
2015 and December 31,2014,

The terms of our construction contracts frequently require that we obtain from sursty companies (“Surety Companies™) and provide to our customers
payment and petformance bonds (*Surety Bonds™) as a condition to the award of such contracts, The Surety Bends secure our payment and performance
obligations under such contracts, and we have agreed to indemnify the Surety Companies for ameunts, if any, paid by them in respect of Surety Bonds issued
on our behalf, In addition, at the request of [abor unians representing certain of our employees, Surety Bends are sometimes provided to secure obligations
for wages and benefils payable to or for such employees. Public sector coniracts require Surety Bonds more frequently than private sector contracts, and
accardingly, our bonding requirements typically increase as the amount of public sector work increases. As of December 31, 2015, based on our percentage-
of-completion of our projects covered by Surety Bonds, our aggregate estimated exposute, assuming defaults on all our then existing contractual obligations,
was apptoximately $1.2 billion, which represents approximately 32% of our total backlog. The Surety Bonds are issued by Surety Companies in retun for
premiums, which vary depending on the size and type of bond.

From time to time, we discuss with our current and other Surety Bond providers the amounts of Surety Bonds that may be available to us based on our
financial strength and the absence of any default by us on any Surety Bond issued on our behalf and believe those amounts are curently adequate for our
needs. However, if we experience changes in our bonding relatienships or if there are adverse changes in the surety industry, we may seek to satisfy certain
customer requests for Surety Bonds by posting other forms of collateral in liew of Sursty Bonds such as letters of credit, parent company guarantees or cash,
sceking to convince customers to forego the requirement for Surety Bonds, by increasing our activities in our business segments that mrely tequite Surety
Bonds such as out building and industrial services segments, andfor by refraining from bidding for certain projects that require Surety Bonds, There can be no
assurance that we would be able to effecluate alternatives to providing Surety Bonds to our customers or to obtain, on Favorable terms, sufficient additional
work that does not require Surety Bonds. Accordingly, if we were to experience a reduction in the availability of Surety Bonds, we could experience a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows.

In the ordinary course of business, we, at times, guarantee obligations of our subsidiaries under certain contracts. Generally, we are Liable under such an
amangement only if our subsidiary fails to perform its obligations under the contract. Historically, we have not incurred any substantial liabilities as a
consequence of these guatantees.

We do not have any other material financial guarantees or off-balance sheet arrangements other than these disclosed herein.

We are a party to lawsuits 2ad other proceedings in which other parties seck to recover from us amounts ranging fiom a few thausand dollars to over $10.0
million. We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of opemtions or liquidity.

On September 26,2011, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $100.0 million of our outstanding commot stock. On December 5, 2013,
October 23, 2014 and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to an additional $1¢6.0 million, $250.0 million and $200.0
million of our outstanding common stock, respectively. During 2015, we repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of cur common stock for
approximately $112.3 million, Since the inception of these repurchase programs through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9.9 million shares of our
commen stock for approximately $395.9 million. As of December 31, 2015, there remained authorization for us to repurchase approximately $254.1 million
of our shares. The repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock znd may be suspended,
recommenced or discontinued at any time or from time to time without prior notice. Repurchases may be made from time to time to the extent permitted by
securities laws and other legal requirements, including provisions in our credit agreement placing limitations on such repurchases. The repurchase programs
have been and will be finded from our operations.

We have paid quarierly dividends since October 25, 2011, We expect that quarterly dividends will be paid in the foreseeable fiture. Prior to October 25,
201 (, no cash dividends bad bgen paid on the Company’s common stock, We currently pay a regular
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quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share. Our 2013 Credit Agreement places limitations on the payment of dividends on our common stock, However, we do not
believe that the terms of such agreement currently materially limit our ability to pay a quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share for the foreseeable futuyre. The
payment of dividends has been and will be funded from our operations,

Qur primary source of liquidity has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated by operating activities. We alzo maintain our 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility that may be utilized, among other things, to mest short-term liquidity needs in the event cash generated by operating activities is insufficient
or to enable us to seize opportunities to participate in joint ventures or to make acquisitions that may require aceess to cash on short notice or for any other
reason. Negative macroeconomic trends may have an adverse effect on liquidity. During economic downtums, there have been typically fewer small
discretionary projects from the private sector, and ocur competitors have aggressively bid larger long-term infrastructure and public sector contracts. Short-
term liquidity is also impacted by the type and length of construction contracts in place and large turnaround activities in our United States industrial
services segment that are billed in arrears pursuant to contractual terms that aze standard within this industry. Performance of long duration contracts typically
requires greater amounts of working capital. While we strive to maintain a net ever-billed position with our customers, thete can be no assurance that a net
over-billed position can be maintained. Our net over-billings, defined as the balance sheet accounts “Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamings on
uncompleted contracts” less “Cost and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts”, were $311.5 million and $265 4 million as of
December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively.

Long-term liquidity requirements can be expected to be met initially through cash generated from operating activities and our 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility. Based upon our current credit ratings and financial positicn, we can reasonably expect to be able to incur long-term debt to fund acquisitions. Over
the long term, our primary revenue risk factor continues to be the level of demand for non-residential construction services and for building and industrial
services, which is influenced by macroeconomie trends including interest rates and govemmental economic policy, In addition, our ability to perform work is
critical to meeting long-term liquidity requirements.

We believe that our current cash balances and our borrowing capacity available under our 2013 Revolving Credit Facility or other forms of financing
available to us through borrowings, combined with cash expected to be generated from operations, will be sufficient to provide our short-term and
foreseeable long-term liquidity and meet cur expected capital expenditure requirements.

Certain Insurance Matters

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we utilized approximately $97.8 million and $94.6 million, respectively, of letters of credit obtained under our 2013
Revolving Credit Facility as collateral for insurance obligatiens.

New Accounting Pronouncements

We review new accounting standards to determine the expected impact, if any, that the adoption of such standards will have on our financial position
andfor results of operations, See Notfe 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policles of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in ltem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for further information regarding new accounting standards, including the anticipated dates of adoption and
the effects on our consolidated financial positien, results of operations or liquidity,

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are based on the application of significant accounting policies, which require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the notes to
consolidated financial statements included in Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K. We believe that some of the more
critical judgment areas in the application of accounting pelicies thal atfect our financial condition and results of operations are the impact of changes in the
estimates and judgments pertaining to: (a) revenue recognition from (i} long-term construction contracts for which the percentage-of-completion method of
accounting is used and (i} ‘services centracts; (b) collectibility or valuation of accounts receivable; (c) insurance liabilities; (d) income taxes; and
(e) poodwill and identifiable intangible assets.

Revenwe Recognition from Long-terin Construction Coniracts and Services Contracls

We believe our most critical accounting policy is revenue recognition from long-term construction contracts for which we use the percentage-of-
completion method of aceounting. Percentage-of-completion accounting is the prescribed method of accounting for long-term contracts in accordance with
Agccounting Standards Codification {*ASC™) Topic 603-35, “Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts”, and, accordingly, is
the method used for revenue recognition within cur industry. Petcentage-of-completion is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred to date for
cach contract to the estimated total costs for such contract at completion. Certain of our electdcal contracting business units measure percentage-of-
completion by the percentage of labor costs incurred to date for each contract to the estimated total labot costs for such contract.
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Pre-contract costs om our construction projects are generally cxpensed as ineusced. Application of percentage-of-completion accounting results in the
recognition of costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contmets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Costs and estimated earnings
in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arise when revenues have been recognized but the amounts
cannot be billed under the terms of contracts. Such amounts are recoverable from customers based upon various measures of performance, including
achievement of certain milestones, completion of specified units or completion ofa contract.

Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts also include amounts we seek or will seek to collect from customers or others
for errors or changes in contract specifications or design, contract change orders in dispute or unapproved as te both scope and price or other customer-related
causes of unanticipated additional contract costs (efaims and unapproved change orders), Such amounts ure recorded at estimated net realizable value and
take Into account factors that may affect our ability to bill and ultimately collect unbilled revenues. The profit associated with claim amounts is not
recognized until the claim has been settled and payment has been received. During 2015, we recognized revenues of $12.1 million as a result of the
settlement of a claim within our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segmeni, which represents the recovery of cost on a project in
which we incurred significant losses in a prior year. There were no significant settlements or payment of claims in 2014, As of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts included wnbilled revenues for unapproved change orders of approximately
$18.9 million and $18.8 million, respectively, and claims of approximately $0.9 million and $3.0 million, respectively. In addition, accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 included claims of approximately $0.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively. There are contractually billed amounts and
retention related to contracts with unapproved change orders and claims of approximately $52.0 million and 854.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. For contracts in claim status, contractually billed amounts will generally not be paid by the customer to us until firal resolution of related
claims. Due to uncertainties inherent in estimates employed in applying percentage-of-completion accounting, estimates may be revised as project work
progresses. Application of percentage-of-completion accounting requires that the impact of revised estimates be reported prospectively in the consolidated
financial statements. In eddition to revenue recagnition for long-term construction contzagts, we recognize revenues from the performance of services for
maintenance, repair and retrofit work consistent with the petformance of the services, which are generally on a pro-rata basis over the life of the contractual
arrangement, Expenses related te all services arrangements are recognized as incurred. Revenues related to the engineering, manufactuting and repairing of
shell and tube heat exchangers are recognized when the product is shipped and all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Costs related to this
work are included in inventory until the product is shipped. Provisions for the entirety of estimated losses on contracts are made in the period in which such
losses are determined. There were no significant losses recognized in 2015 and 2014,

Accounts Receivable

We are required to cstimate the collectibility of accounts receivable, A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the likelihood of
realization of receivables. Relevant assessment factors include the creditworthiness ofthe customer, our prior collection history with the customer and related
aging ¢fpast due balances. The provision for doubtful accounts during 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately $2.9 million, $2.9 million and §3.5
millien, respectively. At December 31,2015 and 2014, our accounts teceivable of $1,359.9 millicn and $1,234.2 million, respectively, included allowances
for doubtful accounts of$11.2 million and $190.4 million, respectively, The increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts was primarily due to an increase
in the provision far doubtful accounts, partially offset by the write-off of previously reserved accounts receivable. Specific accounts receivable are evaluated
when we believe o customer may not be able to meet its financial obligations due to deterioration of its financial condition or its credit ratings. The
allowance for doubtful accounts requirements are based on the best facts available and are re-evaluated and adjusted on a regular basis as additional
information is received.

Insurance Liahilities

We have loss payment deductibles for certain workers' compensation, automobile liability, general liability and property claims, have self-insured
retentions for ceriain other casualty claims and are self-insured for employee-related health care claims. Losses are recorded based upon estimates of our
liability for claims incurred and for claims incurred but not reported. The liabilities are derived from known facts, historical trends and industry averages
utilizing the assistance of an actuary to determine the best estimate for the majority ofthese obligations. We believe the liabilities tecognized on out balance
sheets for these obligations are adequate. However, such obligations are difficult to assess and estimate due to numerous factors, including severity of injury,
determination of liability in ptopoztion to other parties, timely reporting of ocourrences and effectiveness of safety and risk management programs. Therefore,
if our actual experience differs from the assumptions and estimates used for recording the liabilities, adjustments may be required and will be recorded in the
period that the experience becomes known, Our estimated insurance liabilities for workers’ compensation, automobile liability, general liability and property
claims Incteased by $9.2 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014, primarily due to higher revenuocs and
an increase in estimated losses as a result of unfavorable claims experience, IFour estimated insurance liabilities for workers’
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compensation, automobile liability, general liability and property claims were to increase by 10%, it would have resulted in $14.4 million of additional
expense for the year ended December 31,2015,

Income Taxes

We had net deferred income tax liabilities at Decembet 31, 2015 and 2014 of $120.6 million and $127.8 million, respectively, primarily resulting from
differences between the carrying value and income tax basis of ceriain identitiable intangible asseis and depreciable fixed assets, which will impact our
taxable income in future periods. Included within these net deferred income tax liabilities are $121.4 million and $114.2 million of deferred income tax
assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, A valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred
inecome tax asset will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total valuation allowance on deferred income tax assels, related to state net
operating carryforwards, was approximately $0.8 million and $2,0 million, respectively. We have determined that as of December 31, 2015, a valuation
allowance was not required on any of the remaining defeired tax assets because of significant deferred tax liabilities, exclusive of the deferred tax liabilities
related to indefinite-lived intangible assets, and projected future taxable income.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

As of December 31,2015, we had $843.2 million and $472.8 million, respectively, of goodwill and net identifiable intangible assets {primarily consisting
of our contract backlog, developed technology/vender network, customer relatjonships, non-competition agreements and trade names), primarily arising out
of the acquisition of companies, As of December 31, 2014, goodwill end net identifiable intangible assets were $334.1 million and $502.1 million,
respectively. The changes to goodwill since December 31, 2014 were related to the acquisition of three companies in 2015. The determination of related
estimated useful lives for identifiable intangible assets and whether those assets are impaited involves significant judgments based upon short and long-term
projections of future performance. These forecasts reflect assumptions regarding the ability to successfully integrate acquired companies, as well as
macroeconomic conditions. ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” (*ASC 350} requires goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead tested at least annually for impairment (which we test each October I, absent any impairment indicators),
and be written down il impaired. ASC 350 requires that goodwill be allocated to its respective reporting unit and that identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives be amortized aver theiruseful lives,

We test for impairment of our goodwill at the reporting unit level. Our reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 17,
“Segment Information™, of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. In assessing
whether our goodwill is impaired, we utilize the two-step process as prescribed by ASC 350. The first step of this test compates the fair value of the reporting
unit, determined based upon discounted estimated future cash flows, to the carying amount, ineluding goodwill, If the fair value exceeds the camying
amount, no further analysis is required and no impairment loss is recognized. 1fthe carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the goodwill
of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and step two of the goodwill impairment test would need to be performed to measure the amount of an
impairment loss, if any. In the second step, the itapairment is computed by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the camrying
amount of the goodwill. Ifthe carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill is greater than the implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairmment loss in the
amount of the excess is recognized and charged to operations. The weighted average cost of capital used in cur annual testing for impairment as of October 1,
2015 was 11.1%, 11.1% and 11.0% for our domestic constiuction segments, our United States building services segment and our United States industrial
services segment, respectively. The perpetual growth rate used for cur annual testing was 2.7% for all of our domestic segments. Unfavorable changes in these
key mssumptions may affect future testing results and cause us to fail step one of the goodwill impaimment testing process. For example, keeping all other
assumptions constant, a 50 basis point increase in the weighted avetage costs of capital would cause the estimated fair value of our United Stated industrial
services segment to approach its canrying value. A 50 basis point increase in the weighted average costs of capital would not significantly reduce the excess
of the estimated fair value compared to the camrying value for any of our other domestic segments. In addition, keeping all ather assumptions constant, a 50
basis point reduction in the perpetual growth rate would not significantly reduce the excess of the estimated fair value compated to the canying valug for any
of our domestic segments. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment of our goodwill was recognized.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $843.2 million of goodwill on our balance sheet and, of this amount, approximately 45,6% relates to our United States
industrial services segment, approximately 27.1% relates to our United States building services segment, approximately 26.8% relates to our United States
mechanical construction and facilities services segment and approximately 0.5% relates to our United States electrical construction and facilities services
segment. As of the date of our latest impairment test, the carying values of our United States industrial services, United States building services, United
States mechanical construction and facilities services and United States electrical construction and facilities services segments were approximatety $725.5
million, $445.1 million, $249.5 million and $62.9 million, respectively. The fair values of our United States industdal services, United States building
services, United States mechanical construction and facilities services and United States etectrical constmiction
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and facilitics scrvices scgments exceeded their camying values by approximately $52.5 million, $291.2 million, $773.2 million and $661.7 million,
respectively.

We also test for the impaimment of trade names that are not subject to amortization by calcslating the fair value of such trade names using the “relief from
royalty payments” methodology. This approach involves two steps: (a) estimating reasonable royalty rates tor each trade name and (b) applying these royalty
rates (o a tet revenue stream and discounting the resuliing cash flows to determine fair value. This fair value is then compared with the cazrying value of each
trade name. If the carrying amount of the trade name is greater than the implied fuir value of the trade name, an impairment in the amount of the excess is
recognized and charged to operations. For the years cnded December 31, 2015 and 2013, uo impairment of cur trade names was recognized. The annual
impaitment review of our trade names for the year ended December 31, 2014 resulted in 2 $1.5 million non-cash impairment charge as a tesult of a change in
the fair vaiue of subsidiary trade names associated with certain prior acquisitions reported within our United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment and our United States building services segment,

In addition, we review for the impairment of other identifiable intangible assets that are being amortized whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
their carying values may not be fully tecoverable. This test compares theit carying values to the undiscounted pre-tax cash flows expected to result from the
use of the assets., If the assets are Impaired, the assets are written down fo their fair values, generally determined based on their future discounted cash flows.
For the years cnded December 31,2015,2014 and 2013, no impairment of our other identifiable intangible assets was recognized.

We have certain businesses, particularly within our United States industrial services segment, whose results are highly impacted by the demand for some of
aur offerings within the industrial and oil and gas matkets. Future performance of this segment, along with a continued evaluation of the conditions ofits end
user markets, will be fmportant to ongeing impairment assessinents. Should this segment’s actual resulis suffer a decline or expected future results be revised
dewnward, the risk of goodwil! impairment or impaitment of other identifiable intangible assets would increase.

Our development of the present value of firture cash flow projections used in impairment testing is based upon assumptions and estimates by management
from a review of our operating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and margins and weighted average cost of capital, among others. Those
assumptions and estimates can change in future periods, and other factors used in assessing fuir value are outside the control of management, such as interest
rates. There can ba no assurances that estimates and assumptions made for purposes of our geodwill and identifiable intangible asset impairment testing will
prave to be aceurate predictions of the future. If our assumptions regarding future business performance or anticipated growih rates and/or margins are not
achieved, orthere is a rise in interest rates, we may be required to record goodwill andfor identifiable intangible asset impairment charges in future periods. Tt
is not possible at this time to determine ifany such future impairment charge would result or, ifit does, whether such a charge would be material,

ITEM 7A, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have not used any derivative financial instruments during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, including trading or speculating on changes
in interest rates or commmodity prices of materials used in our business.

We are exposed to market risk for changes in interest rates for borrowings under the 2013 Credit Agresment, which provides for e revolving credit facility
and a term loan. Borrowings under the 2013 Credit Agreement bear interest at variable rates. For further information on berrowing rates and interest rate
sensitivity, refer to the Liquidity and Capital Resources discussion in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. As of December 3 1, 20135, there were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility and the balance on the term loan was §315.0
million. Based on the $315.0 million borrowings outstanding under the 2013 Credit Agreement, if overall interest rates were lo increase by 25 basis points,
interest expense, net of income taxes, would increase by approximately $0.5 million in the next twelve months, Conversely, if overall interest rates were to
decrease by 25 basis points, interest expense, net of income taxes, would decrease by approximately $0.5 million in the next twelve months,

We are also exposed to constiustion market risk and its potential related impact on accounts receivable or costs and estimated eamnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted centracts, The amounts recorded may be at risk if our customers® ability to pay these obligations is negatively tmpacted by economic
conditions. We centinually monitor the creditworthiness of our customers and maintain on-going discussicns with customers regarding contract status with
respect to change orders and billing terms. Therefore, we believe we take approptiate action to manage market and other risks, but there is no assurance that
we will be able to reasonably identify all risks with respect to collectibility of these assets. See also the previous discussions of Revenue Recognition from
Long-term Construction Contracts and Services Contracts and Accounts Receivable under Application of Critical Accounting Policies in Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Amounts invested in our foreign aperations age translated into U8, dollars at the exchange rates in effoct at year end. The resulting translation adjustments
are recorded as eccumulated other comprehensive income (loss), & component of equity, in our
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Consolidated Balance Sheets. We believe the exposure to the effects that fluctuating foreign cumrencies may have on our consolidated results of operations is
limited because the foreign operations primarily invoice customers and collect obligations in their respective local currencies. Additionally, expenses
associated with these transactions are genetally contracted and paid for in their same local currencies.

In addition, we are exposed to market risk of fluctuations in certain commedity prices of materials, such as copper and steel, which are used as components
of supplies or materials utilized in our construction and building and industrial services operations, We are also exposed to increases in energy prices,
particularly as they relate to gasoline prices for our fleet of over 8,500 vehicles. While we belicve we can increase our contract prices to adjust for some price
increases in commodities, there can be no assurance that price increases of commodities, if they were to oceour, would be recoverable. Additionally, our fixed
price contracts do not allow us to adjust cur prices and, as a result, increases in material or fuel costs could reduce our profitability with respect to projects in

progress,
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
EMCOR Group, Inc. and Substdiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(I thousands, except shave and per share data)

e ASSETS

Currcnt assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -

Accounts receivable, less allnwance for doubtful accounts of$1 1,175 and $10 424, respectlvely

"Costs.and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncomp_le_tpd contracts

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assels
Investments, notes and 6th er long-term receivables
Property, plant and eqmpment net
Goodwill- *
Identifiable mtanglblc assets, net
Otherassels -

Total assets )

. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY'
Current ]labllltics
- Borrowmgs under rcvalvmg credit fac1l1ty e
Current maturities of long-term debt and C'\pltﬂl lcase obligatmns
: Accounts payable : . - : S

Bllllngs in excess ofcosts and estlmate(l eammgs on uncompleted contracts

Accmed payrnll and benefits - : s

Other accmed expenses and llabﬂmes

Tatnl oy rcnt llabihhes :
Long-term debt and capital lease obhgat]ons
Other long term obllgatiuns -
Tntnl llab1ht1es
Tquity: A :
EMCOR Cruup, Inc stockholders equ:ty
"_Prcfencd stock $0,01 par valuye, 1 ,000, 000 shares authonzed Zero 1ssued and outstandmg

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shates authorized, 61,727,709 and 63,641 070.sharcs 1ssued
respectlvely

) Cap:tal surplus ] N
Accumulated other comprehenswe loss
" Retained earnings - .
Treasury stock atcost 659,841 sh'nrcs
- Total EMCOR Group, [nc stockholders eqmty
Noncontrulllng interests
""Total eqmty
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral pait of these statements.
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December 31,

December 31,

2015 2014
$ - 486831 - § 432,056
1,359,862 1,234,187
117,734 103,201
37,545 46,854
63 447 70,305
2,067,419 1,886,603
8,359 9,122
122,018 122,178
| 843,170 834,102
472,834 502,060
_ S32,670 349027
$ 3546470 § 3,388,967
B T
18,848 19,041
,453251'{5"' L A60478.
429235 368,555
- 268,033 245,854
209,361 189,489
1,413,728 1,283417
300,065 316,399
352,621 359,764
2,066,414 1,959,580
617 636
130,369 227,885,
(76,953) (83,197)
1,432,980 1,280,991
{10,302) (10,302)
T1A76,711 1416013 "
3345 13374
1,480,056 1,429,387,
$ 35546470 3 3388967
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For The Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, excepi per share data)

Révenues

Cost of sales

Gross profit .

Selling, genera[ and admlmstraﬂve expenses
Rcstructunng expenses: '.
Impairment loss on identifiable mtanglble asscts

Gain o1 sale ofbuilding | '
Operating income

Interest expense

Interest income

Income t‘rom.'contimii'ng'operations befors income taxes
Income tax provigsion

Income from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes
Netincome incl-ﬁdiﬁg norit:oriﬁolling interests ~

Lass Net | income attributable to noncnnfmllmg mterests
‘Nefincome attributable to EMCCOR Group, Inc, |

Basic earmngs (loss) per common share:

From continuing operations attnbutable to E\/ICOR Group, Inc. common’ stockholders '

From discontinued operation 7

Net ingome attributable to EMCOR ‘Gmup,'lﬁc. co-nnhgn_‘stbcklicldc'fs 7

Diluted E‘lrmngs {loss) per common share!

From continuing operations attributable to EMCOR Group, Tric. common stockholders
From dlsconlmucd operation

Net income a_trtrib-ﬁtghle' to EMGOR qup, Ine, connﬁori’ 'stocklio_ Iders

Dividends declared per common share

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements,
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2015 2014 2013

6,718,726 § - 6424965 $ 6333527
5,774,247 5,517,719 5,511,881
944,479 907,246, L B21,645
656,573 626,478 580,649
T84 U168 647
— 1,471 —

= 11740 D
287,082 289,878 240,350
(8,932) ©O5) . RT69Y
673 842 1,128
278,823 “281,645 - 232,709
106,256 103,528 82,286
172,567 178,117 - 150,423 -
(60) (4,690) (23,069)

" 172,507 173,427 127,354
(221 (4,763) (3,562)
172286 8. 168,664 . § . . 123792 ;
29478 2618 219
(0.00) (0.07) (0.34)
274§ 2.54 . % LRSS
272 . 8 259§ . 216
(0.00) 0.07) (0.34)
272 5. 252 % 182

032 § 032 $ 0.18
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EMCOR Group, Inc, and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31,

{In thousands)
2015 2014 2013
'N_.et:iné(jméi_ncllidi'ng'nu'm‘._untro.l_l_i_'ng 'il_lter.ests: o _ . P 1 172,507 . §- . 173427 & - 127354
Other comprehensive income {loss), net oftax: N .
" Foreiglj cirency thanstation-adjustments Lo : R (1 B (v s T DL 14
Changes in pest retirement plans (1} 6,865 (16,463) 15,877
i :O-t..h-(-!_lf comprehensive :ixicdl.ne,(lo'srsr), o : T 62A4 T TR0y 15,263
Comprehensive income 178,751 156,007 £42,617
Less: Comprehensive income atfributable to noncontrolling interests o U -3 0 SRR - ¥ ;) B L (3,562):
Comprehensive income atiributable te EMCOR Group, Inc. 3 178,530 § 151,244 8 139,055

(I) Netof tax (provision) benefit of $(1.6) million, $4.2 million and ${4.3) million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands)

Cush flows - opefating activities:
Net income including noncontrolling interests
Adjustinents to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of ilentifiable inténgﬂ)le assets
Provision for doubtful accounts
Defcr-red_"lﬁ come toxes
Loss on sale of subsidiary
* (fain on sale of building - -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
_ Excess tax benefils from_share-bascd compensation
Equity income from unconsolidated entities
N(_)n-'éalsh' expense for amortization of debt issuance costs
Non-cash (income) expense from contingent consideration arrangements
- Non-cash expense 't'or'impai_rr'nent_of identifiable intangible assets
Non-cash share-based compensation .expense .
* Not-cash {inconic) expense fr'c')‘r-n'.chzix_ag.'e_s' in unrecognized income tox benefits
Distributions from unconsolidated entities
Changes fu operating ussi}ts sind li_ubi[itié:s,:,'e'xcliuling' the effect of businesses acquii'e_d;
(Increase) decrense in accounts reccivable - 7
' Decrease (mcrcuse) in invéntories
(Increa%e) decrease in costs and estimated enmmgs in excess of blll.mgs on uncompleted conlracts
Incrcuse (decrease) i in uccmmts puyable
Increase (decreasa) in billings in excess of costs and estimated eamnings on uncompleted conlmcls
Incrcase (dccrcase) in dccrued pnyrol] and beneﬁts and other accrued expenses und habﬂltles E
Changes in other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by ;Jlicfati_lig aelivities
Cash flows - investing activities:
~ Payments fof acquisitions of Businesses, net of cash acquired. -
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary -
© Proceeds from saleof building - )
Proceeds from salc of property, phnt and equlpmeut
Putchase df property, plant and eqiripmant - )
Investments in and advances to unconmlldntcd cntltles and _]Oll‘lt venlurns
: Mnrul ity of short tertn llweslments
MNet eash used in investing activities
Cash flows » fininicing wotivities: -
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Repiyments of revolving credit facility
Borrowings from long-term debt
chayhe_nts of long-tertn debt and debt issuance COsts.
Repaymenls of capital lease obligations

" Dividends paid ta stockholders

Repurchase of comumon stock
: Proceeds from 'bkercise of stédk‘ oplions
Tayiments to sallsfy minimum tax wxﬂlhuldmg
) l%u‘uwe of common ‘itO(:k under employee stock pulchnse plan
Payments for contingent consideration ﬂrmngemenfs
i _Dlslubutmns fo nonwnlml!mg interésts " ;
Excess tax benefits from share-based compens ntlon
Net cash (used m) pmvl(led by ﬁnnncing actlvihes e

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash Bq]tl\’.ll(![lth

2015 2014 2013

172507 § 173427 5 127354
36,294 36,524 36,310
37,895 37,966, 31,08
2,853 2,918 3,533
(10,300) 5,748 11,857 -
— 608 —

— {11,749 -
(248) (4,920) {503)
{1,663) (8,264) 4,634)
(2,:383) (1,440) (1,048)
1,307 1,307 1,497
(464) 606 (6,793)

— 1471 L=
8,801 8,121 6,943
@17 - C2,143 . (10,539)
3352 1,767 679
(115303) 27,409 3.221)
9733 - 5260 © (865)
(12,837) (13,0.0) 2,807
25,440 25122) (12,904
58,614 (11,868) (2,793)
ITI2 32340 - (14,761)
16,763 (14,594)  (13.488)
266,666 246,657 150,069
| {28.195) S (45467
— 1,108 —
— 11,485 —
3,347 7,239 2,930
(35,460) (8035 . (@3sa97).
— (3,865) (800)
T 11 U
(39,808) {21,668 (483,422)
— — 250,000

- — - (409,000}

— — 350,000
(17,514) (17454 @03y
2737 (1,715) {1,692)
(20,095 (21253 - - (12,080)
(104,330) (201,994 26,070)
3,836 6,858 - 5,172 -
£3,366) (1.431) ©27)
4223 T REIST L g8
403y = {537)

- (10,250) T30 300"
1,663 8264 4,624

O (149473)° . (228,950) 167,031
(2,610) (2,796) 832




Increase {decrense) in cash and cash equivalents 54,775 (7,757 (165 ,450)
Cash aad cash equivalents at beginning of year 432,050 434,813 605,303
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ) ’ -3 486,831 § 432056 § 439,813

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part afthese statements.
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EMCOR Group, Inc, and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands)

EMCOR Gronp, Inc. Stackholders
Aceumnlated other

Common Capital comprehensive (loss) Retained Treasury Noncontrolling
_ Total steck surplus incone 1 earnings stock Interests
Bafance, Devember 31,2012 - - S 8 1,357,179 8 (680 C$416104 . § | (81,040) §1,022239 § (11903) 5 11,099

Net income including noncontrolling interests 127,354 —_ —_ —— 123,792 — 3,562

: ‘Olhef compr:erhen.siverincome 15,263 —_ —_ .- 15,263 a— — . —_
Commeon stock issued under share-based . )
compensation plans 2 10,410 3 9,084 —_ . — 1,313 —

Tax withholding for common stock issued o _ )
‘under.share-based compensation plans L (927) . —_ (92D PR — = e o Lo
Common stock issued under employee stock - - - ‘
purchase plan 2,854 -— 2,854 —_ - - —_
Conimon stock dividesids - S {12as, — g B — L2158 . D R
Repurchase of common stock {26,070} (@] (26,063) — —_ _ —
D_istrib_u‘tig‘ﬁs_lp'nohi:o;’ltfbiling initerests. . {1,300y - .= Do . P oa— = L= (1_,306)
Share-based compensation expense 6,943 — 6,943 — — — 7 —_

Balance, Decontber 31,2013 . . 51479626 8 676 $408,083 § . (65777) $LI33873 § (10,500)° S . 13361

Net income uw[udlng noncontrollmg interests 173,427 — — — 168,664 — - 4,763

- Other uomprchcnswe loss ) {7420y S uy e '_(.1"1,410) L R L T : Y-
Comumon stock igsued under share-based . N
compensatlon plans &) 15,570 8 15 274 — — 288 —

" Tax withholdlng for cominon stock fssusd v e o Tl ST e c Tl
unider shove-based compensution plans - (1,481 (1,481)”. IR ) - : R T
Cotmon stock issued unde;' embluyee stoek . - . 7 o
purchase plan 3,615 — 3,615 — — — —_

- :-Commun stock: leldElld.S T . ) (21,293) ’ — T _253 ' - _- i i '[é'l,ﬂﬁ) - . o o . i
Rﬂpurchﬂse of ecommon sTm:k (206,028) (48) (205,980} — — —_ B
By Dlsmbuuons to noncontmlhng inferests 7 (4,730) — Lo . _ S ) = ’ — o _(4’;;-50)
Share-baxcd compcnsatlon expenss 8,121 —_ 8,121 — — — o __ .
Bnlanes, Decomber 31,2004 .~ * - S 429387 § 636 §227.885 - §  © (85,197) §1,280991 3 (10392) .8 . Q3374 -
Nel mcume lm.ludmg noncnnlrollmg interesis 172,507 — e — 172,286 — 7 2:3,1
: Olhercomplehenswc ficome * - T R Lo T Tpag R
Common stock issued under share- based . 7 7 . o o o o

compcnsauon ]}L.ll’lb & 5,433 5 5,428 — — — —
; Tag wiliholding for coriiinen stogkissued .~ L 0 PR ) ' ' :

j{lﬂdt_:l share-basad sq111pcnsntmn plang - 0 (3,8658) - - -—- — —
Cormunon stock issued under employee stock
purchase plﬂn 4,223 — 4,223 — — — —
1Cmnmon slock dlvtdends e ’ (20,095) TR u. Taezi _ S (20297) B G R _
Repurchase of commeon stock (112,328) (24) (112,304) — — —_ 7 —
DiS‘!,r‘lbl‘l‘[iDltl‘S_tD nnn:::‘];mrol.ling interests ) - (_10,250). — — o - .= = i (10,2300
Share-bused compensatien expense 8,301 — 8,801 — — - . —
Balauice, Decerber 31, 2015 C8 1,480,086 % .- 617 $130369 . 5. (76,953} B 1,432,980 § (t0302) § . 1,345 °

(1)  As of December 31, 2015, represents cumulative foreign currency translation and post retivement liability adjustimenis of $3.5 million and ${80.5) million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2014, represents cumulative foreign currency translation and post retirement liability adjustments of $4.1 million and $(87.3) million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2013, represents cumulative foreign currency translation and post retirement linbility adjustments of $5.1 mitlion and $(70.9) million, respectively.

(2} Includes the tax benefit associated with share-based compensation of $1.6 million in 2015, $8.6 million in 2014 and $5.2 million in 2013,

The accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements are an integral part of these stalements.
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EMCOR Group, In¢, and Subsidiaries
NOTES 1'0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1-NATURE OF OPERATIONS

References to the “Company,” “EMCOR,” “we,” “us,” “our” aud similar words refer to EMCOR Group, Ine. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the
context indigates otherwise.

We are one of the largest electrical and mechanical construction and facitities services finms in the United States. In addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services, We specialize principally in providing construction scrvices relating to electrical and mechanical systems in all
types of non-tesidential and certain residential facilities and in providing various services relating to the operation, maintenance and management of
facilities, including refinerics and petrochemical plants.

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Cansolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures. Significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. All investments over which we exercise significant influence, but do not control (a 20% to
50% ownership interast), are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Additionally, we participate in a joinl venture with another company, and
we have consolidated this joint venture as we have determined that through our participation we have a variuble interest and are the primary beneficiary as
defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Beard (“FASB™) Accounting Standard Codification ("ASC”) Tepic 816, “Consolidation”.

For joint ventures that have been accounted for using the consolidation method of accounting, noncontrolling interest represents the allocation of camings
to ourjoint ventute pattners who either have a minority-ownership interest in the joint venturo or are not at risk for the majority of losses of'the joint venture.

The results of operations of companies acquired have been included in the results ofoperations fram the date ofthe respective acquisition.
Principles of Preparation

The prepatation of the consolidated financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the construction operations of our United
Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued operations. The segment formally named the United Kingdom construction and building
services segment has been renamed the United Kingdom building services segment.

Revenue Recagnition

Revenues from long-term construction contracis are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method in accordance with ASC Topic 605-35, “Revenue
Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts™. Percentage-of-completion is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred to
date for each contract to the estimated total costs for such conteact at completion. Cettain of our electrical contracting business units measure percentage-of-
completion by the percentage of labor costs incurred to date for each contract to the estimated total labor costs for such contract. Pre-contract costs from our
construction projects are generally expensed as incurred. Revennes from the performence of services for maintenance, repair and retrofit work are recognized
consistent with the performance of the services, which are generally on a pro-rata basis over the life of the contractual arrangement. Expenses related to all
services arrangements are recognized as incurred. Revenues refated to the engineering, manufacturing and repairing of shell and tube heat exchangers are
recognized when the product is shipped and all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Costs related to this work ate included in inventory until
the product is shipped, In the case of customer change orders for uncompleted long-term construction contracts, estimated recoveries are included for wotk
performed in forecasting ultimate profitability on certain contracts, Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, it is possible that completion
costs, including those arising from contract penalty provisions and final conéract settlements, will be revised in the near-term. Such revisions to costs and
income are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for the entirety of estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made
in the period in which such losses are determined. There were no significant losses recognized in 2015 and 2014,
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {(Continued)

Costs and estimaced earnings on uncompleted contracts

Costs and estimated eamnings in excess of billings en uncompleted contracts arise in the consolidated balance sheets when revenues have been recognized
but the amounts cannot be billed under the terms of the contracts. Such amounts are recoverable from customers upen vatious measures of performance,
including achievement of certain milestones, completion of specified units, or completion of a contract. Alse included in costs and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts are amounts we seek or wili seek to collect fiom customers or others for errors or changes in contract specifications or design, contract
change orders in dispute or unapproved as to both scope and/or price or othet customer-related causes of unanticipated additional contract costs {claims and
unapproved change orders). Such ameunts are recorded at estimated net realizable value when realization is probable and can be reasonably estimated, No
profit is recognized on construction costs incured in connection with claim amounts. Claims and unapproved change orders made by us involve negotiation
and, in certain cases, litigation. In the event litigation costs are incurred by us in connection with claims or unapproved change orders, such litigation costs
are expensed as incurred, although we may seck to recover these costs. We believe that we have established legal bases for pursuing recovery of our recorded
unapproved change orders and claims, and it is management’s intention to pursue and litigate such claims, if necessary, until a determination or settlement is
reached. Unapproved change orders and claims also involve the use of estimates, and it is reasonably possible that revisions to the estimated recoverable
amounts of tecorded claims and unapproved change orders may be made in the near term. If we do not successfully resolve these matters, & net expense
(recorded as a reduction in revenues) may be required, in addition to amounts that may have been previously provided for We record the profit associated
with the settlement of claims upon receipt of final payment. During 2015, we recognized revenues of$12.1 million as a result of the settlement of a claim
within our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, which represents the recovery of cost on a project in which we incurred
significant losses in a prior year There were no significant settlements or payment of ¢laims in 2014. Claims against us are recognized when a loss is
considered probable and amounts are reasonably determinable,

Costs and estimated earings on uncompleted contracts and related amounts billed as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands);

_ 2015 2014
Costs incurred of ullbbmplc@c'd.co'ﬁfﬁcts_,, . L _ e Lo % T 1582008 0 7,620,523
Estimated eamings, therson 862,987 803,549
S TR e e e e T e T o
Less: billings to_date _ _ ) - 8,756,596 8,094,425

$ 0 BILS0D S (265354

Such amounts were included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 under the following captions (in
thousands):

2015 2014
Costs and dstimated carnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts .. Co T T R T34 s T 103,201

Billings in excess of costs apd estir_nated eamings 0nuncomp1;ted contracts ) _ (429,235) (368,553)
S U UREIEE R S e L ' ' 3T BILE01) S s (265354).

As ofDecember 31, 2015 and 2014, costs and estimated earnings in eacess of billings on uncompleted contracts included unbilled revenues for
unapproved change orders of approximately $18.9 million and $18.8 million, respectively, and claims of approgimately $0.9 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. In addition, accounts receivable as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 included claims of approximately $0.3 million and $2.3 million,
respectively. There are contractually billed amounts and retention related to contracts with unapproved change orders and claims of $52.0 million and $54.0
million as of December 21, 2013 and 2014, respectively. For contracts in claim status, contractually billed amounts will generally not be paid by the
customer to us until final resolution of related claims.

Classification of Coatract Amounis

In accordance with industry practice, we classify as current all assets and liabilities relating to the performance of long-term contracts. The term of our
contracts ranges from one month to four years and, accordingly, collection or payment of amounts relating to these contracts may extend beyond one year,
Accounts receivable at December 31, 2015 and 2014 included $189.2 million and $177.8 million, respectively, of retainage billed under tenms of our
contracts. We estimate that approximately 85% of’
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EMCOR Group, Ine, and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continted)

this retainage will be collected during 2016, Accounts payable at December 3 £, 2015 and 2014 included $34.6 million and $35.7 million, respectively, of
retuinage withheld under tanms of the contracts. We estimate that approximately 20% of this retainage will be paid during 2016,

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, we consider all highly liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
squivalents. We maintain a centralized cash manageiment system whereby our excess cash balances are invested in high quality, short-term money market
instruments, which are considered cash equivalents. We have cash balances in certain of our domestic bank accounts that exceed federally insured limits.

Allowance for Doubiful Accounls

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts. This
ellowance is based upon the best estimate of the probable losses in existing accounts receivable. The Company determines the allowances based upon
individual accounts when information indicates the customers may have an inability to meet their financial chligations, as well as historical collection and
write-off experience. These amounts are re-evaluated and adjusted on = regular basis as additional information is received. Actual write-0ffs are charged
against the allowance when collection efforts have been unsuccessful. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, our accounts receivable of $1,359.9 million and
$1,234.2 million, respectively, included allowances for doubtful accounts of$11.2 million and $10.4 million, respectively. The provision for doubtful
accounts during 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately $2.9 million, $2.9 million and $3.5 million, respectively.

Inventories
[nventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is detenmined principally using the average cost method.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation, including amortizalion of assets under capital leases, is recorded principatly using the
stiaight-line method over estimated useful lives of3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment, 3 to 7 years for vehicles, fumiture and fixtures and computer
hardware/software and 25 years for buildings. Leaselold improvements are amortized over the sherter of the remaining life of the lease term or the expected
service life ofthe improvement.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the canying amount may
not be fully recoverable. In performing this review for recoverability, property, plant and equipment is assessed for possible impairment by comparing their
carrying values to their undiscounted net pre-tax cash flows oxpected to result from the use of the asset, Impaired asscts are written down to their fair values,
generally determined based on their estimated future discounted cash flows. Based an the results of our testing for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013, no impairment of property, plant and equipment was recognized.

Goodwill and Identifiabie Intangible Assets

Geodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives that ace not being amortized, such as trade names, are tested at least annually for
impairment {which we test each October 1, absent any impairment indicators) and are wriiten down if impaired. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives
are amortized cver their useful Hves and are reviewed for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that their camrying values may not be fully
recoverable. See Note 8 - Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information.

surance Liabifities

Our insurance liabilities are determined actuarially based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. At Decenber 31,2015 and
2014, the estimated cumrent portion of undiscounted insutance labilities of $29.9 million and $28.8 million, respectively, were included in “Other acorued
expenses and liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The estimated non-cutrent portion of the undiscounted insurance liabilities
insluded in “Other long-term cbligations” at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $114.3 million and $106.3 million, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Foreign Operations

The financial statements and transactions of our foreign subsidiaries are maintained in their functional currency and translated into U.S. dollars in
accordance with ASC Topic 830, “Foreign Currency Matters™, Translation adjustments have been recorded as “Accumulated other comprehensive loss”, a
separate component of “Equity™.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” {*ASC 740™). ASC 740 requires an asset and liability
approach which requires the recognition of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities for the expected future tax consequences af
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and labilities, Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred income tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740. We recognize accruals of interest related to unrecognized tax
benefits as a component of the income tax provision.

Valuation of Share-Based Compensation Pluns

Ws have various types of share-based compensation plans and programs, which are administered by our Board of Directors or its Compensation and
Personnel Committee. See Note 13 - Share-Based Compensation Plans of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding
the share-based compensation plans and programs.

We account for share-based payments in accerdance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, “Compensation-Stock Compensation” (“ASC 7187). ASC 718
requires that all share-based payments issued to acquire goods or services, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized in the statement of
operations based on their fair values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the Lime of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates, Compensation expense related to share-based awards is recognized over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting period. For shares subject to graded vesting, our policy is to apply the straight-line method in recognizing
compensation expense, ASC 718 requircs the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense to be reported as a financing cash
inflow, rather than as an operating cash inflow in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. This requirement reduces net opetating cash flows and
inceeases net financing cash flows.

New Acecounting Pronouncements

In November 2015, an accounting prencuncement was issued by the FASB to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes within the balance sheet,
This pronouncement eliminates the requirement that deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as current or noncurrent based on the nature ofthe
underlying assets and liabilities. nstead, the pronouncement requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, including valuation allowances, be classified as
noncurent. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. We intend to adopt this
pronouncement on January 1, 2017, and the adoption will not have a material impact on our financial position and/or results of operations.

In September 2015, an accounting proncuncement was issued by the FASB which eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business combination
account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurement-period adjustment during the period in which
it determines the amount of the adjustment. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption
permitted. We intend to adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2016, and the adoption will not have a material impact on our financial position and/or
results of operations.

In April 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB fo update the gnidance related to the presentation of debt {ssuance costs. This
guidance requires debt issuance costs, related to a recognized debt liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduetion from the carrying amount
of the related debr liability rather than being presented as an asset. This proncuncement is effective retrospectively for fiseal years beginning after December
15,2015, with early adoption permitted. We intend to adept this pronouncement on January 1, 2016, and the adaption will not have a material impact on our
financial position and/or results of operations.

On Januwary 1, 2015, we adopted the accounting prencuncement issued by the FASB updating existing guidance on discontinued operations, This
guidance raises the threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain
other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Coutinned}

pronouncement is aimed at reducing the frequency of disposals reported as discontinued operations by focusing on strategic shifts that have or will have a
major effect on an entity’s operations and financial results. We will consider this guidance in conjunction with future disposals, ifany.

In May 2014, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to clarify existing guidance on revenue recognition, This guidance includes the
required steps to achieve the cors principle that a company should recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the considertion to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal
years and interim periads beginning after December 15, 2017, with eatly adoption permmitted, The guidance pennits the use of one of two retrospective
transition methods. We have not yet selected 2 transition method nor have we determined the effect that the adoption ofthe pronouncement may have on our
financial position and/ar results of operations.

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES

On October 19, 2015, Cctober 13, 2015 and June 1, 2015, we acquired three companies, each for an immaterial amount, Two of the companies acquired
primarily provide mechanical construction services, and their results of operations have been included in our United States mechanical construction and
tacilitics services sogment. The results of operations for the other company acquired have been included in our United States building services segment, The
purchase price for the acquisition of these businesses is subject to finalization based on certain contingencies provided for in the purchase agreement. The
acguisition of these businesses was accounted for by the acquisition method, and the prices paid for them have been allocated to their respective assets and
lizbilities, based upon the estimated fair values of their assets and liabilities at the dates cftheir respective acquisitions.

On July 29,2013, we completed the acquisition of RepeonStrickland, Inc. (“RSI’). This acquisition expands and strengihens our service offerings to new
and existing customers and enhances our position within the industrial services and energy matket sectors. Under the terms of the transaction, we acquired
L00% of RST's stock for total consideration of $463.6 million. The acquisition was funded with cash on hand ard $250.0 million from borrewings under our
revolving credit factlity. This acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, We acquired working capital ef $35.5 million and
other net liabilities of §67.1 million, and have ascribed $267.8 million to goodwill and $227.4 million to identifiable intangible assets in connection with
the acquisition of RSI, which has been included in our United States industrial scrvices scgment, We expect that $49.0 million of acquired goodwill will be
deductible for tax purposes.

On December 2, 2013 and May 31, 2013, we acquired two companies, each for an immaterial amount. These companies primarily provide mechanical
constiuction services and have been included in our United States mechanical constiuction and Facilities services segment. The purchase price for the
acquisition of these businesses was finalized with an insignificant impact. The acquisition of these businesses was accounted for by the aequisition methed,
and the prices paid for them have been allocated to their respective assets and hiabilities, based upon the estimated fair values of their respective assels and
liabilities at the dates of their respective acquisitions. We believe these businesses firther expand our setvice capabilities into new geographical and/or
technical areas.

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and Decerber 31, 2013, we recarded net reversals of $0.5 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of liabilities
resulting in non-cash income attributable to contingent consideration arangements relating to prior acquisitions. During the year ended December 31, 2014,
we recorded an increase of$0.6 million of liabitities resulting in non-cash expense attributable to contingent consideration arrangements relating to prior
acquisitions.
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NOTE 4 - DISPOSITION OF ASSETS

In January 2014, we sold a subsidiary reported in our United States building services segment. Proceeds from the sale totaled approximately $1.1 million.
Included in net income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was a loss of $0.6 million from this sale, which is classificd as a component of “Selling, general
and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On July 22, 2014, we sold a building and land owned by one of our subsidiaries reporied in the United States mechanical constructicn and facilities
services segment. We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 millicn on this transaction in the third quarter of 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
on sale ofbuilding™ in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

Due to a historical pattem of [osses in the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we anncunced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations.

The results of the discontinued operation are as follows (in thousands):

For the twelye months ended December 31,

2015 2014 ‘2013
Revenues' . - . S R - 08823 §. 1920708 ¢ 83631
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes $ 60y % (4,690) % 23,069)
Diluted loss pérshare from discontinued operation .~ . - LT T s (000) § 0078 (0.34)

Included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are the following major classes of assets and liabilities
associated with the discontinued operation (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

7 2015 2014
Assets of-discoﬁt-in.uea Dperatioh: ‘ _ ) L - - _ _ ] S : L
Current assets $ 2525 % 6,265
Non-curent assets : o . ' L A . ] 8 oo $_' E 278
Liabiliti'es of discontinued operation: . . . . I : S
Current liabilities _ $ 4407 § 10,743
Non-current liabilities ~ ~ e ' T — 5 - o4

At December 31, 2015, the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operation consisted of accounts receivable, contract retentions and contract warranty
obligations that are expecied to be collected or fulfilled in the ordinary course of' business. Additionally at December 31, 20135, there remained $0.5 million
of obligations related to employee severance and the termination of leased facilities, which is expected to be paid during the first half of 2016, The settlement
of the remaining assets and liabilities may result in additional income and/or expenses. Such income andfor expenses are expected to be immaterial and will
be reflected as an additional component of “Loss from discontinued operation™ as incumred.
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NOTE 5 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables summarize our calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Coramon Share (“EPS™) [or the years ended December 31,2015,

2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except share and per share data):

Numeratet:

Income from continuing opération‘s attribntable to EMCOR Graup, Ine. common sﬁoékholdcrs
Less from discontinued opemtmn net of income taxes

Mot 1 mcome attnbutable to EMCOR Group, Inc comman stoclcholders

Denominator:

Weighted average shares outstanding used to compute basic eamnilngs ([oés) percominon share

Effect of dilutive securities—Share-based awards

Shéires‘ used to compute diliited eami'ngs {loss) per cqmnim_l:éhq_l:(:: )

Baslc eamings (loss) per common share:
me contmuing opeiations attributable to EMCOR Group, Tnc. commnn stockholders
From dlscontmued operatwn
TNeL 1ncome attribistable to EMCOR Group, Tne: common stockholdcrs

Dlluted eammgs (loss) per common share

o From contmumg opemtlons attnbutuble to EMCOR Gmup, Inc common stockholdem o

From dlscontmued operation
Net mcnme 'I'Ett‘lbllf’lble i) EMCOR Group, Ing. common stockholders S

There were no anti-dilutive awards for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2014 and 2013,
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2015 2014 013
172346 § 173354 8 - 146861
(60) (4,690) (23,069)
TAT2286° 7 T68664. § 123793
© 627789,120 - . 66,331,886 . .. 67,086,299
518,392 730,623 990,542
63307512 7 - 67,062,509 68,076,841
a4l §70 2810 0 2090
(0.00) ©.07) (o 34
REEE I SRS R S K 2
(0.00) ©.07) 0.34)
IR TR - .82
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NOTE 6 - INVENTORIES

Inventoties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following amounts {in thousands);

2015 2014
Raw malerials and gonstrucﬁonmaté_:rigls L E o A 33239 % 723330
Work in process 14,306 . 2-3,524
‘ . S ' $ - 37545 8. - 46854

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following amounts as of December 31,2015 and 2014
(in thousands):

2015 2014
Machingry and equipment ST T Sl o — _ 3. ','12_3;_2'11._'.-$ 120528
Vehicles 51,673 45,036
Fumitwreand fixtures Ll L e T 50730 L 20,893
Computer hardware/software :

95,993 89,638

Land, I_)u'ildingsfaiﬁd__léé'sehbl_d imprcj\"{eméht"._s'__' R ERE _ . o i 88,877 S e
Construction in progress 5,688 - ‘6,926

e e T e eI UB86NIE e 364027
Accumulated depreciation and amortization _ _ o _ (264,154} (241;849)
S s e T e T T T8 s, 122078,

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment, including capital leases, was $36.3 million, $36.5 millicn and $36.3
million for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 8 - GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goadwill at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was approximately $843.2 million and $834.1 million, respectively, and reflects the excess of cost over fair
market value of net identifiable assets of companies acquired. Goodwill attributable to compantes acquired in 2015 has been valued at $9.1 million. No
companies were acquired in 2014, ASC Topic 8035, “Business Combinations” (“ASC 805”) requires that alt business eombinations be accounted for using the
acquisition method and that certain identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business combination be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. ASC Topic
350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” {*ASC 350”) requires goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives not be amortized,
such as trade names, but instead tested at least annually for impairment (which we test cach October 1, absent any impairment indicators) and be written down
if impaired. ASC 350 requires that goodwill be allocated to its respective reporting unit and that identifiable intangible assets with finite lives be amertized
over their useful lives. As of December 31, 2015, approximately 45.6% of our goodwill related to our United States industrial services segment,
approximately 27.1% of our goodwill related to our United States building services segment, approximately 26.8% related to our United States mechanical
constiuction and facilities services segment and approximately 0,5% related to our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment.

We test for impairment of goodwill at the reporting unit level. Our reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 17,
“Segment Information”, of the notes to consclidated financial statements. In assessing whether our goodwill is impaired, we utilize the two-step process as
prescribed by ASC 350. The first step of this test compares the fair vaiue of the reporting unit, determined based upon discounted estimated future cash flows,
to the camrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value exceeds the carying amount, no further analysis is required and no impairment loss is
recognized. If the camying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the goodwill of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and step two of the
goodwill impairment test would need to be performed 1o measure the amount of an impainnent loss, if any. In the second step, the impairment is computed by
comparing the implied fair vatue of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the cartying amount of the goodwill, If the carying amount of the reporting unit's
goodwill is greater than the implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairment loss in the amount of the excess is recognized and charged to operations, The
weighted average cost of capital used in cur annual testing for
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NOTE § - GOODWILL AND IDENTIFTABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS - (Continued)

impairment as of October 1, 2015 was [ 1.1%, 11.1% and 11.0% for our domestic constraction segments, our United States building services segment and our
United Siates industrial services segment, tespectively, The perpetual growth rate used for our annual testing was 2.7% for all of our dotnestic segments,
Unfavorable changes in thesc key assumptions may affect future testing results and cause us to fail step one of the goodwill impainment testing process, For
example, keeping all other assumptions constant, a 50 basis point increase in the weighted average costs of capital would cause the estimated fair value of
our United Stated industrial services segment to approach its camrying value. A 50 basis point increase in the weighted uverage costs of capital would not
significantly reduce the excess of the estimated fair value compared to the carrying value for any of cur other domestic segments. In addition, keeping all
other assumptions constant, a 50 basis point reduction in the perpetual growth rate would not significantly reduce the excess of the estimated fair value
compared to the carrying value for any of our domestic segiments, For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, no impainnent of our goodwill
was recognized.

We also test for the impairment of trade numes that are not subject to amortization by calculating the fair value of such trade names using the “relief fiom
royalty paymenis” methodology. This approach invelves two steps: (a) estimating reasonable royalty rates for each trade name and (b) applying these royalty
rates to a net revenue stream and discounting the resulting cash flows to determine fair value, This fair value is then compared with the carrying value of each
trade name. If the camrying amount of the trade name is greater than the implied fair value of the trade name, an impairment in the amount of the excess is
recognized and charged to opetations. For the years ended Docember 31, 2015 and 2013, no impairment of our trade names was recognized. The annual
impairment review of our trade names for the year ended December 31,2014 resulted it a §1.5 millicn non-cash impairment charge as a result of a change in
the fair value of subsidiary trade names associated with certain prior acquisitions reporied within our United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment and our United States building services segment.

In addition, we review for the impairment of other identifiable intangible assets that are being amertized whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
their canyitg values may not be filly recoverable. This test compares their cartying values to the undiscounted pre-tax cash lows expected to result from the
use ofthe assets. [f the assels are mpaired, the assets are written down to their fair values, generally determined based on their future discounted cash flows.
For the years cnded December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment of our other identifizble intangible assets was recognized,

Our development of the present value of future cash flow projections used in impairment testing is based upon assumptions and estimates by management
from a review of our operating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and margins and weightsd average cost of capital, among others, Those
assumptions and estimates can change in future periods, and other factors used in assessing fair value are outside the control of management, such as interest
rates. There can be no assurances that our estimates and assutnptions made for purposes of our goodwill and identifiable intangible asset impairment testing
will prove to be accurate predictions of the fiuture, If our assumptions regarding future business performance plans or anticipated growth rates and/or margins
are ot achieved, or there is a rise in Interest rates, we may be requited to record goodwill and/or identifisble intangible asset impairment cliarges in future
periods. It is not possible at this time to determine if any such fiuture impairment charge would result or, if it does, whether such a charge would be material.

The changes in the camying amount of goodwill by reportable segments duting the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in
thousands):

United States United States
electrieal mechanical
construction construction United States United States
and facilitics and facilitics building industrial
o ) services segment services segment services segment services segment Totul
Balance 4f Decerbor 31,2013+ 000§ ST 73823 0 8 121728508 L 220204 7§ 0 384,543 8 834,825
Acquisitions, sales and purchase price
adjustments ) o — — (819 26 (723)
Balaneat December 31,0014 T agan 0 219285 T 0 2283850 L U GBAGIO L 834102
Acquisitions, sales and purchase price
adjustments ) S — 8316 252 — 9,068
Balance at December31;2015 .~ .. 8 .= 383§ . 2607 Ch . 208637 $ . 384,639 - 843,170

The aggregate goodwill balance as of December 31, 2013 included $210.6 million of accurmulated impairment charges, which were comprised of$139.5
million within the United States building services segment and $7 1.1 million within the United Siates industrial services segment.
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Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31,2015 and 2014 consist of the following {in thousands):

Coniract backlog '

Developed technology/Vendor network

Customer relationships
Non-competition agrecments
Trade names (amoﬁizgd) o
Trade names (unamottized)
Total '

-C"_lontrﬁéibs_lq'l:c'li)_'g.: o LT
Developed technology/Vendor network
f_.C.}'us'tb'm:érfelsi_tfbr_i’s”liipa e
Non-competition agreements

Tiade nadies (amottized) * . -

Trade names (unamortized)

Total )

December 31, 2015

Gross Accumnlated
Carrying Accumulated Impairment
Amount Amortization Charge Total
47,745 § - (47,745) $ — 8 -
95,661 (40,482) — 55,179
- 430356 (141,695) - ¢ (4,834) 283,827
10,220 (9,832) - 388
. 21,248 C2410) R — 8,838
174,039 — (49,437) 124,602
779269 § o (252,164) § C34271) 8 472834
December 31, 2014
Gross Accumulated
Carrying Accumulnted Impairment
Amount Ameortization Charge Total
CATE20 8 U ETe20) 8T e g T
95,661 (35,347 -— 60,314
425873 0 U (U12A5T) S o @83) i <i3pgsd
9,980 (9,330) —_ 650
S OS18) o= R
170,218 — 49437 120,781
770,600 $ (214,269) § 54271) § 502,060

Identifiable intangible assets attributable to companies acquired in 2015 have been valued at $8.7 million. No companies were acquised in 2014, See Note
3 - Acquisitions of Businesses of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information, The identifiable intangible amounts are amortized
on a straight-line basis. The weighted average amortization periods for the unamottized balances remaining are, in the aggregate, approximately 11 years
which are comprised of the following: 11,5 years for developed technolegy/vendor network, 11 years for customer relationships, 1.5 years for non-

competition agreements and 4 years for trade names,

Amortization expense related to identifiable intangible assets with finite lives was $37.9 million, $38.0 million and $31.0 million for the years ended
Decernber31,2015,2014 and 2013, respectively. The following tabic presents the estimated future amortization expense of identifiable intangible assets in

the following years {in thousands):
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Thereafter
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35,003
32,835
30,853

30,671

131,450
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NOTE % - DEBT

Credit Facilities

Until Noverber 25, 2013, we had a revolving credit agreement (the “2011 Credit Agreement™) as amended, which provided for a revolving credit facility
6£$750.0 million. The 2011 Credit Agreement was effective November 21, 2011. Effcctive November 25, 2013, we amended and restated the 2011 Credit
Agreement to provide fora $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2013 Revalving Credit Facility”) and 2 $350.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan™)
{collectively referred to as the “2013 Credit Agreement™} expiring November 23, 20 18. The procecds of the Term Loan were used to repay amounts drawn
under the 2011 Credit Agreement, We may increase the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility to $1.05 billicn if additional lenders are identified and/or existing
lenders are willing to increase thelr curent commitments; and we may allocate up to $250.0 million of available capacity under the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility to letters of credit for our account or for the acconnt of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Credit Agreement is guaranteed by most of our direct and inditect
subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of our assets and most of the assets of most of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and the
Terin Loan contain various covenants providing for, among other things, maintenance of certain financial ratios and certain limitations on payment of
dividends, common stock tepurchases, investments, acquisitions, indebtedness and capital expenditures, We were in compliance with all such covenants as
of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Acommitment fee is payable on the average daily wnused amount under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility,
which ranges from 0.20% to 0.30%, based on certain financial tests, The fee was 0.20% of the unused amount as of December 31,2015, Borrowings under the
2013 Credit Agreement bear interest at (i) a rale which is the prime commercial lending rate atnounced by Bank of Montreal frem time to time (3.50% at
December 31, 2015) plus 0.25% to 0.75%, based on certain financial tests or (2) United States dollar LIBOR {0.42% at December 31, 2015) plus 1.25% to
1.75%, based on certain financial tests. The interest rate in effect at December 31, 2015 was 1.67%. Foes for letters of credit issued under the 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility range from 1.25% to 1.75% of the respective face amounts of outstanding lettors of credit and are computed based on certain financial tests.
We capitalized approximately $3.0 million of debt issuance costs associated with the 2013 Credit Agreement. This amount is being amortized over the life of
the agreement and is included as part of interest expense. We are required to make principal payments on the Term Loan in installments on the last day of
March, June, September and December of each year, commencing with the calendar quarter ended March 31,2014, in the amount of $4.4 million, with a final
payment of all unpaid principal and interest due and payable or November 25, 2018. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the balance on the
Term Loan was $3 15.0 million and $332.5 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and Deceraber 31, 2014, we had appreximately $99.0 million and
€95.5 million of letters of credit outstanding, respeetively. There were no bomowings outstanding under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2015 and December 31,2014,

Long-term debt in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following amounts as of December 31,2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

2015 2014
C§ 35,000 0§ 332,500

Té_ﬁn Loan, ﬁl’tefési_‘ _pé._&é{b {e-dt varying ainptlﬁis through 2018 :

Capitalized Lease Obligaticns, at weighted average interest rates from 3.0% to 5.8% payaﬁle in vnfying amounts
through 2020 o ) _ o o o _ 3,869 ) 2,883

Other, payable thiough 2019 < S T st
. o _ , _ _ _ o 3sez 335,440
Lesst cusnt matusifies. | - oot s e R 19041

¥ 300,065 § 316,399

Capitalized Lease Obligations

See Note | 5 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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NOTE 10 « FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENTS

We use a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs o valuation techniques used to measure fair value, The hierarchy, which gives the highast priority
te quoted prices in active markets, is comprised efthe following three levels:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, Level 2 inputs would typically include quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the measurement and unobservable.

The following tables provide the assets and liabilities eamried at fair value measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
{in thousands):

Assets at Falr Value as of December 31, 2015

Asset Category ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cashand cash equivalents®y ~ T - ST ARG 5 = § - § 4863l
Restricted cash ) 4,232 — — 4232
_D?féfrqdbi_iiﬁp'énéatiéﬁ"-]:iian assets ®) T : - o L7497 _ — e - 7497
Total $ 498560 § — § — % 498,560

Assets at Fair Yalue as of December 31, 2014

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Castvind cash equivalentsi(D L e e e - e . 5 UA32056° 8T 8 S g 430,056
Restricted cash @) 6,474 — — s4m4
Deferied compoensation planassets® - = . - - 0 o Ity 1 1 FL ey S e E T B0
Total 8 441,669 § — 3 — 3 441,669

(1)  Cash and cash equivalents consist pricarily of money market funds with original maturity dates of three months or less, which are Level 1 assels. At December 31, 2015 and
2014, we had $151.4 million and $156.7 million, respectively, in money market funds.

(2)  Restricted cash is classified as “Prepuid expenses and other™ in owr consolidated balsnee shects,

(3)  Deferred compensation plan assets are classified as “Other assets” in our consolidated belance sheets,

We believe that the camrying values of our financial instruments, which include accounts receivable and other financing commitments, approximate their
fair values due primarily to their short-term maturities and low risk of counterparty default. The canying value of our debt associated with the 2013 Credit
Agreement approximates its fair value due to the variable rate on such debt,

NOTE 11 -INCOME TAXES

Our 2015 income tax pravision from continuing operations was $106.3 millien compared to $103.5 million for2014 and $82.3 million for2013, The
actual income tax rates on income from contitining eperations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests, for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, were 38.1%, 37.4% and 35.9%, respectively. The increase in the 2015 income tax provision compared to 2014 was
predominantly due to certain increases in the state tax provision attiibutable to the mix of eamings and the effect of a change in the United Kingdom
statutory tax rate on deferred tax assets. The increase in the 2014 income tax provision compared to 2013 was primarily due to the effect of increased income
before income taxes and the 2013 reversal of reserves for previously unrecognized income tax benefits.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount of unrecognized income tax benefits was $4.8 million and $5.2 million (of which $3.0 million, if
recognized, would favorably affect our effective income tax rate), respectively.
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES - (Continned)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had an accrual of $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the payment of interest related to unrecegnized income tax
benefits [ncluded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively. During each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we recognized
approximately $0.1 million in interest expense related to our unrecognized income tax benefits. In addition, we reversed less thun $0.1 million and $0.1
million of acerued inferest expense related to our unrecognized income tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As of
Degember 31, 2015 and 2014, we had total incomne tax reserves included in “Other long-term tiabilities” of $5.2 million and $5.5 million, respectively. We
record interest expense on unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expeuse.

A reconeiliation ofthe beginning and end of year unrecognized income tax benetits is as follows {in thousands):

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year L ' T _ . o _ § 0 5203- % - 116
Additions basad on tax positicns related to the current year 611 1,053
Additions based on tix positions related to prior years. - : ’ o R = 2,816
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1,053) {1,162)
Redistions for sxpired statuteof limitations =~~~ . - 77 Lo s (E0)
Balance at end of year 5 4,761 3 5,203

It is reasonably possible that approximately $4.1 million of unrecognized income tax benefits at December 31, 2015, primarily relating to uncertain tax
positions attributable to tax return filing positions, may decreasc in the next twelve months as a result of estimated settlements with taxing authorities and the
expiration of applicable statutes of limitations,

We file income tax retums with the Internal Revenue Service and various state, local and foreign tax agencies. The Company is currently under
examination by the Intemal Revenue Service and various taxing authorities for the years 2008 through 2014. During the first quarter of 2014, the Intemnal
Revenie Service finalized its andit of our federal income tax retutns for the years 2010 through 2011, We agreed to and paid an assessment, for an immaterial
amount, propesed by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant te such audit.

The income tax provision in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations far the years ended December 31, 2015,2614 and 2013 consisted
ofthe following (in theusands):

2015 2014 2013
Current:
Rederal provision, .~ T LU T e e T g 0058 8085208 L E 60440
State and local provisions 21,320 14,532 2,897
Forsigh provision . - oo T e e e U T e e 396 e T083
_ N 116,556 97,780 70,429
Deferred B o T iAoy - saas. . 11857
$ 106,256 & 103,528 % 82,286
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Factors accounting for the variation from U.S. statutory income tax rates from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and
2013 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

Federal income taxes at the statutory rate . . - 97,588 3 S 98576 § 81,448
Noncontrolling interests 7N (1,667} (1,247)
State and local income taxes, net of federd! tax benefits - L ' 12,590 9944 9,446
State tax reserves 62 (38) {6,529)
Permanent differences . T o e ? 3006 0 . 2961 13,226
Domestic manufacturing deduction {6,604) (5,008) (4,778)
Foteign income taxes {including UK statutory tate changes) ST Eey a3 1,183
Federal tax reserves ) _ 14 62 263
Other -~ = - I sy s (726

3 106,256 §$ 103,528 % 82,286

The components of the net deferred income tax liability are included in “Prepaid expenses and other” of $36.0 millien, “Other asscts” of$11.3 m1lhon, and
“Other long-term obligations™ of$167.9 million at December 31, 2015, and the components of net deferred income tax liability are included in “Prepald
expenses and other” of $29.3 million, “Other assets” of$16.6 rm]lron and “Other long-tetm obligations” 0f$173.7 million at December 31, 2014 in the
accompanying Censolidated Balance Sheets,

The amounts recorded for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Deferred income tax assefs:
Excess of amounts e\penstd f'or financml statement purposes overamounts deducted fol income tax purposeb
[nsurancc lxablhtles S ClL o S o 2% 58,582 $ o '_54','3.51 ‘
Pension liability 6,255 16,142
Deferred compensatmn o A I TR DR R ; S -':28,,:033'_.'-7 T 17,886
Other (including tiabilities and IESCWBS) 28,562 31,828 .
Total deferred incomie tak assets . L : o S T Taelgss T 14207
Valuation aliowance for deferred tnx assets ) (805) (2,(')2-4)
Net defelred ipcometaxassets - . oo - L A o . L S 120627 0 112,183
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Costs eapitalized for financial statement purposes and deduclcd fm income tﬂx purposcs
Goodwil and identifiabls infangibloassels . - -0 el T T sy A @isie)
Other, primarily depreciation of‘propeﬁy, plant md eqmpmcnt _ {22,510} {23,884}
Total deferred- mcomc_:rt'lxlmbl,l_ltles_"' IR SR 7;::_ - ‘ L S (241,228 .. (240,010}
‘Net deferred income tax liabilities $ {120,598) § (127,827)

We file a consolidated federal income tax retum including all of our U.S. subsidiaries. As of December 31,2015 and 2014, the total valuation allowance on
net deferred income tax assets was approximately $0.8 million and $2.0 million, respectively, related to state and tocal net operating losses. The reason for
the net decrease in the vatvation allowance for 2015 was related to the utilization of state and local net operating loss carry forwards. Although realization is
not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that the defemed income tax asset, net of the valuation allowance discussed above, will be realized. The
amnount of the deferred income tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced if estimates of future income are reduced.
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At December 31, 2015, we had trading losses for United Kingdom income tax purpeses of approximately $23 4 million, which have no expiration date.
Such losses are subject to review by the United Kingdom taxing authority. Realization of the deferred income tax assets is dependent on our generating
sufficient taxable income. We believe that the deferred income tax assets will be realized through projected future income,

Income befare income taxes from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,2013, 2014 and 2013 consisted ofthe following (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
United States =~ . - . : L Col % 648678 265529 8 - 219,300
Foreign 13,956 16,116 13,409
o e : : : $ . 378823 | § . 281645 -5 - 232,709

As of December 31, 2015, we had undistributed foreign eamings from our United Kingdom subsidiary of approximately $21.9 million for which we have
not recerded a deferred tax liability, as we have provided taxes on a significant portion of such earnings in prior periods and the earnings on which income
taxes have not been provided are indefinitely reinvested. As of December 31, 2015, the amount of cash held in the United Kingdom was approximately $46.5
million which, if repatriated, should not result in any federal or state income taxes. As of December 31, 2013, we had undistributed foreign earnings from our
Puerto Rico subsidiary of approximately $1.4 millien for which we have not recorded a defemed tax liability as such eamings are indefinitely reinvested. As
of December 31, 2015, the amount of cash held in Puetto Rico was approximatety $3.0 million which, if repatriated, may result in federal and state income
taxes of approximately $0.5 million.

NOTE 12 - COMMON STOCK
As of December 31,2015 and December 31, 2014, there were 61,067,368 and 62,981,229 shares ofour common stock outstanding, respectively.

We have paid quarterly dividends since Qetober 25, 2011, In December 2013, our Beard of Directors announced its intention to increase the regular
quarterly dividend to $0.08 per share commencing with the dividend to be patd in the first quarter of 2014, We cutrently pay a regular quarterly dividend of
$0.08 per share,

On September 26, 201 1, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $100.0 millicn of our putstanding common stock, On December 5, 2013,
October 23, 2014 and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us.to repurchase up to an additional $100.0 million, $250.0 millien and $200.0
million of our outstanding common stock, respectively. During 2015, we repurchased zpproximately 2.3 million shares of our common stock for
approximately $112.3 million. Since the inception of these repurchase programs through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9.9 million shares of our
common stock for approximately $395.9 million. As of December 31, 2015, there remained authorization for us to repurchase approximately $254.1 million
of out shares. The repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock and may be suspended,
recommenced or discontinued at any time or from time to time witheut prior notice. Repurchases may be made from time to time to the extent pennitted by
secunties laws and other legal requirements, including provisions in our credit agreement placing limitations on such repurchases. The repurchase programs
have been and will be funded fiom ouroperations.

NOTE 13 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

We have an incentive plan under which stock options, stock awards, stock units and other share-based compensation may be granted to officers, non-
employee directors and key employees of the Company. Under the terms of this plan, 3,250,000 shares were authorized and 1,849,266 shares are available for
grant ar issuance as of December 31, 2015, Any issuances under this plan are valued at the fair market value of the common stock on the grant date. The
vesting and expiration of any steck option grants and the vesting schedule of any stock swards or steck units ave determined by the Compensation and
Personnel Committee of our Board of Directors at the time of the grant, Additionally, we have outstanding stock options that were issued under other plans,
and no further grants may be made under those plans.
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The following table summarizes activity regarding our stock options and awards of shares and stock units since December 31, 2012:

Stock Options Restricted Stock Units
Welghted Weighted
Avernge Average
Shares Price Shares Price

Balahce, Dec_embér3l,2012 . ) 1,796,377 § 17.15 * Balance, December 31, 2012 ) ‘ 588907 § 28.56
Granted — —  Granted ) 192,617 § 36.26
Expired . . e s [ . = TForfeited o (15298 § 2938
Bxercised (85,680) § 1455  Vested _ (155423) § 2777
Balance, Docormber 31,2013 -~ . " 1310697 § ° . 1812 " Balarice, December31,2013 = . 610803  § LALLT
Granted — —  Granted _ 176418 & 43.06
Bxpired - .. 0T T o0 o 0 Forfited. B S (s00) 8 4376
Exercised (743923) § 1352 Vested (152423) § 3246
Balange, Desember 31,2014 . 566774 8 " 2415 Balance, December31,2014 - . T (634208 § 3416
Granted — —  Granted _ 241274 % 45.23
Expired =~ 7 o 7 (30,000) ST 1209 Forfeited . . . .. . (358N § . 29.56
Exercised _ (230,048) S 2671 Vested 266,497) § 32.17
Balance; Decsmber 31,2015~ © - 306726 .§ 2342 - Balance, December31, 2015 0 7 605,488 . § 3047

We recognized $8.8 million, $8.1 million and $6.9 million of compensation expense for stock units awarded to non-employee directors and employees
pursuant to incentive plans for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We have $6.6 million of compensation expense, net of
incotne faxes, which will be recognized over the remaining vesting periods of up to approximately four years. In addition, an aggregate 0£93,399 restrictad
stock units granted to an employee and our non-employes directors vested as of December 31, 2015, but issuance has been deferred for certain periods up to
five years or upon retirement,

All outstanding stack options were fully vested as of December 31, 2012; therefore, no compensation expense was recognized for the years ended
December 31,2015,2014 and 2013.

As o result of stock option exercises, $3.8 million, $6.9 million and $5.2 million of proceeds were received during the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The income tax beneflit derived in 2015, 2014 and 2013 as a result of such exercises and share-based compensation was $1.6
million, $8.6 million and $5.2 million, respactively, of which $1.7 million, $8.3 million and $4.6 million, respectively, represcuted excess tax benefits. The
total intrinsic value of options (the amounts by which the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the option on the date of exercise) that were exercised
during 2015,2014 and 2013 was $4.6 million, $23.5 million and $12.5 million, respectively.

AtDecember 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, 306,726 options, 566,774 options and 1,310,697 options were exercisable, respectively. The weighted avetage
exercise price of exercisable options at December 31,2615, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $23.42, $24.15 and $18.12, respectively. The total aggregate
intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 were approximately $7.6 million, $11.5 million and $§31.9
million, respectively,

The following table summarizes information about our stock options as of December 31, 2015:

Stoelk Options Outstanding and Exerelsable

Range of Weighted Average Weighted Avernge
Exercise Prices Number ) Remaining Life ) Exercise Price
$2042-$2054 0 - 0000 o 0 UlalYeas 0 T U $3043
$22.52-524 .48 140,006 _3.31 Years $23.92
§2939-82926 0 seqa6 L e Yo L R
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NOTE 13 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS - (Continned)

We have an employce stock purchase plan, Under the terms of this plan, the maximum number of shates of our common stock that may be purchased is
3,000,000 shares, Genarally, our corporate employees and non-union employees of our United States subsidiaries are eligible to patticipate in this plan.
Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements generally are not eligible to participate in this plan.

NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

Our United Kingdom subsidiary has a defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible employees {the “UK Plan"); however, no individual jeining the
company fter Ccteber 31, 2001 may participate in the plan, On May 31, 2010, we curtailed the future acerual of bencfits for active employees under this
plan,

We account for our UK Plan and other defined benefit plans in accordance with ASC 715, “Compensation-Retirement Benefits” (*ASC 715"). ASC 715
requires that (2} the funded status, which is measured as the difference between the fir valus of plan assels and the projected benefit obligations, be recorded
in our balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (lass) and (b) gains and lesses for the differences between
actuarial assumptions and actual results, and unrecognized scrvice costs, be recognized through accutnulated other comprehensive income (loss). These
amoutts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost. ’

The change in benefit obligations and assets of the UK Plan for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 censisted of the following components {in
thousands):

2015 2014

Chinge i pénsion benelitobligation . ° 7T T s T R e
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 3 332,806 % 308,877

Actuarial (gain} loss _ 21,707) 40,9006

Benglits fatd LT T e R T T 060) 0918y,
Foreign currency exchange rate changes _ ) (17,273) (21,089
Benefit obligation at end ofyear. . - L IR ST 295825 . 332,806
Change [n pension plan assels

Tait vi ofpianassetsa’tbegmnmgofyear Tl R S 282,095 o 269‘811
Actual refum on plan assets 569 34,012

Eoiployércontributions .. oL - B A ST M SR IEEE ¥ <) RAS PN 6,028 ¢
Benefits paid _ {9,604) 9.915)
Fore1gncurrencyexchange fv_[te,g:hz_m‘ges'r —_— ot e T (I8136) 17841,
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ) _ _ 263,553 282,095

Funded dstus atend ofyear | L LT o USSR T s (32270) - 8 60D

The actuarial gain in 2015 and actuarial lass in 2014 resulted from fluctuations in corperate bend yields leading to changes in the discount rate
assumptions as disclosed below,

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension cost and included in accuntulated other comprehensive loss:

) o 7 ) ) ) 2015 2014
Untecognizedlosses - .0 o i e e Lo g CRBRIETSI 102,673

The underfunded status of the UK Plan of$32.3 million and $50.7 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is included in “Other long-term
obligations™ in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. No plan assets are expected to be retwmed to us during the year ended December 31, 2016,
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The weighted average assumptions used te determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

. 2015 2014
Discount rate - ' . B R ) 38% T 3%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

. _ ) ) 2018 2014 2013
Discountrafe =~ R R ' ' L I3% A% T A3y
Annual rate of return on plan assets 6.3% 6.7% 6.7%

The annual rate of retun on plan assets has been determined by modeling possible returns using the actuary’s portfolio retum caleulator and the fair value
of plan assets. This models the long term expected rotums of the various assct classes held in the portfolio and allows for the additional benefits ofholding a
diversified portfolio, For measurement purpeses of the liability, the annual rates of inflation of covered pension benefits assumed for each of 2015 and 2014
was 2.0%.

The components of net periodic pension cost of the UK Plan for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows {in thousands);

2015 2014 2013
Inferesteost 1 f s T e ST e 1407 5 12,0960
Expected retum on plan assets (16,181) (16,388) (14,369)
Amortization ofiresognized loss - 1IN et T L e T g9 Tl agen’
Net periodic pension cost 3 (2,052) % (832) $ 517

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized using a cortidor approach whereby cumulative gains and losses in excess of the greater of 10% of the pension
benefit obligation or the fair value of plan asscts are amortized over the avernge life expectancy of plan participants. The amortization period for 2015 was 27
years. .

The reclassification adjustment, net of income taxes, for the UK Plan from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $2,0 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 million, respectively, which was classified as a
component of “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The estimated unrecognized
loss for the UK Plan that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost over the next year is approximately
$1.8 million, net of income taxes.

UK Plan Assets

The weighted average asset allocations and weighted average target allocations at December 31,2015 and 2014 wetre as follows:

Target

Asset December 31, December 31,
Asset Category ) ) _ _ Alloeation 2015 2014
Bquity securities - N : B T L LV A33% Cd3a%
Debt securities _ 55.0% 56.3% 56.6%
Cash ’ : Co L . " ’ ) —% L V4% - 02%
Total 100.,0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Plan assets of our UK Plan are invested in marketable cquity and equity like secuiities through various funds, These funds invest in a diverse range of
investments, trading in the United Kingdom, the United States and other international locations, such as Asia Pacific and other European locations. Debt
sccurities are invested in funds that invest in UK corporate bonds and UK government bonds.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy discussed in Note 10 - Fair Value Measurements, the fair value of assets of the UK
Plan as of December 31,2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

Assots at Fair Value as of December 31, 2015

Asset C_a_tegor'x ) Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total

Bquity and equity likeinvestments .~ s 0§ =8 THA21s . — § o (14213
Carporate bonds — 114,434 — 114,434
Govemmentbonds ~ . . - S T 17116 T "X 1
Cash . 7 _ _ o 897 - — 897
Total S - e el LT e 891 s 26265808 - o 80 263,855 ;

Assets at Fatr Value as of December 31, 2014

Assct Category ) Level l Level 2 Level 3 Tolal

Equilty and equity Like investments - S BT R TR TR R L Il
Corporate bonds = 124,380 — - 124380
Govemmentbonds [ i L L HUISALe L R L
Cash 037 — — 657
Toal ST 67§ d8LA3S B o UE 382095

Tn regards to the plan assets of our UK Plan, investment amounts have been allocated within the fair value hierarchy actoss all three levels. The
chamcteristics of the assets that sit within each level are summarized as follows:

Lavel [-This assef represents cash,
Level 2-These assets are a cambination of the following:

(a)  Assets that are not exchange traded but have a unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund. The unit prices are not quoted but the
underlying assets held by the fund are either:

(i} held in a variely of listed investments

(i) held in UK treasury bonds orcorporate bonds with the asset value being based ¢n fixed income streams. Some of the underlying bonds are also
listed on regulated markets.

It is the value of the undetlying assets that have been used to calculate the unit price of the fund.

(b)  Assets that are not exchange traded but have a unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund. The unit prices are quoted. The underlying
assets within these funds comprise cash or assets that are listed on a regulated market {i.e., the vaiues are based on observable market data) and it is
these values that are used to calculate the unit price of the fund.

Level 3-Assels that are not exchange traded but have 2 unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund. The vnit prices are not quoted and are not
available on any market,
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The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the UK Plan’s Level 3 nssets for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in
thousands):

LZguity and Equity Like Investments 2015 2014

Start ofyéar_ﬁalancé o L _: s _ ) ' : 5 —.% - . 5196

Actual retum on plan assets, relating to assets still held at reporting date _— —

Purchases, sales and settlements,net, - c D0 - T D L (4 .88Y)
Change due to exchange rate changes _ — (307)

Fnd ofyearbalance - . e e s T R e N

The investment policies and strategies for the plan assets are established by the plan trustees (who are independent of the Company) to achieve a
reasonable balance between risk, likely retum and administration expense, as well as to maintain finds at a level to meet minimum funding requirements. In
order to ensure that an appropriate investment strategy is in place, an analysis of the UK Plan’s assets and liabilities is completed periodically.

Cash Flows:
Contributions

Our United Kingdom subsidiary expects to contribute approximately $5.4 million to its UK Plan in 2016,
Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following estimated benefit payments are expected to be paid in the following years (in thousands):

Pension

Benefits
2016 gl 9,509
2017 8 9,869
2018 - U8 10974
2019 $ 11,717
2020 BT 5 -'11,_842
Succeeding five years 3 65,454

The following table shows certain information for the UK Plan where the accumulated benefit obligation is in cxcess of plan assets as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 (in thousands);

_ N 2015 2014
Projected benefitobligation * T Un e UL T T S e s T 295,825 .8 . - 332,806
Aceumulated benefit obligation $ 295825 % 332,806
Fuirvaldeofplanassets =~ o o0 S T g - o s 6355508 T Toga 095

We also sponsor two ULS. defined benefit plans in which participation by new individuals is frozen. The benefit obligation associated with these plans as of
December 31,2015 and 2014 was approximately 87.0 million and $6.7 million, respectively. The estimated Fair value of the plan assets as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 was approximately $4.9 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The plan assets are considered Level | assets within the fair value hictarchy
and are predominantly invested in cash, equities, and equity and bond funds. The pension liability balances as of December 31,2015 and 2014 are classified
as “Other long-term obligations™ in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The measurement date for these two plans is December 31 of each year.
The major assumptions used in the actuarial valuations to determine benefit obligations as of December 31,2015 and 2014 included discount rates of4.00%
and 3.80% for2015 and 4.50% and 4.30% for 2014 . Also, included was an expected rate of return of 7.00% for both 2015 and 2014. The reclassification
adjustment, net of income taxes, from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 3 § ,2015,2014 and
2013 was approximately 0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, tespectively, which was classified as a component of “Selling, general and
administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, The estimated loss for these plans that will be amortized
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from sccumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost over the next yoar is approximateiy $0.2 million, net of income taxes. The future
estimated benefit payments expected to be paid from the plans for the next ten years is approximately $0.4 million per year.

Multiemployer Plans

We pazticipate in over 200 multiemployer pension plans (“MEPPs”} that provide retirement benefits to certain union employees in accordance with various
collective bargaining agreements (“CBAs™). As one of many participating employers in these MEPPs, we are responsible with the other participating
amployers for any plan underfunding. Cur contributions to a patticular MEPP are esteblished by the applicable CBAs; however, our required contributions
may increase based on the funded status of an MEPP and legal requirements of the Pension Prolection Act of 2006 (the “PPA”), which requires substantially
underfunded MEPPs te implement a funding improvemont plan (“FIP) or a rehabilitation plan (“RP”) to improve their funded status. Factors that could
impact the funded status ofan MEPP include, without limitation, investment performance, changes in the participant demographies, decline in the number of
contributing empleyers, changes in actuarial assumptions and the utilization of extended amortization provisions,

An FIP or RP requires a particular MEPP to adopt measures Lo correct its underfunding status, These measures may include, but are not limited to: (a) an
increase i1 our contribution 1ate as a signatory to the applicable CBA, (b} a reallocation of the contributions already being made by participating employers
for vatious henefits to individuals participating in the MEPP and/for () a reduction in the benefits to be paid to future and/or cumrent retirees, In addition, the
PPA requires that a 5% surcharge be levied on employer contributions for the first year commencing shortly after the date the employer receives notice that
the MEPD is in critical status and & 10% surcharge on each succeeding yearuntil a CBA is in place with tetms and conditions consistent with the RP.

We could also be obligated to make payments to MEPPs if we either ceage to have an obligation to contribute to the MEPP or significantly reduce our
contributions to the MEPP bocause we reduce our number of employees who are covered by the relevant MEPP for vatious reasons, including, but not limited
to, layoffs or closure of a subsidiary assuming the MEPP has unfunded vested benefits, The amount of such payments (knewn as & complete or partial
withdrawal liability) would equal our proportionate share of the MEPPs’ unfunded vested benefits. We believe that certain of the MEPPs in which we
participate may have unfunded vested benefits. Due to uncertainty regarding future factors that could trigger withdrawal lizbility, as well as the absence of
specific information regarding the MEPP’s current financial situation, we are unable to determine (a) the amount and timing of any future withdrawal
liability, if any, and (b) whether our participation in these MEPPs could have a material adverse impact on our fnancial position, results of operations or
liquidity. We did niot record any withdrawal liability for the yems ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. We recorded & withdrawal liability of approximately
$6.1 million for the year ended December 31,2013,

The following table lists all domestic MEPPs to which our contiibutions exceeded $2.0 million in 2015, Additionally, this table also lists alf domestic
MEPPs to which we contributed in 2015 in excess of$0.5 million for MEPPs in the critical status, “red zone” and $1.0 million in the endangered status,
“orange or yellow zones”, as defined by the PPA (in thousands):

PP A Zane Status (b Cantrilutions Conteibutiuny greater
EIN/Pension Plan FIMRP thun 5% oftotal plan Expiration
Pension Fund Number 2018 20104 Stadns 2015 2114 2013 contributions &) dnte of CBA
Plumbers & Pipefitters+ - - Lo et IERE R . : '_ S i o Lo el R AL e T Jahlini'y_-lﬂi"ﬁ.to'. :
Natianal Pension Fand = - "F ~  S2-6152779 001" - C¥ellow T Yellew implemented 0§, 1302178 10425 TS 12,509 200 o o Ne e L At 2009
Sheet Metal Workers Aprit 2016 to

Nal_iennl Pension Fund 52-G 112465 001 Yellow Yellow Triplemented 10,891 9977 0476 No June 2020

R S D o.- . Febrary

National Elcgltical Benefit B R S PR 11113 (R
Fund- o T CGreencc LN L 851y [ 1985 . ‘September 2020 "
ension, Hospitalization &

Benefit Plan ofthe

Electrical Industry- May 2616 to

Pension Trust Account 13-6123601 001 Greeen Greon NIA 7,541 6,219 6,189 Ne January 2018
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PPA Zone Statas (1 Contelbtions Contributions greater
EIN/Pension Plun FIP/RP than 5% of tatal plan Expiration

Penslon Fund Number 2015 2014 Stalus 2015 2014 013 eontributions ) date of CBA
Nalianal Aulomalic, ’ i : RPN
Sprinkler Inrluslty Penslon : . L S . R, - o : : Maveh 2016t
Fand L 526054620001 Red Red . Impletnented . 6,697 6,000 4226 No Tune2017- .
Central Pension Fund oflhe
Intemational Union of
Operating Bnginecrs and January 2016 1o
PaﬂiLipaﬁng Employers 36-6052390001 Green Green N/A 5465 6,518 6,296 No November2019
Electrical Cuntmclors SRR : . . - . R o
Asgoclalion of(he City of
Chicago Local Union 134, o e
BEW Jpint Pensfon Trust : s T cee : . . . . . _ May 2016 fo Junc
of Chieaga Pension Plan 2 *51-6030753 002 Qreen . Green NFA 5,759 4051 " 2412 No ‘20l6 o
Plumbers Pipefiticrs &
Mechanical Bquipment
Service Loenl Union 392

Pension Plan 310655223601 ch Rud Lplemented 5,554 4,962 4,128 Yes
Shest Meta) Workers : N o : L : T E o )

Pension Plar- ul’Norfhem R C L
Calfforia - ., ) 51-6115939.:0¢1 o -Red

Implomented: "1 T AgsI IA6T 3658 Mo

U.A.Local 393 Pension

Tnlst Funl Defined Benefit 94-6359772 002 _ Green Green N/A 4,597 3,585 2,811 Yo
PlperuersUmnnLucul LT o S LT e el L
537 Perision Fund . L. - .-51-503085900L .- . Green. o SUONIA G srT e T 30390 2981 o Ae90 vt - Yo'
Mortthern Califarnia Pxpe

Tradss Pension Plan 94-3190386 001 NfA 3.544 3270 2,258 7 Yes
E'Ightl1Dls1riclEleclricul R S R T T e -
Pengion Fuwil ; R D 1 L RHIT coQreen T NIA T T T B 2,695 0 30057 < c Vst
Southem (‘nhfonua IEEW-

NECA Pension Trust Fund 95-6392774 001 Omnge o Yellew Lmplemented 2894 2,776 3215 No
Bouili mbulifnmiu[':pc e L P e S R T
Tradgs Retirement Fuind . 516198443001 ... - Green . .- Gren. - SNAA D T 204 T 2 8e3 T Tsage L  No
Electrigal Werkers Local

Mo, 26 Pension Trust Fund 52-611791% 001 Green Green N/A 2,620 2380 2,878 Yos

VA, Dlombers Toci 24 B S e .' oo R R S S 7
Pensica Fund .. - . .22-6042823001 - . _ - Growd .- Green . - WA 2431 CUULEER L 1ER s T Yes
Sheet Metal Warkers

Pension Plon of Southera

California, Arfzona &

Nevada 956052257001 Red Implemented 2310 1,824 127 No

Sanf lcgoElcclrica] AR ' Do ST e T R S Lo Dot
Tension Man e T D 956101801001 Green', - Pending - -~ 2,000 7 LETR. L2680 T Yy

U.A. Local 38 Defined

Benefit Pension Plas 941285119001 Yellow Yellow Im_plcmenled §.526 1,608 ) 1,522 No
Boilemtioker-Blacksmith - . [ T R P R F S .
National Pension Trusl, . . - - 4%:6165020 00 - " Yellow So¥ellws s Twplemented vno o L3ET L 7T 18287 L - Na
Plumbing & Pipe Fitting

LnnanI?]’ensmn ]'und 34-6682376 001 . R_c?d _ Rfd ) Implementad I,Zﬂ? 1107 1,142 Yes

-Bulldmg Tm(lt..f. Unlh.d E L ; : - S
Pensian Trust Fusd - T Co T . R R T o
Milwaukee and Yieinity o ., 516049400001 2o Yellew - o Yellow | Implemented LN SO0 - e - CNa-
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EPA Zane Status () Contributions Cuntributions grenter
ELN/Fension Plan FIP/RT than 5% of total plan ExMratlon

Penslon Fund Number 2013 2014 Statuy wis Wy 13 contributions 9 date of CBA
Steamfitters Lecai Union April 2HT to
No, 420 Pension Plan 23-2004424 001 Red Red Twplemented 845 862 831 Na May 2017
UiA, Local 467 Defined B - - : . s FEP B . - . e - Jinie 2016 to.Jung
RenefitPlan. - - . 94-2353807 005 : Red Red . Tmplementéd - 844 - 787 538 ¢ Ne 2018
Pfumbers & Pipefilters
Local 162 Pension Fund 31-6125099 001 Red Red Implemested & &1 818 770 Yes May 2019
Other Multieivglayer - o N . L . : B B A LT S e
Pension Plans - - . : - . S S 40395 0 44248 RJH Varlovs
Total Conlributions 3 147,056 § 117,991 g 141,271

{[) The zone status represents the most recent available information for the respective MEPP, which may be 2014 or eatlier for the 2015 year and 2013 or earlicr for the 2014 year.

{2) This information was obtained from the respective plans' Form 5500 (“Forms™) For the most current available filing. These dates may not correspond with our fiscal year
contributions. The above noted percentages of contributions are based upon disclosures contained in the plans' Forms. Those Forms, among other things, disclose the names of
individual participating employers whase annual contributions account for more than 5% of the aggregate annual amount contributed by all participating empleyers for a plan
year. Accordingly, if the annual contribution ol twe er mere of our subsidiaries cach accounted for less than 5% of such canlributicns, but in the aggregate accounted for in
excess of 5% of such contributions, that grealer percentage is not availzble and accordingly is not disclosed.

(3) For these respective plans, a funding surcharge was currently in effect for 2015,

The nature and diversity of our business may result in volatility in the amount of our contributions te a particular MEPP for any given period. That is
because, in any given market, we could be working on a significant project and/or projects, which could result in an increase in our direct labor force and a
comesponding increase in our contributions to the MEPP(s) dictaled by the applicable CBA, When that particular project(s) finishes and is not replaced, the
number of patticipants in the MEPP(s) who are employed by us would also decrease, as would our level of contributions to the particular MEPP(s).
Additionally, the amount of contributions to a particular MEPP could also be affected by the tenns of the CBA, which ceuld require at a particular time, an
increase in the coniribution rate and/or surcharges, Our contributions to various MEPPs did not increase as a result of eoquisitions made since 2013,

We alsa patticipate in two MEPDPs that are located within the United Kingdom for which we have contributed $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million
for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The information that we have obtained relating to these plans is not as readily availuble
and/or as comparable as the information that has been ascertained in the United States. Based upon the most recently available information, one of the plans
is 100% funded, and the other plan is between 65% and less than 80% funded. A recovery plan has been put in place for the plan that is less than 30%
funded, which requires higher contribution amounts to be paid by our UK operations.

Additionally, we contiibute to certain multiemployer plans that provide post retirement benefits such as health and welfare benefits and/or defined
contribution/annuity plans, among others. Our contributions to these plans approximated $108.1 miltion, $98.3 million and $93.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our contributions to other post retirement benefit plans did not increase as a result of acquisitions
made since 2013. The amount of contributions ta these plans is also subject for the most part to the factors discussed above in conjunction with the MEPPs.

Defined Contribution Plans

We have defined contribution retirement and sevings plans that cover eligible employees in the United States. Contributions to these plans are based on a
percentage of the employee’s base compensation. The expenses recognized for the years ended December31,2015,2014 and 2013 for these plans were $26.5
million, $25.3 millicn and $22.6 million, respectively. At our discretion, we may make additional supplemental matching contributions to a defined
contribution retitement and savings plan. The expenses recognized related to additional supplemental matching for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 were $4.8 million, $4.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively.
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Our United Kingdom subsidiary has defined contribution retirement plans, The expense recognized for the years ended December31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
was §4.0 million, $4.5 million and $4.0 million, respectively.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitinents

We lease land, buildings and equipment under various leases, The leases frequently inelude renewal options and escalation clausss and require us to pay
for utilities, taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses,

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under capital leases, non-caneelable operating leases and related sublsases with initial or
remaining terms of one or more years at December 31, 2015, werce as follows (in thousands):

Cupital Operating Sublease

_ Leases Leascs Income
2016 - - R . S $ 1459 $ . 58918 § .. ss8.
2017 837 475670 257
2008 . ¢ S e T 650 36637 0 o126
2019 1,083 28,199 63
2020, - S R T g T
Thereaﬁe; S — 46,283 —
“Total minimum légsé payments .~ o T TR T 239,561 % s 01,004
Amounts representing interest _ _ ) . (247
Present vahue of net minimum lease payments - o0 T s T aRee

Rent expense for operating leases and other rental items, including short-term equipment rentals charged to cost of sales for our construction contracts, for
the years ended December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 was $122.0 million, $118 4 million and $118.6 million, respectively. Rent expense for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was reported net of sublease rental income of$1.2 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Contractual Guarantees

We have agreements with our executive officers and cerfain other key management personnel providing for severance benefits for such employees upen
termination of their employment under certain circumstances,

From time to time in the ordinary course of business, we guarantee obligations of our subsidiaries under cerlain contracts. Generally, we are liable under
such an arrangement only if our subsidiary fails to perform its obligations under the contract, Historically, we have not incurred any substantial liabilities as a
consequence of these guarantees.

The terms of our construction contracts frequently require that we oblain from surety companies (“Surety Companies™) and provide to our customers
payment and performance bonds (“Surety Bonds”) as a conditien to the award of such contracts. The Surety Bonds sceure our payment and performance
obligations under such contracts, and we have agreed to indemnify the Surety Companies for amounts, ifany, paid by them in respect of Surety Bonds issued
on our behalf. In addition, at the request of labor unions representing certain of our employees, Surety Bonds are sometimes provided to secure obligations
for wages and benefits payable to or for such empleyees. Public sector contracts require Surety Bonds more frequently than private sector contracts, and
accordingly, our bonding requirements typically inctease as the amount of public sector work increases. As of December31, 2015, based on our petcentage-
of-completion of our projects covered by Surety Bonds, our aggregate estimated exposure, had there been defaults on all our then existing contractual
obligations, was approximately $1.2 billion, The Surety Bonds are issued by Surety Companies in return for premiums, which vary depending on the size and
type ofbond.

We are subject to regulation with respect to the handling of certain materials used in construction, which are classified as hazardous or toxic by federal,
state and local agencies, Qur practice is to avoid participation in projects principally involying the remediation or removal ol such materials. Hewever, when
remediation is required as patt of our confract performance, we believe
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we comply with all applicable regulations goveming the discharge of material into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the
environment.

At December 31,2015, we employed approximately 29,000 people, approximately 56% of whom are tepresented by vatious unions pursuant to more than
375 collective bargaining agrecments between our individual subsidiaries and local unicns. We believe that cur emplayee relations are generally good, Only
two of these collective bargaining agreements are national or regional in scope.

Restructuring expenses were $0.8 million, $1.2 million and $0.6 million for 20 15,2014 end 2013, respectively. The 2015 resiructuring expenses included
$0.9 million of cmaployee severance obligations and a reversal of $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2014 restructuting expenses
included $0.6 million of employce severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2013 restructuring oxpenses
included $0.5 million of employee severance obligations and $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, the balance of our resttucturing related obligations yet to be paid was $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 millicn, respectively. The mafority of
obligations cutstanding as of December 31,2014 and 2013 were paid during 2015 and 2014, respectively, The obligations outstanding as of December 31,
2015 will be paid during the first half of 2016,

The changes in restructuring activity by reportable segments during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows (in
thousands):

United States United States
electrical mechanical
coastraction construction United States
and facilities and facilities building Corporate
services segment services segment services segment Admninistration Total

Batanceat Decsimber 31,2013 7§50 o 30 0§ o 164 08T TS e g REYEEOETTS
Charges _ 638 - 230 —_ ) ) 1,168
Paymenis= oo d) et B68) e R 41 1))
Balance at December'_’:I,ZOM - 255 ‘ 26 — S _281
'Cha'rge_:'_s'- ST T E (105) [ S S i 924 o S . 824
Payments _ y (149 _ (32) {843) — (1,024}
Balance-at Docember 31,2015 - . Bl e o§ L= ke o o 8L ng o e R 1
A summary ef restructuring expenses by reportable segments recognized for the year ended December 31,2015 was as follows {in thousands):

United States United States

electrical mechanical
construction construction Enited States
and facilities and facilitles building Corporate
services segment services segment services segment Administration ) Total

Severange - 0 o ooR T e 8 T T a2 § 0 e e D 8 9307
Leased facilities ] (106) — — -— (106)
Total charges = = .- -t % ST (I08) e L T s 924 S g 824

Government Contracts

As a goverument contractor, we are subject to U.S. government audits and investigations relating to our operations, fines, penaities and compensatory and
treble damages, and possible suspension or debarment from doing business with the government. Based on currently available iriformation, we believe the
cutcome ofongoing goverment disputes and investigations will not have a material impact on our financial pesition, results of operations or liquidity.
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Legal Matters

One of our subsidiaries was a subcontractor to & mechanical centracter (“Mechanical Contractor”) on a constrction project where an explosion occurred.
An investigation of the matter could not determine who was responsible for the explosion. As a result of the explosion, lawsuits have been commenced
against various parties, but, to date, no lawsuits have been commenced against our subsidiary with respect to personal injury or damage to property as a
consequence of the explosion. However, the Mechanical Contractor has asserted claims, in the context of an arbitration proceeding against our subsidiary,
alleging that our subsidiary is responsible for a portion of the damages for which the Mechanical Contractor imay be liable as a result of (&) personal injury
suffeted by individuals as a result of the sxplosion and (b) the Mechanical Contractor’s legal fees and associated management costs in defending against any
and all such claims. In the most recent filing with the Arbitrator, the Mechanical Contractor has stated claims against our subsidiary for alleged violations of
the Connecticut and Massachusetts Unfair and Deceptive Trade Practices Acts in the ongoing arbitration proceeding. Further, the general contractor (as
assignee of the Mechanical Contractor} on the construction project, and for whom the Mechanical Contractor worked, has alleged that our subsidiary is
responsible for losses asseried by the owner of the project and/or the general centzactor because of delays in completion of the project and for damages to the
owner's property. We believe, and have been advised by counsel, that we have a number of meritorious defenses to all such matters, Wo believe that the
ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a meteral adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
Notwithstanding our assessment of the final impact of this maiter, we are not able to estimate with any certainty the amountl of loss, if any, which would be
associated with an adverse resolution. :

One of our subsidiaries, USM, Inc. (*USM™), doing business in California provides, among other things, janitorial services to its customers by having those
setvices performed by independent janiterial companies. USM and one of its customers, which owns retail stores (the “Customer”), were co-defendants in a
federal class action lawsuit brought by six employees of USM’s California janitorial subcontractors, The action was commenced on September 5,2013 ina
Superior Court of California and was removed by USM on November 22, 2013 to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Califernia. The
employses alleged tn their complaint, nmong other things, that USM and the Customer, during a period that began before our acquisition of USM, violated a
California statute that prohibits USM from entering into a contract with a janitorial subcontractor when it knew or should have known that the contract did
not include funds sufficient to allow the janitorial subcontractor to comply with all local, state and federal laws or regulations governing the labor or services
to be provided. The employees asseried that the amounts USM paid to its janitorial subcontractors were insufficient to allow those janitorial subcontractors to
meet their obligations regarding, among other things, wages due for all hours their employees worked, minimum wages, overtime pay and meal and rest
breaks. These employees sought to represent not only themselves, but alse all other individuals who provided janitorial services ai the Customer’s stores in
California during the televant four-year time period. We do not believe USM or the Customer violated the California statute or that the employees could have
brought the action as a class action on behalf of other employees of janitorial companies with whom USM subcontracted for the provision of janitorial
services to the Customer. The plaintiffs sought a declaratory judgment that USM had violated the California statute, monetary damages, including all unpaid
wages and interest thereon, restitution for unpaid wages, and an award of attomeys® fees and costs.

USM and its Customer have seitled claims asserted in the class action pursuant to the terms of a eonsent decree approved by the federal judge in the United
States District Court for the Northem Disirict of California on February 16, 2016, which followed a determination by the Court of the consent decree’s
faimess, adequacy and reasonableness. Under the terms of the consent decree, USM will (a) pay an apggregate of $1.0 million (i) for monetary relief to the
members of the class, (ii} for awards to the class representative plaintiffs, (iii) for Califomia Labor Code Private Attorney Ceneral Act payments to the State of
California for an immaterial amount, and (iv) for all costs of notice and sdministation of the claims process, (b) pay to counsel for the class an aggregate of
$1.3 million, of which $0.2 million has been allocated for theit reimbursable costs and litigation expenses and $1.1 million has been allocated for atterneys’
fees, and (¢} monitor USM’s Califomia subcontractors providing janitorial services to its Customer in accordance with agreed upon procedures designed
principally to cnsure janitorial employees of those subcontractors are paid no less than minimum wage. The settlement amount was accrued for as of
December 31, 2014, During 2015, a payment of$1.0 million was made to a third party claims administrator who was holding the funds pending approval by
the Courl ofthe consent decree, and the balance of $1.3 million was paid in February 2016 after final approval by the Court.

We are involved in several other proceedings in which damages and claims have been asserted against us. Other potential claims may exist that have not
yet been asserted against us, We believe that we have a number of valid defenses to such proceedings and claims and intend to vigorously defend ourselves.
We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial pesition, results of operations or liquidity. Litigation is subject ta
many uncertainties and the outcome of litigation is not predictable with assurance. It is possible that some litigation matters for which reserves have not been
established could be
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decided unfavorably to us, and that any such unfavorable decisions could have a material adverse effsct on our financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.
NOTE 16 - ADDITIONAL: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The following presents information about cash paid for interest, income taxes and other non-cash financing activities for the years ended December 31,
2015,2014 and 2013 {(in thousands):

2018 2014 2013
Cash paid during the year for:
fitorost © . LT s ess § 0 Al 8 1056
Income taxes 3 99,754 % 88,277 § 104,324
Nondonsh fingiisiig setivibies: o Tt TS T
Assets acquired under capital lease obligations b 3847 5 93 8 414

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have the follawing reportable segments: (a) United States clectrical construction and facilities services (involving systems for electrical power
transmission and distribution; premises electrical and lighting systems; low-voltage systems, such as fire alarm, security and process contral; voice and data
communication; roadway and transit lighting; and fiber optic lines); (b) United States mechanical construction and facilities services (involving systems for
hesfing, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation; fire protection; plumbing, process and high-purity piping; controls
and filtration; water and wastewater treatment and central plant heating and eooling; crenes and rigging; millwrighting; and steel fabrication, etection and
welding); (c) United States building services; (d) United States industrial services; and (¢) United Kingdom building services. The “United States building
services” and “United Kingdom building services” segments principally consist of those operations which provide a portfolio of services needed to support
the operation and meintenance of customers’ facilities, tncluding commercial and govemment site-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance
and services, including reception, security and catering services; outage services to utilitics and industrizl plants; military base operations support services;
mobile maintenance and services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, let sweeping and snow removal; facilities management; vendor
management; call centér services; installation and support for building systems; program development, management and maintenance for enetgy systems,
technical consulting and diaguostic services; infiastructure and building projects for federal, state and lecal govemmental agéncies and bodies; and small
modification and retrofit projects, which services ate not generally related to customers’ construction programs. The segment “United States industrial
services” principally consists of those opetations which provide industrial maintenance and services, including those for refineries and petrochemical plants,
including on-site repairs, maintenance and service of heat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping: design, manufacturing, repair and hydro blast cleaning of
shell and tube heat exchangets and related equipment; refinery turmaround planning and engineering services; spesialty welding services; overhaul and
maintenance of ctitical process units in refineries and petrochemical plants; and specialty technical services for refineries and petrochemical plants.
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The following tables present information about industry segments and gecgraphic areas for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (in
thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Revenues from unrelated entities:
“United States electrical constiietion and facilities services ) B 1,367,142 §  1,311988 § 1,345,750
United States mechanical constmcnon and facmtles semces 2,312,763 2,201,212 2,329,834
- “United States bmldmg services . —— ' - - o 17392597 - 17721,341 - : -'1;794,978
United States mdusmal servwes 922,085 839,980 519,413
- _.'_Total Umted States operatlons e T T 6,341,249 6,074,521 . 5089675
United K_mgdom bulldmg services 377477 350,444 343,552
_ Total worldwide opéiations - o $ 6718726 § 6424965 § 6,333,527
Tota] revenues: o
. “United Statcs electrical construction and facilities services - o .08 1378630 0§ 1326547 8 1:371,979
United States mechanical constmctlon and facmlltles services 2,326,683 2 219 886G 2 387 072
' United States building sefvices .~ - . - Lol o6 1760607 0 1,839,129 -
United States ll'ldllStl'l'll services 923,648 842,040 522,417
”'Lsss mtei'segmenttevenues S R : ’ U T RERTT (81,788) o (76649) ._"'_’(1'30,62,—2)'
Total United States nperattons _ 6,341,249 6 074,521 5,989,975
7 United | ngdombulidmg services: - - ST A Astaad 343,352 -
Total worldwide operations $ 6,718,726 § 6424965 § 6,333,527
Operatmg income (loss)
. United Staies elecirical construction and facilifies services o s L maaas Ty 96873 98,114
United States mechanical constmctlon nnd faC]llttCS sewu,es 138,688 114,418 93,765
.'Umted States. bmldmg services _ - : - I e L "i—_'.:-70,532'7 S 65,885 I v
United States mdustrml servtces ) _ 56,469 63,159 38,763
Fotal {njted Stattts nperatmns T o o ST T BATea . "3'3'4“335"_,:'--- D 297867
United Kingdom building semccs _ 11,634 15,011 13,021
Corporate administration, oo LI : : o sler e i”('?,l-,ﬁétzj B (68; 578) R 7(69}'391'_')'
Restructlmng expenses {824) (1,168) 64Ty
+ - - Impairmerit loss on identifiable mt'mglblc assets I R o e . S - R (I EEA _
Gain on sale ofbuilding 7 — 11,749 —
Total woildwide dpefations . = e e T 28708270 U2R9878 % 240350
Other curpomte items: _
“Interest expense” ¢ L ) T L _ A (8,932) o (9’,0?_5) 8,769y
Interest income ) 673 842 1,128
lncome from contmumg opemttons bcfon, income toxes S o s 278823 5 281,645 § . 432709
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Capital expenditures:
* ‘United. States electrical gonstruction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and fdcllllles services
" United States building services -
United States industrial services
: TQt&LUﬁited States p'p_é:l‘ations'-
United Kingdom building services
" Corporafe adminisitation -
Total worldwide operations

Deprccmtlon and amortization of Property, plant and eqmpment

L ﬁUmted States electncul conistruction and fagilities setvices - o
United States mechanical constructmn and facilities servwes

- Umted States building services: : :
Umtcd States mdustnal services

Umted ngclom bulldmg semces 7
':."'Corporate admlmstratlou L

Total worldwide uperatlons

Costs and estimated earnings in excess ofbillings on uncomplctcd contmcts:

_Umted Stdtes electncal coustructlon and facthttes services - ;
United States mechanical constructmn and fac1l1tles servwes

* [ Unitéd States builditg services . - -
Umted States |ndustr1ai services

7 Umted ngclum bulldmg servu:es

i ,_Tntal orldwide, nperatmns

Blllmgs in excess of costs and estimated eamnings ont uncompleted contracts:

: .Umted States electnca] Qonstmctlon andfacllltles services
United States mcchamcql constructmn and fa0111t1es sewtces
r -':.-i'Unlted States bu1ldmg semces N : :
United States industrial services
. Total Uriited States opefations .
United Klngdom hmldmg services
Total wotldwide opefations

2015 2014 2013
6:063 6,671, 6,164 -
5,345 8,631 8,866

7,233 10589 1,579
11,073 9,139 10,281

29714 35030 0L 32,890
5,298 1,935 1,536
a8 e e
35,460 38,035 35,497
A6 4237 3,640
7,624 7,600 7,280
ST X <7 10,660- 11,288
9,629 9,839 8,781
TR TR L 30,989
3,603
V93 e THgRI
36,294 36,524 36,310

39,116 0§ 3%d64 . §7 0 2R98E
46,220 43 443 38,804

308597 T UiRSssT T 1A9sT
1,358 281 5

109,653 94T Lt B2TS
8,081 8,458 7973

17,734 0§ 103201 §- 090727

139,857, SIS UL VENE S 118,458
238,463 199,983 205,974

CAAd7e T aR059 . L 30,827
1,170 1,516 805

423966 . - 353,980 .. 356,064
5,269 14,575 25,231

. 429235 3883550 381,293
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EMCOR. Group, Inc. 2nd Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - (Continued)

Long -lived assets:

United States electrical’ constructmn and fac111t1es services
United States mechamcal construction and facilities SCIV[CCS
- United States building selwces B

United States industrial semces

- Total United States opcrauons

United Kingdom building services

Corporate adrmmstratlon

Total worldwide operations

Total assets:
Unlted States electrmal constmctmn and facilities servzces

United States mcchamca! ccmstmctlon and faCI]ltlBS semccs

o Umted States building services

Umted States mdustna[ semces

T'_.TQtaI Umted States operations P

United Kingdom bmldmg servlcés

g Corporate admmtstmtmn

Total worldwide opemhons

2015 2014 2013

$ 20,39 8 18793 5 - 16,512
296,633 288,161 293,790
378,367 392,364 406,498
730,413 750,101 772,209
1,425,552, 1449418 1,459:000
10,927 6,399 8,831

Lo UAsAY T 023 T T 1806
$ 1438022 3 1458340 S 1499736
$ 372,525 % 332150 0 A2vivan
894,366 793,056 795,256
U653 739082 - T56,785
883,338 954,018 940,916
2,871,882 2816306 - 2,822,699
133,782 130,340 160,828
54D,806° .- 4423210 482388

§ 3546470 § 3388967 § 3465915

The results of our United States mechanical constructien and facilities services segment inciuded revenues of $12.1 million recognized during the fourth
quatter of 2015 as a result of the settlement of a claim on an institutional project located in the southeastern United States. Our United Kingdom building
services segment recognized income of $4.8 millien during the second quarter of 2014, which has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales" in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014, as a result of' a reduction in the estimate of certain accrued contract costs that
were no longer expected to be incured within its building services operations, Our cerporate administration operating loss for the year ended December 31
2013 was reduced by the receipt of an insurance recovery of approximately $2.6 million that was received in January 2013 associated with a previously
disposed of operation, which has been classified as a component of "Cost of sales” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.




Table af Contents

EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLSDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 18 - SELECTED UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
(In thousands, except per share data)

Quartetly and year-to-date computations of per share amounts are made independeutly; therefore, the sum of per share amounts for the quarters may not
equal per share amounts for the year, The results of the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued
operations.

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dee, 31

2015 Quarterly Results

Revenues - .

Gross prefit

Impainnent loss.on identiflable intangible assots

Gain on sale ofbuilding

Netincorne attributable to EMCOR Group, Ing: 32,849 - 46849 §.0 - TA1522 C§ 51,066

Basic EPS from continuing operations 033 0.75 0.66 0.81

Basic BPS from discontitued operation . Teo L o L L DL 080y L @00y e oL
0.52 0,75 066 § 0.82

Dilufed EPS from continuing operations- e L LR 0k s 0T 8 L0660 8 . 080

Diluted EPS from discontinued operation ) 0.00) {0.00} (0.00) 0.0!

SR ITNEE I
235402

1,652,585
239,527_

1,589,187
216,929

CULTTT826
252,621

R S N
b

£

&%

=20

March 31 June 30 Sept. 3¢ Dee. 31

2014 Quarterly Results

S LTI4796
$ 248573
A4
s —
A
8

1,552,919
220241

1,590,539,
2_[_6,?.03

Gross prafit

Impairnient 1oss on identifiable intiigiblo assets .,_' o
Gain on sale of building

Netincorné aitributable to EMCOR Group, Ine. . "7 a6
Basic EPS fiom continuing opetations 0.64 0.68 .07

BaslcEPSh’omdlscontmuedoperatlon el L e el (003) - L (005) (001)

3 061 3% 059 % 067 % 0.66

Dilited EPS fiof continuing operations |~ C: L. oo BT 064§ 06108 e o Dss 8 066
Diluted EPS from discontinued operation ) {0.03) (0.02) ©.01) 0.01)
s SR Tl T el s L 039 % 067 8 1 0.5

s
11,749

L asont 5T aades”

v e Be 4elon b
o e B2 BAT e A
bR T, 2 WL e 4
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders o fEMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod ended December 31,
2015. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on & test basis, svidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
peineiples used and significant estimates made by munagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinicn,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of EMCOR Group, Inc.
and subsidiaries at December 31,2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, tho related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set fortl; therein,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), EMCOR Group, Ine, and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Intemnal Control-Integrated Framewaork issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) and our report dated February 25, 2016 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Stamford, Connecticut /s/ ErnsT & Youwo LLP

February 25,2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Steckholders of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 20135, based on criteria established in
Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committec of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {2013 Framework) (the COSO
criteria). EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of interal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Repetting, Qur responsibility is ko express an opinion on the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Gur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our andit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion,

A compatty’s internal control aver financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reposting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal control
over financial reporting inclides those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
teflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasenable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection ofunauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company’s asscts that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, intermal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections ofany evaluation of
effectiveness to [uture periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditiens, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiarics maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on the COSO criteriz. '

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the conselidated balance
sheets of EMCOR Graup, Inc, and subsidiaries as of Decomber 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statemenis of operations, comptehensive
income, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 and our report dated February 25, 2016 expressed an
unqualified epinion thereon,

Stamford, Connecticut /s/ Ernst & Youna LLP

February 25,2016
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Based on an evaluation of our disclesure controls and procedures (as required by Rules 13a-15(b) of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934), our President
and Chief Executive Officet, Anthony J. Guzzi, and our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Mark A. Pompa, have concluded that cur
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule {3a-15{¢) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective as of the end of the period covered by
this report.

Management’s Report on Internsl Contral over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal eontrol over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(fy and 15d-
15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934). Our intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed with the patticipation of our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial repoiting and the preparation of our financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that: {a) pertain to the maintenance of recotds that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions ol assets, (b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made
ouly in accordance with authorizations of cur managenient and Board of Directors and (¢) provide reasonable assurance tegarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect misstatoments. A control systemn, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can only provide reasenable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions orthat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

As of December 31, 2015, our management cenducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework established in fnternal Controi-lntegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
("COS0"). Based on this evaluation, management has determined that EMCOR's internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31,
2015.

The effectivencss of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 20135 has been audited by Erast & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which such report expressed an unqualified opinion
on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2015,

Changes in Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting

In addition, our management with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions
has determined that no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13{a)-15(f) and 15{d)-15(D of the Securiiies
Exchange Act of 1934} occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31,2015 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting,

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART I
ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The informasien required by this llem 10 with respect to directors is incorporated herein by reference to the Section of our definitive Proxy Statement for
the2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “Elestion of Directors”, which Proxy Statement is to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission putsuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates (the “Proxy Statement”). The
information required by this Trem 10 concerning compliance with Section 16(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to
she section of the Proxy Statement entitled “Section [6(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”. The information required by this Ttem 10
conceming the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and Audit Committee financial experts is incorporated by reference to the section of the Proxy
Statement entitled “Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors” and “Corporate Governance”. Information regarding our executive officers is
contained in Part 1 of this Form 10-K following Ttem 4 under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant”. Weo have adopted a Code of Ethics that
applies to our Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Finaneial Officers, which is listed on the Exhibit Index,

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information tequiced by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections ef the Proxy Statement entitled “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis”, “Executive Compensation and Related Information”, “Potential Post Employmont Payments”, “Director Compensation”, “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Committee Report™,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 (other than the information required by Section 201(d} of Regulation S-K, which is set forth in Part II, Item 5 of
this Form 10-K) is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Secutity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and
“Security Ovmership of Management™.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The infortmation required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of the Proxy Statetnent entitled “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Corporate Governance”,

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information requised by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the section of'the Proxy Statement entitled “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Auditors™.
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PART £V

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULLES

@)

(@)2)

@)

The following consolidated financial statements of EMCOR Group, Inc, and Subsidiaries are filed as part of this report
under Part [I, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years Ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013
Censolidated Statements Comprehensive Income - Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Equity - Years Ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013

Notes to Counsolidated Financial Statements

Reperts of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following financial statement schedule is included in this Form 10-K report: Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts

All ather schedules are omitted because they are not required, are inapplicable, or the information is otherwise shown in
the consolidated financial statements or notes therato.

For the list of exhibits, see the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page hereof, which Exhibit Index is
incerporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exehange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behal Fby the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: Februaty 25,2016

EMCOR GROUP, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s ANTHONY J. GUZZI
Anthony J. Guzzi
President and Chief Exccutive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secutities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalFof the Registrant
and in the capacities indicated on February 25, 2016.

s/ Anruony J. Guzzl President, Chief Bxecuiive Officer and Director
Anthony J. Guzzi (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Mark A. Pomra Bxecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Olticer
Mark A. Pompa (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
s/ SteeneN W, BERSHAD Chairman of the Board of Directors

Stephen W, Bershad

s/ Toun W, ALTMEYER Direcior
John W, Altmeyer

/s/ Davip A, B, Brown Director
David A. B. Brown

/s/ Larry J. Bump Director

Larry J. Bump

s/ Rucrarp F, Hamm, JR Director
Richard F. Hamm, Jr.

s/ Davio H. LAIDLEY Director
David H. Laidley
/s/ Jergy E, Ryan Director

Jerry E. Ryan

/s/ STEVEN B. SCHWARZWAELDER Director

Steven B. Schwarzwaelder

/s/ MicnAEL T, YONKER Director
Michael T, Yonlker
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)

Balance at
Beginning Costs and Additions Charged Balance at
Description of Year Expenses to Other (% Deductions 8 End of Year
Allowance for doubtiul accounts
Year-Ende'd'Dece_ﬁlber 31,2015 -8 . 10424 2,853 - - e S (2,102) % S 1,175
Year Ended December 31, 20!4 $ 11,890 2918 - 4384y § 10,424
Year Ended Degember 31,2013 % 1472~ . = 3,533 ' 12 3,127 3 © 11,8907

(13 Amount principally relates to business acquisitions and divestitures, and the effect of exchange rate changes.
(2 Peductions primarily represent uncollectible balances of accounts receivabla written off, net of recoveries.
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Exhibit

No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Incerporated By Relcrence to or
Yiled Herswlth, as Indicated Below

2(a-)
2(a-2)

2(a-3)

Purchase Agreement dated as of February 11, 2002 by and among
Comfort Systems USA, Inc, and EMCOR-CSI Holding Co.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of August 20, 2007 between
FR ¥ Chmstede Holdings LLC and EMCOR Group, Ine.

Purchase and Sale Apreement, dated as of June 17, 2013 by and
among Texas Tumaround LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, Altair Strickland Group, Inc., a Texas corporation, Rep
Holdings LLC, a Texas limited liability company, ASG Key
Employee LLC, a Texas litnited liability company, Repcon Key
Employee LLC, & Texas limited liability company, Gulfstar MBIL
Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, The Trustee of the James T.
Robinsen and Diana J. Robinson 201G Imevocable Trust, The
Trustee of the Steven Rothbauer 2012 Descendant’s Tst, The Co-
Trustees of the Patia Strickland 2012 Descendant’s Trust, The Co-
Trustees of the Carter Strickland 2012 Descendant’s Trust, and The
Co-Trustees of the Walton 2012 Grandchildren’s Trust (collectively,
“Sellets”} and EMCOR Group, Inc.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of EMCOR filed December 15,
1994

Amendment dated November 28, 1995 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation ol EMCOR

Amendment dated February 12, 1998 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of EMCOR

Amendment dated January 27, 2006 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of EMCOR

Amendment dated September 18, 2007 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorperation o fEMCOR

Amended and Restated By-Laws

Amendment to Article I Section 6(c} and Section 6(j) of the
Amended and Restated By-Laws

Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
MNovember 25, 2013 by and among EMCOR Group, Inc. and a
subsidiary and Bank of Montreal, as Agent, and the lenders listed on
the signature pages thereof (the “Credit Agreement”}

Fourth Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 among EMCOR, certain of its U.S. subsidiaries,
and Bank of Montreal, as Agent

Fourth Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 among EMCOR, certain of its U.S, subsidiaries,
and Bank of Montreal, as Agent

Third Amended and Restated Guaranty Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 by certain of EMCOR’s U.S. subsidiaries in
favor of Bank of Montreal, as Agent
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Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR Group, Inc.’s ("EMCOR") Report on Form 8-
K dated February 14,2002 .

Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR’s Report on Form 8-K (Date of Report
August 20, 2007}

Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR’s Report on Form 8-K {Date of Report June
17,2013}

Exhibit 3{a-3} to EMCOR's Registration Statement on Form 10 as
originally filed March 17, 1995 (“Form 10™)

Bxhibit 3(a-2) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended Decermber 31, 1995 (1995 Form

10-K™

Exhibit 3(a-3) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. for the
year ended December 31, 1997 (“1997 Form 10-K™)

Exhibit 3{a-4} to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2005 (2005 Form 10-K")

Exhibit A to EMCOR's Proxy Statement dated August 17, 2007 for
Special Meeting of Steckholders held September 18, 2007

Exhibit 3(b) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K_ for the year
ended December 31, 1998 (*1998 Form 10-K”)

Exhibit 3.1 to EMCOR's Report on Form 8-K. {Date of Report
December 5,2013)

Exhibit 4(a) to EMCOR’s Annual Report en Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31,2013 (“2013 Fonn 10-IC)

Exhibit 4(b) to 2013 Form 10-K
Exhibit 4(c) te 2013 Form 10-K

Exhibit 4(d} te 2013 Form 10-K
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Incorporated By Referenee to or
No. Deseription Filed Herewith, as Indicated Below
10(=) Form of Severance Agreement (“Sevetance Agreement™) between Exhibit 10,1 to the April 2005 Form 8-K
EMCOR and each of Sheldon I. Cammaker, R. Kevin Matz and
Mark A. Pompa
1) Form of Amendment to Severance Agresment between EMCOR and  Exhibit 10{c) to EMCORs Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
each of Sheldon 1. Cammaker, R. Kevin Matz and Mark A. Pompa quastet ended March 31, 2007 ("March 2007 Form 10-Q")
10{c) Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2004 between Anthony Guzzi Exhibit 10,1 to EMCOR’s Report on Form 8K (Date of Reportt
and EMCOR (the “Guzzi Letter Agreement”™) October 12,2004)
10(d) Form of Confidentiality Agreement between Anthony Guezzi and Exhibit C to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
EMCOR
10(e) Form of Indemnificatien Agreement between EMCOR and each of Exhibit F to the Guzzi Letier Agreement
its officers and directors
10(f-1) Severance Agreement ("Guzzi Severance Agteement”) dated Exhibit Dto the Guzzi Letter Agreement
October 25, 2004 between Anthony Guzzi and EMCOR
10{f-2) Amendment to Guzzi Severance Agreement Exhibit 10(g-2) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
10{g-13 Continuity Agreement dated as of June 22, 1998 between Sheldon I Exhibit 10(c) to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Cammaker and EMCOR (“Cammaker Continuity Agreement”)
10{g-2) Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Cammaker Continuity Exhibit L0(i) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(g-3) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Cammaker Continuity Exhibit 10(m-3) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10¢h-1) Continuity Agreement dated as of June 22, 1998 between R, Kevin Exhibit 10(f) to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Matz and EMCOR (“Matz Continuity Agreement™)
10¢h-2}) Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Matz Continuity Agresmont Exhibit 10(m) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
10(h-3) Amendment dated as of Junuary 1, 2002 to Matz Centinuity Exhibit 10{o-3) to EMCOR’s Quatterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Agreement quarter ended March 31,2002 (*March 2002 Form 1¢-0")
10(h-4) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Matz Continuity Exhibit H){n-4)to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10¢i-1) Continuity Agreement dated s of June 22, 1998 between Mark A.  Exhibit 10(g) to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Pompa and EMCOR (“Pempa Continuity Agreement™)
10(i-2) Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Pompa Continuity Exhibit 10(n) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
Apreement
10(i-3) Amendment dated as of January 1, 2002 to Pompa Continuity Exhibit 10(p-3) to the March 2002 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10¢i-4} Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Pompa Centinuity Exhibit 10(o4) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(-1) Change of Conirol Agreement dated as of October 25, 2004 between  Exhibil E to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
Anthony Guzzi (“Guzzi™) and BEMCOR (“Guezzi Continuity
Agreement™)
10(-2} Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Guzzi Continuity Exhibit 10(p-2) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(-3) Amendment to Continuity Agreements and Severance Agreements  Exhibit 10(q) to EMCOR'’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

with Sheldon I, Cammaker, Anthony J. Guzzi, R. Kevin Matz and
Mark A. Pompa

84

year ended December 31, 2008 (“2008 Form 10-K™)
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Exhibit

EXHIBIT INDEX

Incerporated By Reference to or

No. Description Filed Ierewlih, as Indicated Below
10¢k-1) Amendment dated as of March 29, 2010 to Severance Agreement Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (Date of Report March 29, 2010) ("March
with Sheldon I Cammaker, Anthony J. Guzzi, R, Kevin Matz and 2010 Form 8-K”)
Mark A, Pompa
10(k-2) Third Amendment to Severance Agreement dated June 4, 2015 Exhibit 10(k-2) to EMCOR s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
between EMCOR and Sheldon 1. Cammaker quarter ended June 30, 2015 (“June 2015 Form 10-Q”)
10¢1-13} EMCOR Group, Inc., Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) Exhibit L0 to Formn 8-K (Date of Report December 15, 20035)
10(1-2) First Amendment to LTIP and updated Schedule Ato LTIP Exhibit 10(s-2) to 2008 Form 10-K
10(1-3) Second Amendment to LTIP Exhibit 10.2 to March 2010 Form 8-K
10¢1-4) Third Amendment to LT Exhibit 10(q-4) to EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quaster ended March 31, 2012 (“March 2012 Form 10-Q7)
10{1-5) Foutth Amendment te LTIP Bxhibit 10(1-3) to EMCOR s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2013
10(1-6) Form of Certificate Representing Stock Units issued under LTIP Exhibit 10(-2) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31,2007 (*2007 Form 10-K")
16(1-7) Fifth Amendment to LTIP Filed herewith
10{1-8} Sixth Amendment to LTIP Filed herewith
10(m-1) 2003 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan Bxhibit A to EMCOR's Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting
held on June [2, 2003 (*2003 Proxy Statement™)
10{m-2) First Amendment to 2003 Non-Employee Dircctars’ Plan Exhibit 10(u-2) te EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31,2006 (2006 Form 10-K”)
10(n} Key Lxecutive Incentive Bonus Plan, as amended and restated Exhibit B to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting
held June 13,2013
10(0) Consents on December 15, 2002 to Transfer Stock Options by Non-  Exhibit 10{z) to 2309 Ferm 16-K
Employee Directars
10{(p-1) 2007 Incentive Plan Exhibit B to EMCOR’s Proxy Staternent for its Annual Meeting
held June 20, 2007
10{p-2} Option Agreement dated December 13, 2007 under 2007 Incentive Exhibit 10¢h)h-2) te 2007 Form {0-K
Plan between Jerry E. Ryan and EMCOR
10(p-3) Option Agreement dated December £5, 2008 under 2007 Incentive Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (Date of Report Decomber 15, 2008}
Plan between David Laidley and EMCOR
10(p-4) Form of Option Agreement under 2007 Incentive Plan between Exhibit 10(h)}h-3) to 2007 Form 10-K
EMCOR and each non-employee director clecting to receive
options as part of annual retainer
10(q-1} Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Plan Exhibit 10(q-1) to EMCOR s Quarterly Report on Form 19-Q for the
quarter ended September 30,2015
10{g-2) Form of Cption Agreement under 2010 Tncentive Plan between Exhibit 1G()({-2) to BMCOR's Quatterly Report on Form [0-Q for
EMCOR and each non-employee director with tespect to grant of  the quarter ended June 30,201C
options upon re-election at June 11, 2010 Annual Meecting of
Stockholders
10{q-}) Form of Option Agreement under 2010 Incentive Plan, as amended, Exhibit L0(g)(g) to 2011 Form 10-K

between EMCOR and each non-employse director electing to
receive options as part of annual retainer
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EXHIBIT 100-7)

FIFTH AMENDMENT
TOTHE
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
OF EMCOR GROUF, INC,

WHEREAS, the EMCOR Group, In¢, Long Term Incentive Plan was adopted in 2005 and has since been amended (the aforesaid plan, as amended,
the LTIP);

WHEREAS, Section 8.1 of the LTIP previded that the Roard of Directors of EMCOR Group, Inc. (the “Borrd™) may amend the LTIP, subject to the
terms of Section 8.1; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the LTIP shall be firther amended as provide below;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Long Term Incentive Plan is hereby amended as follows:
1. Section 2 is hereby amended to add the following paragraph to the definition of Eamings Per Share:

“Bamings Per Share” for a Three Year Applicable Petiod comunencing on or after Januaty [, 2015 shall mean the aggregate of the diluted
eamings pet share of the Company’s Commen Stock for each of such three years, as reported in the Company’s “Consolidated Statements of
Operations” for such years in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided, however, that in computing net income to arrive
at any such year’s earnings per share there shal! be excluded from the calculation of such net income {(8) non-cash charges associated with the write-
down of balance sheet values of assets, {b) investment banking, consulting, legal, and accounting fees and related disbursements directly associated
with any proposed or consummated (i) acquisition or investment or (ii) sale or disposition of Company assets or securities, (c) the effect of any
changes in statutory tax rates from those in effect on March 29, 2010, (d) restructuring charges due to sale or closure of a subsidiary’s business, ()
the cumulative effect of any change in accounting principles, (f) charges associated with withdrawal liabilities relating to multi-employer pension
plans and fump sum type surcharges (as opposed to increases in hourly contribution rates) assessed by multi-employer pension plans, to ameliorate
underfunding in their respective plans and {g) income or loss from discontinued operations; and provided further, however, that the Compensation
Comimittee may, within the first 90 days of a Three Year Applicable Pericd, adjust any such period’s Eamings Per Share, to the extent permitted
under Section 162(m) of the Code, to omit the impact on such Eamings Per Share of extraordinary items, gains or losses on the acquisition or
disposal ofa business, and/or unusual or infrequently occuiring events and transactions.”

2. Except as hereinaboye amended, the LTIP, as previously amended, shall remain in full force and effect,
IN WITNESS WHEREOT, the undersigned has executed this Amendment as of the 5t day of March 2015.
EMCOR GROUP, INC.

By: /sf Anthony J. Guzzi
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 10(-8)

SIXTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
OF EMCOR GROUP, INC.

WHEREAS, the EMCOR Group, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan was adopted in 2005 and has since been amended {the aforesaid plan, as amended,
the “LTIP™Y,

WHEREAS, Section. 8.1 of the LTIP provides that the Board of Directors of EMCOR Group, Inc. (the “Board”} may amend the LTIP, subjcct to the
terms of Section 8.1; and

WHEREAS, the Board Las determined that the LTIP should be further amended as provided below;
NOW, THEREFCORE, the LTIP is hereby amended as follows:
1. Effective January |, 2016 new Section 9.14 is added to read as follows:
“9.14. Recoupment of Awards. All Performance Based Target Bonus awards, that may be granted with respect to Applicable Three Year Periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2016, whether or not vested, will be subject to the Company’s Executive Compensation Recoupment Policy, as
such policy may be amended and in effect from time to time (the “Clawback Policy”). By participating in the Plan, including by receiving any award
benefit or payment under the Plan, a Paricipant will be deemed to have agreed to comply premptly and in full with all terms and conditions of the
Clawback Policy with respect to such award.”
2. Bxcept as hereinabove amended, the LTIP, as previously atnended, shall remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Amendment as of the 13! day of January 2016.

EMCOR GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ Anthony I. Guzzi
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 10¢h)(h)
EMCOR Group, Inc.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of EMCOR Group Inc. (the “Company™) has adopted the following policy on the recoupment of executive
compensation {the “pelicy”). References te the Board herein shall include any committee of the Board that has been delegated authority by the Board to
administer and enforce this policy in accordance with its terms.

In the event that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement to correct an error that is material to its previously issued financial statements
under the securities laws, with respect lo any cash or equity-based bonus or other cash or equity-based incentive compensation that was granted, eamed or
became vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of any financial reporting measure (“incentive-based compensation™) during the three completed
fiscal years immediately preceding the “required financial restatement date,” the Board must seek reimbursement of the amount (computed without regard to
any taxes paid) of any such incentive-based compensation awarded or paid to an Executive or effect the cancellation of unvested and vested equity awards
previously granfed to an Executive, if and to the extent the amount of such incentive-based compensation would have been lower had the level of
achievement of the applicable financial reporting measure been calculated based on such restated financial results, unless the Board, or a duly authorized
committee, thereof determines, after a reasanable attempt to recover such amount, that it would be impracticable to seek such recovery as a tesult of the
imposition of undue costs on the Company or its shareholders orit weuld violate non-U.S. law.

The Board will seek the full emount of a recovery under this policy from an affected Executive, absent a determination by the Board in its sole discretion that
such recovery would be impracticable. However, the Board has discretion to determine the form and timing of any such recovery, provided that such recovery
is accomplished in a reasonably prompt manner. The Board will take such steps as it deems necessary in its sole discretion to ensure that all Executives
subject to the policy agree to abide by its terms.

For purposes ol this policy, the “required financial restatement date” is the earlier to occur of the date when the Board concludes, or reasenably should have
concluded, that the Company’s financial statements contained a material error or the date when a court, regulator or other legally authorized bedy directs the
Company to issue a restatenient to corect such a material error. For the avoidance of doubt, an Executive will be deemed to have received incentive-based
compensation in the fiscal year when the financial reporting measure that is applicable, in whole or in part, to the incentive-based compensation award is
attained, even ifthe Executive remains subject to additional payment conditions with respect to such award.

Ifthe achievement of a certain financial reporting measure was considered in determining the incentive-based compensation awarded or paid to an Executive,
but the incentive-based compensation was not awarded or paid on a formulaic basis such that the amount of any erroncously awarded incentive-based
compensation eannot be determined directly from the information in the accounting restatement, the Board will determine in its sole discrefion the
recoverable amount based on its reasonable estimate of'the effect ofthe financial restatement.

For putposes of this policy, an “Executive” shall mean any current or former employee who is, or was, an “officer” of the Company for purposes of Section 16
ofthe Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, at any time during the performance period applicable to the incentive-based compensation at issue.

The remedies under this pelicy are in addition to, and not in licy of, any legal and equitable claims the Company may have or any actiens that may be
imposed by law enforcement agencies, regulators or other anthorities, This policy will be administered in a manner that complies with applicable law and
securities exchange listing requirements, The Compary may adopt additiona! recoupment provisions in the future or amend existing requirements as required
by law or regulation. Subject to the foregoing, the Board shall have the discretionary authority to make all determinations under this policy, including the
authority to construe and apply all relevant terms, and may amond this policy at any time.

Date: December 15,2015



EXHIBIT 11

SEE NOTE 5 TO THE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INFORMATION RELATING TO THE CALCULATION OF
BASIC EPS AND DILUTED EPS.



LIST OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

Dyn Specialty Contracting, Inc.
MES Holdings Corporation
EMCOR Construction Services, Inc.
EMCOR Intemational, Inc.

EMCOR Mechanical/Electrical Services (East), inc.

EMCOR (UK) Limited

EMCOR Group (UK) ple
EMCOR Facilities Services, Inc.
EMCOR-CSI Holding Co.

FR X Ohmstede Acquisitions Co.
RepconStrickland, Inc.

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBET 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We conseni to the incorparation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
(1) Registation Stalement {Fotm S5-8 No. 333-168503) pertaining to the 2010 Incentive Plan of EMCOR Group, Inc.,
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-152764) pertaining to the EMCOR Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
(3) Registration Statement (Form 5-8 No. 333-147015) pertaining ta the 2007 Incentive Plan of EMCOR Group, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statetnent (Form 5-8 No. 333-1 §2940) pertaining to the EMCOR Group, Inc. Stock Option Agreements dated as of January 4,
1999, May 5, 1999, January 3, 2000, January 2, 2001, December 14, 2001, Janvary 2, 2002, June 19, 2002, October 25, 2002, Januvary 2,

2003, February 27, 2003, and January 2, 2004, the EMCOR Group, Inc. 2003 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan and the EMCOR Group,
Inc. 2003 Management Stock Incentive Plan, and

(5) Registration Statement (Form $-8 No. 333-186926) pertaining to the EMCOR Group, inc Voluntary Deferral Plan,
of our reports dated February 25, 2016, with respect to the consolidated financial statemants and schedule of EMCOR Group, Ine. and subsidiaries, and the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of EMCOR Group, Ine. and subsidiaries, included in this Annual Repert (Form 10-K) of EMCOR
Group Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2015,

Stamford, Connecticut /sf Ernst & Young LLP
February 25,2016



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony I. Guzzi, certify that

L.
2.

Date:

Lhave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of EMCOR Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue staterment of a material fact or omit fe state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other finaneial information included in this report, fairly present in all material tespects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of theé registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this repott;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)), and internal centrol over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5{f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have;

a) Designed such disclosure cantrols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures o be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known lo us by cthers within
those entities, particuladly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Desiged such intemal control over financial reporting, or cansed such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finaneial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

dy  Disclosed in this repert any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aunual repert) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over finaneial reporting; and

The registrant’s other centifying officer(s) and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee ef the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or aperation of internal contro! over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial infermation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvés management ot other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

February 25,2016 fsf ANTHONY ). GUZZI

Anthony I, Guzzi
President and
Chief Executive Officer




LEXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark A. Pompa, certify that:

L.
2.

Date:

[ have reviewed this annua! report on Form 10-K of EMCOR Group, Inc,;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or omit to state & material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislsading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and ather financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(c)), and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules | 3a-15(f) and 15d-
15(D)) for the registrant and have:

a} Designed such disclosure controfs and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures te be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such intemnal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supetvision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilily of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extornal purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting ptinciples;

¢) Hvaluated the effectivencss of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclased in this repatt any change in the registrant’s internal eontrol over financial reporting that oocurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarier in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected, ot is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and L have disclosed, based on our most recent cvaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s anditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
contral aver financial reporting.

Febmary 25,2016 fs/ MARK A, POMPA

Mark A. Pompa
Executive Vice President
and ChiefFinancial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 US.C.SECTION 1354,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In conneetion with the Annual Report of EMCOR Group, Inc, (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December31, 2015 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report™, I, Anthony J, Guzzi, President and Chief Exocutive Officer of the Company,
cettify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002, that:

I. The Report fully coraplies with the requirements of Section 13(2) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information centained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company,
Date:  Febmary 25,2016 /s/ ANTHONY J. GUZZ]

Anthoay I. Guzzi
President and
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTLED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connaction with the Annual Report of EMCOR Group, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Repert”), L, Mark A. Pompa, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certily, pursuant to 18 US.C, Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

L. The Report filly-complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

3. The information contained in the Report firly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company,
Date: Febiuary 25,2016 /s/ MARK A, POMPA

Mark A. Pompa
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

During the reporting period covered by this report, our subsidiary MOR-PPM, Inc. (*PPM™) received one significant and substantial citation from the Mine
Safety and Health Administration (“MSHA") for work performed at Unimin Corporation’s Tunnel City Mine in Tomah, W The citation was subsequently
terminated by MSHA. The total civil penalty assessed by MSHA related to PPM’s work at the Tunnel City Mine for this repotting period was $1,788.00. PPM
has no other disclosures to report under section 1503 for the Tunnel City Mine for the period covered by this report.

On December 1, 2615, PPM received an imiminent danger order dated November 30, 2015 issued by MSHA under Section 107(a) of the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Act of 1977 for work performed at the Blair Plant in Trempealeau County, Wisconsin. The order was terminated within minutes of it being
issued and no employees or equipment were injured or damaged. No civil penalty has been assessed. PPM has no other disclosures to report undar section
1503 for the Blair Plant for the period covered by this report, ’

During the reporting period covered by this report, PPM received two citations from MSHA for work performed at the Hi-Crush Wyeville Mine in Wyeville,
Wisconsin. The order was subsequently terminated by MSHA, The total civil penalty assessed by MSHA related to PPM’s work at the Wyeville Mine for this
reporting period was $227.00, PPM has no other disclesures to report under section 1503 for the Wyeville Mine for the period covered by this report.

During the reporting period covered by this report, our subsidiary Southern Industrial Constructors, Inc. (“SIC™} received a single proposed civil penalty
assessment of $100.00 from MSHA related to work performed at 3M Corporation’s Pittshoro Plant in Moncure, NC. The citation was subsequently terminated
by MSHA. SIC has no other disclosures te report under ssction 1503 for the Pittsbote Plant for the period covered by this report.






B34-/6

RULES RESOLUTION NO. -2016

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND

EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.L

WHEREAS, in accordaﬁce with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of
Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract T62250-03M, NASSAU
COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATION, [“Contract”], as
more particularly described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with
the Clerk of the Legislature; and

WHEREAS, the Department is representing to the Rules Committee that the term
of this contract is two (2) years and that the estimated expenditures under this contract is
seven million dollars ($7,000,000); and

WHEREAS, the firm of WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.L

[“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible bid for the work described in

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the

Department, and






WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from operational funds approved by
the Nassau County Legislature, and
RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, based
on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the Commissioner
of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute the said

contract with the vendor.






COUNTY OF NASSAU
Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Office of the County Executive
Att: Rob Walker, Chief Deputy County Executive

FROM: Department of Public Works
DATE: August 30, 2016

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD

Contract No: T62250-03M
Title: NASSAU COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATION
Bids received on: July 19, 2016
I'have examined the bids submitted for the contract mentioned above. Finding them to be in order, I
recommend this contract be awarded to Welsbach Electric Corp. of L., as the lowest responsible

bidder with a total comparison bid amount of $6,378,220.00. In order to facilitate processing of the
above referenced coniract, I request that the attached “Request to Initiate” form be approved.

A_Shila Shah-Gavnoudias
Commissioner
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BID 7/19/2016
1 bidders

ENG. BID
EST. FACTOR

ITEM APPROX

ENGINEER'S
ESTIMATE

,.wm 943,200.00

WELSBACH
PRICE PER

+15% ABOVE
ENG. EST.

120,000.00 110%

MATERIAL
700,000.00 130%

TIME

$132,000.00
$310,000.0C

ENG. EST
$6,428.850,

00

CONTRACT T6225003M COMPARISON OF BIDS
TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE

WELSBACH
TOTAL

% ABOVE + OR BELOW-

Eldor picked up but did not bid

Page 1 of 1

$144,000.00
$910,000.00

WELSBACH
$6,378,220.00
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Shila Shah-Gavnoudias, Commissioner
FROM: Kenneth G. Arnold, Assistant to Commissioner
DATE: August 5, 2016

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD

Contract Number:  T6225003M

Title: Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract

Engineer’s Estimate: $6,428,850.00

Bids Received on:  July 19, 2016
The bids received for the above referenced contract have been examined and the bid submitted
by Welsbach Electric Corp., L.I., in the amount of $6,378,220.00 is acceptable as the lowest
responsible bidder.,
Since the low bid is under the engineer’s estimate and adequate funds are available in the
Department of Public Works, Traffic Engineering Operating Budget and Capital Budget 62017,
it is requested that the Recommendation of Award be prepared for the Commissioner’s

signature and forwarded to the County Executive for his action.

Attached herewith, please find a completed Staff Summary form for your information and use.

Kenneth G. Arnold
Assistant to Commissioner

KGA:SMD:Imm
Attachment

c: Sheila M. Dukacz, Section Head, Signal Management Section
Loretta Dionisio, Hydrogeologist I1

R:/Signal Shop/2016 Documents/Recommendation of Award T6225003M-July 19, 2016
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COUNTY OF NASSAU ho
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 0 Y7

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Civil Service Employees Association, Nassau Local 830
Att:  Ronald Gurrieri, Executive Vice President

FROM: Department of Public Works
DATE: September 29, 2016
SUBJECT:  CSEA Notification of a Proposed DPW Contract
Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract
Proposed Contract Number: T6225003M
The following notification is to comply with the spirit and intent of Section 32 of the County/CSEA
Contract. It should not be implied that the proposed DPW authorization is for work, which has

“historically and exclusively been performed by barcainine unit members.”
& o

1. DPW plans to recommend a contract/agreement for the following services: Contract Number
T6225003M-Traffic Signal Maintenance

2. The work involves the following: Repairs and maintenance to the County’s over sixteen-
hundred (1,600) intersections for traffic signals and related equipment.

3. An estimate of the ¢cost is: $6,500,000.00
4. An estimate of the duration is: Two (2) years
Should you wish to propose an alternative to the proposed contract/agreement, please respond within

ten (10) days to: Department of Public Works, Att: Kenneth G, Amold, Assistant to Commissioner,
telephone 1-9607, fax 1-9657.

Kenneth G. Arnold
Assistant to Commissioner

KGA:HTL:Imm
c:

Christopher Fusco, Director, Office of Labor Relations

Brian Libert, Deputy Director, Office of Labor Relations
Keith Cromwell, Office of Labor Relations

William S. Nimmo, Deputy Commissioner

Patricia Kivo, Unit Head, Human Resources Unit

Harold T. Lutz, Director of Traffic Engineering

Sheila M. Dukacz, Section Head, Signal Management Section
Loretta Dionisio, Hydrogeologist IT

Jonathan Lesman, Management Analyst I1

R:/Signal Shop/2016 Documents/CSEA Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract T6225003M






- : o ~BID-BOND
FORM OF BID ROND

IMPORTANT The bidder shall instruct the Surety Company to URE THIS
FORM PROVIDED as the use of ANY OTHER FORM may cause rejection of the

bid.
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

that we, ths undersigned_Welshach Electric Corp. of L., 300 Newtown Road, Plainvisw, NY 11803

as Principal; and Travelsrs Casually and Sursty Company of America as surety, who
is Tlcensed to do Dusiness in the State of New York, ake hereby firmly
bound untoc the County ¢f Massau in the penal sum of

Two Hundred Thousand and 00/100 dollars (9 200,000.00 ) for the payment

of which, well and truly te be mads, we hereby Jointly and severally
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns. ‘

Signed, this & day of ' iy 2018

The conditions of the above obligation is such that whereas the
Principal has submitted to the County of Nassau a certain Bid attached .
heretc and hereby made a part hereof, to enter into a contract in
writing for the work under Contract No._ T82250.03M . _for the

Nassau County Traffic Signal Malntenange Specification Various Locations Nassau County, Mew York

NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that if the
Frineipal shell not withdraw sald proposal excepl by mutual consent of
the County of Nassau within a periocd of forty-five (45} days after the
opening of hids and in the event of acceptance of the Principal's
propesal, if the Principal shall,

a. when notified by the County, execute all necessary counterparts of
the contract as sst forth in the contract documents in accordance
with the proposal as accepted; and

b. furnish bonds and other security as specified in the contract

- -- documents for the falbthful pezformance and proper fulfillment of such
contract, which bonds or other security shall be satisfactory in all
reaspects to the County; and .

. in all respeckts, comply with the provisions set forth in the
invitation te bid; or Lf the County of Nassau shall reject the
aforosald proposal for a reasen other than the Principal's failure
to satisfy the County that he has the necessary skill, experience
and liguid assets ‘reguired for the contract as stated in the
documents aforesaid, then this obligation shall be null and vold;
otherwise Lo remain in full force and effect.

23 of 318 Gotrtracd No, TE2250-15M
NG Trafiio Signs! Maintsnancs Spedficalion






Provided, however, that thils bond is subject to the following additional

(=

e s G ORGLE L OD 8- ARA - LA £ B L 0T B s e i )

In the event that the Principal fails to submit a Financial
statement when required by the County or in the event that an
examination of the Princlipal indlcates to the County that the
Principal does not meet the filnancial reguirements requirsed by the
County, the undersigned will, upon demand, pay to the County of
Nagzau, as liguidated damages for the Principal's Ffailure to meet
such reguirements, a sum egqual to the amount that would have been
regquired by a certified check 4if the same were delivered in
accordance with the provisions of the contract documents and

‘specliications herein stated.

b. In casge the Principal shall default in the performance of any
provision the undersigned will upon demand pay to the County of
Naasau the full amount of the damages sustained by the County of
Nassau by reason of such default, except howover, it 1s expressly
understood and agreed that the liability of the surety for any and
all claims hersunder shall in no event exceed the amount of this
obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value recelved, hereby stipulates and agrees that the
obligation of said Surety and 1lts bond shall be in no way impaired or
affected by any extension of time within which the County of Nassau may
accept such Bid; and sald Surely does hereby waive notice of any such
extension,

25 of 316 Gontract Mo, T62250-03M
NC Trafilc Signal Maintanance Specliication






IN WITNESS WHERECF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set

e X nad v handse and_sgals,. and_sugh of them .as are corporations have cansed

their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.

Welshach Eleciric Corp, of L.l -

Contractorx
N b
{Corporate seal of
by (1...5.) Contractor
T s e [C.6.0- Title if a corporation)
by {(L.83.)
Title
by {L.S.)
) Title
Travelers Casually and Surely Co Bpargy of Amarica
Ore Towar Square Hartford, CT 061
Surety

{L.5.)

_Rlta Sagistano, Aitamay—ln -Fact

(Corporate seal

KOO0 Witness: C.;'U-e AMZZJ {L,,8.) of Surety)
FCOE DGR

27 of 311 Gonkract No, TB2260-03M
NG Traffic Signal Malmznance Specification






STATE OF rfm 4% }

S55.1

COUNTY OF h!&ﬁﬁﬁw& )
On this |T%B day of 1 ; 20 lk, ; before me personally
came : P o to me known,

who, being b me.éluly sworn, did depose and say for himself, that he
resides in w
.that he is thePheswesr/t@b of the Welsbach Eleotic Corp. of L.

the corporation described in, and which execoted the foregoing
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal
affiged to said lnstrumsnt is such corporate seal; that it was so
affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that
he signed hils name thereto by like order. ;

dtary Public

{Acknowledgment by Contractor if a partnership) DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Publlc, State of New York
STATE OF ) : No. 01KUEC06716
) Qualified In Suffolk Y

58, ! Gommission Expi Lgust 4, 2018
COUNTY OF )

On this day of - ; 20 , before me pepfsonally
came to me kno and lknown

to me to be a member of :

the firm deseribed in and which executed the fogp€going bond or
ohligation, and he acknowledged to me that he subgezfibed the name of
gsald firm thereto on behalf of said firm for -the purpose thereln
mentiened.

Notary Public

{Acknowledgment by Cantracter if an ipdivlidual.)

STATE OF )
1
CgELr e Ce -
COUNTY OF )
On this day © , 20 , hefore me personally
came to me

tnown and known tesfie to be the person described in and who executed the
foregolng instpdment, and he duly acknowledged that he executed the

Natary PubLic

29 pF 3146 Gonract Mo, TG2250-08M
NG Traffic Slgnal Maintenance Spedlication
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tacknowledgment by Surety Company)

B I e o T VP S S G o YU U T PV U

STATE OF NawYork )

58.:
COUNTY OF Nassau }

On this B8t day of July ; 20716 ;, before me perscnally
came Rita Sagistano to me
Known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that he resides
in Nassau County, NY . ‘

that he is the AttomeyIn-Fact of the Travelers Casualty and Sursty Company of America , the
corporatlon described in and which executed the within instrument; that
he knows the seal of sald corporatien; that the seal affixed to saild
instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed hy the order
of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that he signed his
name thereto by like crder; and that the liabilities of sald company do
not exceed its asaets as ascertained in the manner provided by the laws

of the State of New York, and thz sald DonnaMarie Spisiman further said
that he is acquainted with Rita Sagistane and knows him
to be the -Atormey-In-Fact of sald company; that the signature

of the said RitaSaglstano X subsoribed to the within instrument 1s
in the genuine handwriting of the-said Rita Saglstano

and was subscribed thersto by llike order of the Board of Directors, apy
in the presenge of him, the sadd DonnaMarie Spielman

DONNA MARIE SPIELMAN
Notary Public, State of New Yok
No. 018P6248741
Qualifiod in Nassau Count
Commission Explres 09/19/2018

a1 af 38 Gonlract Mo, TE2260-0306
NG Trafflo Signal Maintenance Speciication
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CERTIFICATE OF SOLVENG

UNDER SECTION 1111 OF THE NEW

= b it e e et

STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
It Is hereby cettified that
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
Of Hartford, Connecticut

a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Corinectiout and
duly authorized fo transact the business of insurance in this State, Is
gualified to become surety or guarantor on all bonds, undertakings,
recognizances, guararities and other obligations required or permitied by
law; and that the said corporation is possessed of a capital and surplus
including gross paid-in and confributed surplus and unassigned funds
(surplus) aggregating the sum of $2,232,075,876 (Capital $6,480,000) as
is shown by Its sworn financlal statement for the first quarier ending
March 31, 2016 on file In this Department, prior to audit.

The said corporation cannot lawfully expose itself to loss on any one risk
or hazard to an amount exceading 10% of its surplus to policyholders,

unless it shall be protected in excess of that amount in the manner
provided in Section 4118 of the Insurance Law of this State.

In Withess Whereof, | have
unto set my hand and affixed

official seal of this Department
in the City of Albany, this

18th day of May, 2016.

Maria T. Vullo
Acting Superintendent

By ‘

Jaddustine Catalfamo
Special Deputy Superintendent
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WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY |5 INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER

AT, POWER OF ATTORNEY
TRAVE LE R s “] Farmington Casualty Company St. Panl Mercury Insurance Company
Fidelity sand Guaranty Insurance Company Travelers Casualty and Surety Company
Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Ine. Travelers Casunalty ond Surety Company of America
St. Paud Fire and Marine Busuraoce Company United States Fidelity an@ Guaranty Company

5t. Paol Guardion Insurance Company

Attorney-In Fael No, Certificate No, 0 D 6 7 4 l 0 8 8

220701

KENOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Harmington Casualty Company, St. Paul Fire.and Marine Insurance Company, St. Poul Guardian Iusurance
Company, $t. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, Travelers Casttalty and Surety Company of America, and United States
Fidelity and Guaranty Company are corporations duly organized uwnder the laws of the State of Connectlout, that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Compsny is a
corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Iowa, i that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc., is a corporation duly organized under the
laws of the State of Wisconsin {heren collectively cailed the “Companies™), and that the Companies do hereby make, constitufe and appoint

Thomas Bean, Rita Sagistano, Gerard S. Macholz, Susan Lupski, Robert T. Pearson, Camille Maitland, George O. Brewster, Colette R. Chisholm,
Vincent A, Walsh, Lee Ferrucci, Desiree Cardlin, Nelly Renchiwich, and Mia Woo-Warren

of the City of Unigndale , State of, New York , thelr true and lawful Alternay(s)-in-Fact,
ench in thelr separais capucity if more than cne is named above, to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognizances, conditional undertakings and
other writings obligatory in the nature thereof on behalf of the Companies in theix business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performence of
contracts and executing or gusrantesing bonds and undertakings requires or permfited in any ubflons or proceedings allowed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have cansed this instriniént to be signedl #hd thefi corborate senls io be hereto affixed, this 21st
day of ___ April L2016 o ' '
Farmington Casualty Coxfipiny ’ St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company
Fidelity ol Guaranty Tnstirance Conipany ' Teavelers Cagualty and Surety Company
Fidelity and Guaranty Iusumgice"{.]ndm-writbrs, Inc. Travelers Cagnalty smd Surety Company of Amervica
St. Paul Fire and Mayine Insurance Company Undied States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

St. Paul Guardian Insurance Cormpeany

3
g“?ﬁ’ohl'hm;g%_
wul

3 ;

State of Connecticut By: A Ll
“ .
City of Hartford ss. Robert L. Raney, Evier Vico President

On this the 218t day of April . 2016 | before me personally appeared Robert L, Raney, who acknowledged himself to
be the Senior Vice President of Farmingten Casnalty Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insmrance Compuoay, Fidelity and Guaranty Tnsuvance Underwriters, Tne., St. Paul
Fire and Matire Tnsurance Company, S¢. Paul Guardian Tnswrance Company, St. Paul Mereuty Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Sutety Compnuy, Travelers
Casualty and Surety Cotnpany of America, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Coropany, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes theretn contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himsalf s a duly authorized officer.

XNanis_¢. 3 froult

Muvle C, Tetreault, Notary Public

In Witness Whereof, T hereuuto set my hand and offieial seat.
My Conmmission axpives the 30th day of Tune, 2016.

58440-8-12 Printed in U.S.A.

WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY 15 INVALID WITHOUT THE BED BORDER







WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER

This Power of Attarney is granted under and by the anthority of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of Farmington Casually Company, Ridelity
and Guaranty Tnsurance Company, Fidality and Guaranty lnsurance Underwriters, Inc., St, Panl Fire and Maring Insurance Company, 5t. Paul Guardian Insuratice

Company, -St. Paal Mereury Tnswrance Company, Travelers Casualty and Syrety Compary, Travelers Casualty and Swrety Company of America, and United States
Fidelity and Guaranty Company, which resolutions are now in full foree and effect, veading os folfows:

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chaitman, any Executive Vice Presidont, any Senior Vice President, any Viee Prosident, any Sccond Vice
Prasident, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or aty Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents 1o act for and on behalf
of the Company and may give zuch appolntee such authority as his er her certificate of authority may presoribe Lo sign with the Company’s name and seal with the
Company’s seal bonds, recognizances, conitacts of indemnity, and other wiitings obligatory in the nature of a bond, tecognizance, or conditlonal undertaling, and ity
of said offtcers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointes and revoke the powet given him or her; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chaitman, the Prosident, any Vice Chadrman, any Bxecutive Vico President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice President may

delegats all o any part of the foregoing authority to onc or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation is in writing and a copy
thereof is filed in the office of the Sccrstary; and it is

TFURTHIR RESOLVED, that any bond, tecoguizance, ceniract of indanmity, of wiiting ohligatory in the natare of a bond, recognizance, ot conditional undertaking
shall be valid and binding wpon the Company when (a) signed by the Presidont, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice Prosident, any Senior Viee President or auy Vice
President, any Second Vice President, the Trsasurer, any Assistant Treasuzer, the Corporate Secretury or any Assistant Secretary and duly ttestad and sealed with the
Company’s seal by a Secretaty or Assislant Secretary; or (b} duly exscuted (under seal, if required) by one or more Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents pursnant to the power
presoribed in his or ber cenificats or their cortificaies of anthority or by ons or more Company officers prsmant 1o a writlen delegation of anthority; and i is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following ofticers: Fresident, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, nny Vice President,
any Assistant Vice President, auy Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the aeal of the Company may be aflixcd by facstmile to any Power of Alotney or to any
certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Residont Assistan Secretarlos or Attorneys-in-Fact for purposes anly of exceutlng snd aitesting bonds
and undlertaklogs and other writings obligatoty in the nature thereof, and any such Power of Attorney or certiticate beaxing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal

shall be valid and binding npon the Comparny and any such pownr so executed and cortified by such facsimile signafure and facsimile seal shall he valid and binding on
the Company in the future with respect to any tond or understancling o which it is attached,

I, Kevin B, Hughes, the ondersigned, Assistant Secietary, of Farmington Casualty Company, Pidelity and Guaranty Ineurance Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insutunce
Underwriters, Inc., $t. Paul Fire and Matine Insurance Company, St, Payl Guardian Insuyance Company, St. Paul Metcury Insnrance Company, Travelovs Casualty and
Surety Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, and United Sfates Fidelity and Guargnty Company do hereby certily that the ahove and foregoing
Is 4 true and correct copy of the Power of Atiomey executed by said Companles, whigh is in full fogee and effect and has not been revoked,

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOCRF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the scals of said Companlos this_8th__ day of __July

#
ey

To vetify the authenticlty of this Power of Attorney, call [-800-421-3880 or contuct us at www.iravelershond.com. Please refer to the Attorney-In-Fact number, the
above-named {ndivicduals s the details of the bond to which the power i3 attached,

WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY |5 INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER







TRAVELTRS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA
HARTFORD, CT, 06183 :

ATTONNEY-IN-FACT SUSTIFICATION
PRINCIFAL'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT —1F A CORPORATION

4 O At it

State of New York, County of } s T

Cn'thig day of 20 , bofare me persenaily appearcd R
ta we Kalawny, who, being by me doly sworn, dopoges and says: ‘That he/sho resldes n the City of :

that helshe 38 the : of

L . the
corporation desmritied in and which exceuted Bie within Instramont; that he/she knows {lse seal of said comorating; Lhat the seal affieed 1 snid astramenl is such cm;omln
seal; tiat ft was to affixed by rdzr of the Eoast of Directors of.sald comporation, and thit hefshe signed hishier name theseto by like order. :

PRINCIPALS ACKNOWLENGMENT = 1F INDIVIDUAL OR FIRM
State-ofMov York, Casoty of § 35
DOn s diy ¢

ny of
Yavm to be (the tndividnal) {ons of the Smt of .
[nsiruimes, and helshe thasupa duly sckowteded Lo me that hefshe executed the she f2s the net and deed of said Brm)

20 , befora me persanally ppeared in me
y desueibed 36 pod why sxecwted the within

EUHETY COMPANY'S ABKNO}VLEDGMENT
Siale of New York, County ol Nassau y

Ontsiy Sth day of Jul , 1018 , before me persanatly sppearcd Rits Saﬂisial_'lp . 10
ma knoven, who, eing by me duly swem, ggd deposs and sny; ‘Thak he/she rasides kn the Gipad County of Nassau, NY

fhal helshe &5 Attomey-ia-Fact of TRAYELERS CABUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, the coypeation desoribed I and which cateuted the s
Instrument;, (it hefshie knows the corporals sebl of seld Cotpany, Hat the seal affixed to said lnstromen i such corpoeate seal: sud that hofshe sipned sald Instadment es
Altorey-in-Fst by nuthorfty of the Bowrd of Direclors of sald Comjiany; an pifant did further depose and say that itie Superintendent of Tnsurance of the Siale of Jel York
hiat, pussuans (o Chapter 882 of the Laws of the Slats of Hew Yok for e year 1935, constinuing chapter 28 of the Conso idating Laws of the State of tew York g5 the
Tsltce Law a8 amended, issued to TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA hisfhof certificate that sald Qpmpany Is
treanws sod be preapted as sureky or guarantor on o!) bons, tnderlakings, reeognizances, guarantics, and other oblipalinns req g by lavw; apd
cartificaie has not becn revoked. Q

DONNA MARIE BPEL
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AHD SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA  Notary B Biais N York

Haslford, Gonneclicul 06183 No, 01SPB248741
‘ . Qualliled in Nagsau County
FINANGIAL STATEMENT AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 Commission Expiras 09119/2019
AS FILED VTH THE INSURANGE DEPT, OF THE STATE DF HEW YO
CAFITALSTOCK § 6,480,000
ASBETS ' LIABIITIES & SURPLUS

CASH AND INVESTED CASH $ 545000 UNEBARNED PREMILMS $ 362033584
BONDS . 3,500,572 K20 LO5%ES 735,728,574
STOOKS 245,961,411 LOZS ADMSTMENT EXPENSED 270,900, 406
INVESTMEMT INCOME DU ANE ACCRUED 43,905,720 COMMISSIONS 144,300,874
OTHER INVESTELYASSETS - 3,500,975 TAXES, LICENSEA AND FEES 11,351,717
FREMIUM BALAMCES. 200,090,913 DTHER EXPENSES A0A58,807
NET DEFERRED TAX ABSET 65751396 | - CURRENT PEDERAL AND FOREIGN INCOME TAXES 16,458,820
REIRSURANCE REQOVERABLE 22592590 REGITTAMCES AND IYEMS NOT ALOCATED 4,895,723
SECURITIES LENDING REIHVEST G} CMLATERAL ASSETS 1,112,178 ANQUNTS WITHHELD ! RETAINED 8Y COMPANY FOR OTHERS 91,854,553
RECEIVABLES FAOM PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES ARD AFFILIATES 29859402 RETROACTIVE REINSURANCE RESERVE ASSUMED 888, 144
OTHER ASSETS 5,585,597 FOLIGYHOLDER DIVIIEND S 8,080,104
FROVIEION FOR RENSURANGE 3BME04

ADVANCE PRENILM 1,472,895

PAYABLE FOR BECURITIES 2,000,000

PAYABLE FOR SECURITES LENDING 1,712,172

CEQEN RENSURANLE HET PREMIUMS PAYARLE 26,024,320

EHCHEAT WABILTY 604,021

OTHER ACGRUED EXPENSES AND LIABLITIES 1,850,859

TOTAL LABILITIES : : §_2.00],307,081

CAPITAL BTOLK A 3 B4b0,000

PAID I SURRLUS 439,803,760

OTHER SURPLYS 1,602.012.028

TOTAL SURPLUS TO POLICYHOLRERS §_2100,805,70

TOVAL ABSETS ’ : §0.184503,769 TOVALLABLITIES & SURFLUS ¥ 4,154,505, 769

Saeuflles carded al 57,695,538 In {he abova stalemant ars rlaposited with publlc aulhoritias, Bs refuired by law.






PROPOSAL
7o the County of Nassau

- DRAFETC..SIGNAL MAINTENANCE

VARIOUS LOCATIONS
NASEAYU COUNTY, NEW YORK

Contract No. P62250-03M

TO THE COUNTY OF NASSAU:

pursuant to and in cofpliance with your Advertisement for Bids and
the Instructions to pidders relating thereto, the undersigned hereby
proposes to furnish all plant, labox, materials, supplies, equipment
and other  facilities necessary OC proper for or incidental to the
above Contract, as required by and in strict accordance with the plans
and specifications for the amount named in the proposal hereinafter
described.

- In making this propcsal the Bidder hereby declares that the
Addenda which has been issued by the County of Nassau and has bkeen
received by him, that all provisions thereof have been complied with
in preparing his bids.

Mame of Bidder: cusBher gugerrie Cosgs B Lo
(Lﬁdév%duadq—Jﬁhﬁwﬂdfﬂgprporatigﬁ) as case may be)

Bidder's Address: _3'0'0 h(e’»fﬂvf»/ rl/"’ /?\,MJWEM(. N‘f Ligo3

Telephone: /5'\0 sy . o023 Date: \,.M,q \q/,zo\(e
e ¥ 1 T l
FAX Tele: (‘;’M) tr!ﬁ“l#r 0292~ E-Mail: S?Kuunap@ gHeot. Nev
NOTE: IF BIDDER IS A FIRM, FILL IN THE FOLLOWING BLANKS:
Name of Partners Residence of Partners
,_..»"'/

'://”’Mﬁd,»«”’" ‘#’ﬂf#w”’,,/”’

NOTE: IF BIDDER IS A CORPORATION, FILL IN THE FOLLOWING BLANKS:

Organized under the laws of the State of:*__EN(yomK
Name of President/c.é,o. \,oqs‘fH 1. fropto

Pxesident‘s Domicile:

hssr,
Name of Vice Pres:ﬁiD*J‘?KQMmf€

Vice Pres's Domicile:

1 o

Corporate Cfficer: M\W \{A\gnﬂ » Title:m
|

Corporate Officer’s Domicile:m
Fo

Corporate Officex: \ﬁ%uﬁ;¢Vﬁﬂ1wa».q#/- Title: ﬁtg;ﬁgﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂr‘

PR ot

Corporate Officer's Domiclle: —
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The Following Paragrapﬂs are Applicable to the CoHtiact

THE BIDDER AFFIRMS AND DECLARES :

1.

Proposal DPW

That the above bidder is of lawful age and the only one interested
in this bid; and that no other person, firm ox corporation, except
those herein named, has any interest in this bid or in the Contract
proposed to be entered into.

That this bid is made without any understanding, agréesment or in
coninection with any sther person, £irm ox corporation, making a bid
for the same work, and is in all respects fair and without collusion
or fraud.

That said bidder is not in arrears to the County of Nassau upon debt
or contract, and is not a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon
any obligation to the County of Nassau.

L}

That no officer nor employee of the County of Nassau, or person
whose salary is payable In whole or in part from the County Treasury
is, shall be, or become interested directly, or indirectly as a
contracting party, partner, atockholder, surety or otherwise, in
this bid, or in the perfcrmance of the contract, or in the supplies,
materials, equipment and work or labor to which it relates, or in
any portion of the proefits thereof.

That he has carefully examined the site of the work and that, from
his own investigations, has satisfied himself as to the nature and
location of the work, the character, quality and quantity of
existing materials, 211 difficulties likely to be encountered, the
kind and extent of equipment, other facilities needed for the
performance of the work, the general and local conditions, and all
other items which may, in any way, affect the work or 1ts
performance.

The bidder also declares that he has carefully examined and fully
understands all the component parts of this Contract, that he will
execute the Contract. and will completely perform it in strict
accordance with its terms for the following prices.

Where the work performed ender this Contract involves a trade or
occupation licensed in the County of Nassau by the Towns of
Hempstead, Oysater Bay or North Hempstead or by the Cities Glen Cove
or Long Beach, the contractor shall be required to have such a
ligense.

41 of 315 Contract No, T§2260-03
NC ‘Iraftic Signal Maintenance Spaifitat



II.

III,

IV,

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

Rejection of Bida.

A.

The Commissioner may recommend a reject of bid if:

1. The Bidder fails to furnish any of the information required by
the bid documents; or if

2. The bidder misstates or conceals any material fact in the bid,
or in the sworn written statement; or if

3, The bid does not strictly conform to law or the requirements
of this contract; or if

4. The bid is conditional; or if

3. A determination that the bildder is not responsikle is made in
accordance with law; or if

6. The bid, in the opinion of the Commissioner, contains
unbalanced bid prices, unless the bidder can show that the

prices are not unbalanced for the probably required guantity
of such items,

Rejection of all bids and walver of informalities.
The Commissioner, however, reserves thoe right teo recommend to

reject all bids whenever he deems it in the best interest of the
County, and also the right to waive any informalities in a bid.

Unit Price Contracts, Comparison of Bids.

Bids on Unit Price Contracts will be compared on the basis of
a total bid price, arrived at by taking the sum of the
Approximate Quantities of such item multiplied by  the
corresponding Unit Price, and including any Lump Sum Bid on

individual items, in accordance with the items set Forth in the
bid proposal.

Bidders are warned that the Approximate Quantities of the
various items of work and material is estimated only, and is
given solely to be used as a uniform basis for the conparison of
bids., The quantities actually required to complete the contract
work may be more or less than estimated.

lump Sum Contracts, Comparison of Bids.

Bids on lump Sum Contracts will be compared on the basis of
the Lump Sum Price bid adjusted for alternate prices bid, if any.
Apprenticeship Training Program

For all contracts in excess of $500, 000 attach here

verification letter regarding your firm's having an approved
State of New York Apprenticeship Training Program.

ES%W_4%rTﬂawg;,%4iﬂ
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INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD
OF

ELECTRICAL WORKERS ™~~~
Nassau-Suffolk Counties

To Whem It May Concerh;

Raf  Walshach Electric Corp. L.1.

¢

This will confirm that Welsbach Elec’éric Corp.LlIsa signatory confractor in good
standing with Local Union #25, IBEW and employs Local Union #25 member
electricians and is affiliated with our New York State Registered apprenticeship

~ Program.
Very fruly yours,
{. U.#25, IBEW
evin M. Ha -
' Business Manager
KMHH/rfs ' '

370 Vanderbilt Motor Plwy » P.O, Box 18033 ¢ Hauppauge, NY 117888833 * (631) 273-4567 « Fax(631) 273-4775 .
o GEEERD o
ATTACHMENT #1A
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term
“Jobbyist” means any and every perso or organization retained, employed or designated by any
clienit to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County; its agencies, boards,
commuissions, department hieads, legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open
Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such mattets include, but are
not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to
County regulation, procursments. The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director,
trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when
discharging his or her official duties,

Noie

2. {ist whether and where the person/ organization is registéred as a lobbyist (e.g,, Nassau
County, New York State):
Nowg ]

3. Name, address and telephone aumber of client(s) by whom, or on whose bebalf, the
lobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

‘\(0»! €
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4, Describe lobbying activity condueted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify
client(s) for each activity listed. See page4 for a complete description of lobbying activities.

Woie

5. The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist
expects to lobby:
[‘(cm‘ €
66 of 315

Contract No. T62250-05M
NG Traftl: Signal Malntenance Specificatien

B R PV VA S






6. Tf such lobbyist is retained os employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or

'"““““““éﬁrplﬁymentyow‘must-‘a‘ctaehva-eepy»ei'lsu,ch.document;-andiﬁ.agmﬁmﬁnt of retainer or

employment is oral, atiach a written statement of the substance thereof. If the written agreement

of tetainer or

employment does not contain a signed authorization from the client by whom you

have been authorized to lobby, separately attach guch a written authorization from the client.

7. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign

contributions

putsuant to the New York State Blection Law in (a) the petiod beginning April 1,

2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period
beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosurs,
to the campaign committees of ary of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the -
camipaign committces of any candidates for-any of the following Nassau County elected offices:
the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County
Legislator? If yes, to what cempaign commitiee?

Note

1 understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of
Information Technology (“IT”) to be posted on the County’s website.

I also undersiand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must
give written notice to the County Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood
the foregoing statements and they are, 0 his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaion committees

listed sbove were made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a povernmental

benefit or in

exchange Tor ary bensfit or remuneration,

S

Dated: _luut 19,20\ Signed:
Print Name; (\J vttt 7. fuowio
Title: 4 w’ﬁm@:ﬂ‘r’/ L.Eo.
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolation, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or staployee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services ot construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agresment involving the disburserment of public monies; any determination made by the
County Bxecutive, County Legislature, or by the County of WNassau, its agencies, boards,
contmissions, department heads or comumittees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committes, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, departrment heads or committees with tespect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the.county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or rovacable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
anty determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of & County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
SUpport or oppose any state or federal leglslation, rule or tegulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or

regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or “lobbying activities” does not include: Persons engaged in drafting
legislation, rules, regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on
proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates, where such professional services are not
otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or administrative
action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and
television stations and owners and erployees thereof, provided that their activities in connection
with proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates are lirtited to the publication or broadcast of
news items, editorials or other conment, or paid advertisements; persons who participate as
witnesses, attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-making proceedings of
a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to

influence a County agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York
State Administrative Procedure Act,
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these quastionnaires must be anaswered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space fo answer any question, make as many photocopies of
ihe appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR

AWARD
lo‘iﬂ’ﬂ '? {::-o(u-o

1. Principal Name
Date of birth
Home address

Clty/state/zip

Business address ___ 3ob_fevoi_ L@
City/state/zip TVornbioy , Ny 11805
Telephone {51 45‘?-00’2-3
Other present address(es) -
City/state/zip -
Telephone -

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

9. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President 0% / 15 jdoo2 Treasurer ___ [ !
Ghalrman of Board ! / Shareholder { !
Chief Exec. Officer 02 /15 | 20%Secretary __ [
Chief Finanoial Oficer _{|_/ 05 /19 Partner __/___/
Vice President 0% /o) /1992 j___1
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES _ NO X If Yes, provide detalls.

;!-. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitiing the questionnaire? YES __ NO X_  If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any husiness or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES _ _ NO X
If Yes, provide details.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts te a business or organization listed in

Section 5 In the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES . No JX__
If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency,

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy

the appropriate page and attach it to the guestionnaire,

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a. Been debarrad by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?

YES NOo X If Yes, provide detai!é for each such instance,

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, andfor had any

contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO L If Yes, provide detalls for each
such instance,

¢. Been danled the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
includipg, but not limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES
NO If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with ity
and/or is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such

business’s ability to bid or propose on-contract? YES NO X If Yes, provide
details for each such Instance,

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 flled &
bankruptecy petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceadings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptey proceedings inltiated more than 7 years ago and/or is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever
initiated? If Yes', provide detalls for each such instance. {Provide a detailed response fo all

questions checkad “YES", If you need more spagce, photocopy the appropiiate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a) s there any felony charge pending against you? YES __No i If Yes, provide
details for each such charga,

b) Isthere any mis'demeanor charge pending against you? YES NO 2(;_ If
Yes, provide detaits for each such charge,

c) s there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO __x__ if
Yes, provids details for each such charge.

d) Inthe past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felany, or
of any othar crime, an slement of which relates to truthfulness or the underiying facts
of which refated to the conduct of business? YES __ NO %_ If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.
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e ey the-past-§-years;-have-you been.convicted, after frial or by plea, of a

10.

11.

12.

misdemea

nor

? .
YES _ NO_X_ If Yes, pravide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or

statutory charges? YES NQ If Yes, provide detalls for each such
occutrance.
In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 6

years, have you b

aen the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust

investigation by any federal -state or local prosecuting or investigative agency -andfor the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities parfarmed at, .
far, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in

response to Question 57 YES NO _X  If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.
in addition to the information provided, in the past § years has any business or organization

ligted in respanse

to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil

anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principal owner or officer? YES NO If Yes; provide details for each such

investigation.

In the past 5 years, have you of this business, or any other affiliated business listed in
response to Question & had any sansiion imposed as a result of judicial or ad inistrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES __ NO_XA  IfYes;
provide details for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax
applicable federal

years, have you falled to file any required tax retumns or failed fo pay any
, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited

to water and sewer charges? YES NO _& If Yes, provide detalls for each such

year.
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNEGTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT

BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

l, ,\OW?H T, Feopuo , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questiennaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledgde, Infermation and belief: that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
-gireumstancas. occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belisf. | understand that the County wilt rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter intc a contract with the submitting business

antity.
Sworn to before me this 19 day of éuuf 20\
RLENE KUMMER
Notgmpgubiic. State of New Yark
‘ e in Sufolk County
Ounlified in Suliol '
Ndtary-Plblic Gomwmission Explres August 4, 2018

\J’(a_sww eweereic (hng.pe L.
Name of submilting business

Joseti T, Eomio

Print namM

Signaturd

7&@ mm/ ¢.ge.0,
Title '

0F 7 14 ; 2oilb
Date
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Business History Form

2 s —

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the digcrefion of the County,
taking into consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to
perform the services required by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the pubiic interest.

in addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this
guestionnaire. The questionnalre shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, carporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicable.”
No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Date: luu{ \q, 20\
gt
1) Proposet's Legal Name: \P(E'U%’HH ettt Cun? oe L.

2) Address of Place of Business: Zoo_fewrown @D}?mr!\ngv!, M\} \\g0%

List all other business addresses used within last five years: N /pf

3) Mailing Address (if different): I‘f/#
Phone ;_( 516} 4540023

Does the business own or rent its facllities? K\s’ W1~

4) Dun and Bradstreet number. 01, 232 9169

%) Federal LD. Number: __ |1- 238 L'MS' |

8) The proposer is a {check one). Sole Proprietorship Partnarship
Corporation _Y_ Other (Descrice)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or squipment expenses with any other
business’?
Yes __ Moy if Yes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes __ No _x_ 'f Yes, please
provide details:
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8) Daes this business have one or more afiiliates, andfor is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by,
any other business? Yes _)_‘:_ No___ If Yes, provide details,

WM.@_\,& 0F LT, 45 ¢ ““"*“,‘ DU SuBsimAny bf BVoat Gy ce.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes _ No _&_ If Yes, state the

name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such cancellation
or forfeiture: or detalls regarding the termination (If a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes _ No A
If Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affilfated business, been the subjact of a criminal Investigation andfor a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or Investigative agency? Andfor, in
the past & years, have any owner and/or cfficer of any affiliated business heen the stibject of
a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities
performed at, for, or an behalf of an affliiated business.

Yes __  No If Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

13) In the past § years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including
but not limited to faderal, state and local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years,
has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by
any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business. Yes ___ No X f Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

14) Has any current. or former director, owner or officer of managerial employee of this business
had, either befare or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertained to events that aliegedly occurred during the time. of employmaent by the
submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a} Any felony charge pending? Yes __ No A If Yes, provide detalls for
each such charge,

b} Any misdemeanor charge pending? Yes ___ No 7&_ if Yes, provide details
for each such charge.

¢} Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after {rial or by plea, of any felony
andior any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the
undertlying facts of which related to the conduct of business? Yes  No _ﬁ_
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If Yes, provide detalls for each such conviction

d) Inthe past b years, peen convicted, after trial or by plea, of & misdemeanor?
Yes ____ No _ﬁ_ If Yes, provide details for each such conviction,

@) Inthe past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or
regulatory provisions? Yes ___ No _.&_ If Yes, provide details for each such
ocourrence. ; _

15}In the past (5) years, has this businass or any of lis owners or-officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with
respact to any professional license held? Yes No X: If Yes, provide details for
sach such instance.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to flle any required tax returns or failed fo
pay any applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not
limited to water and sewer charges? Yes___ No _&_ If Yes, provide details for each
such year. Provide a detailed response to all uestions checked 'YES'. If you heed more
space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questiohnaire.

Provide a detailed response to ali questions checked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it fo the questionnaire.

17y Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any confilcts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: if no
conflicts exist, please expressly state “No conflict exists.”
{i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may creaie a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting on behatf of Nassau County.

No (ofeud T gy18ns

(i Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County
public servant that may ersate a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

Ko lortui iF RIS

(iil) Any other maiter that your firm belleves may create a conflict of interest or
the appaarance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

Ko Tofucr ess

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, te assure the
County that a conflict of interest would pot exist for your firm in the future.

}T %ﬁ Wels BACH BLEtml Coigls bud Tk Shisuak A—Hit_ Ao ot Yeronil
aana bF VHTERERFT e el ) e rg}t

Axp Renos o]

|

v
4 : ﬁaw% % Nonpep ) HEpIK
Aer Guint —Tfg | pertes oy Ko fuesuE

<Spap Lonfrcr
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A, Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,

demonstrating extensive experience in your profession, Any prior sirmilar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:
) Date of formation;

) Name, addresses, and position of ail persens having a financial interest In the
company, including shareholders, members, general or fimited partner;

i) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company;

v} State of incorporation (if applicable); A ESGM 015"
hcracrier EWtsn LTI 0

V)  The number of employees in the firm; Sa?:: EV, %Wﬂ

vl)  Annual revenue of firm;

viiy  Summary of relevant ascomplishments

vif)) Copies of all state and loca] licenses and permits,

B. Indicate number of years in business, (80 ‘jﬂ s

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to perform these services. M/ﬂ—-

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer

has provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability o
perform this work.

Company Iffa\( \'oma%m V.o T,

Contact Person RAFTIE 0 ApLto
]

Address 22 @MA-PN’A\{ , Quriﬁ' 20 |

7
City/State An g | Now ‘!aUL o1
Telephone (6310 588 2908
Fax# (63D) 5%9. 7907
E-Mail Address LLApure & Yo Srve .;ﬂ’i. us

m
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Company

?{A%M Coum"j Do

Contact Person

Suern Dugsee

1194 ?MG#B’CI" Ave, Su e 183

Address

City/State \grsreany N ‘Jow 1540
Telephone (S\ID 542 o%‘:‘.’

Fax # (sw) 531-4263

E-Mail Addréss

S PUkALE f") tfmsm ﬂoum' M\f Qu\f

Company /ﬁuﬁ( N Falumntfmd
Contact Person gpﬁl[:l; \ZMGK-D

Address Voo Yl GTeeT

City/State Harwgrod , e’ saie \124%
Telephong ( 531 25 3057
I (D E LI

E-Mall Address

Busto@Tou mm,rgm«. Y. us
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE (N
CONNEGTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT

BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

i .\ pseft 1. Fw&w » being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in tha foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item thersin to the best of my
knowledge, information and bellef; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances oceurring after the submission of this questionnaire and befors the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this

questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity,

Swaorn te before me this l‘?ﬂ day of Luuj 2016
@/&/ DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01KUG09¢6718
Notery PPublic Qualified In Sufiolk County
; Eixplres August 4, 2019
Name of submitting business: \I{mﬁm FUSETRAL, am\aﬁp e Lo,
By: _SWWH Y, FLone
Print a
Sighafure
?we.ww/(l«éiba |
Title ! - -
0% ¢ 19 ;2006 Sl
Date v
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Page 1of 4
COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR'S ANb VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: \l‘(g\ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂﬂ Bl Cuf. o LI
Address: Fob Nevouy Loat-

City, State and Zip Code: 7»&'1‘&{ oW, ilew |I%.atz,kc. 11§05

2. Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: \\. 2854251

3. Type of Business: g Public Corp Partnership Joint Venture

1td, Liability Co ____Closely Held Corp Other (specify)

4. List hames and addresses of all principals; that is, all individvals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets if necessary):

Dee_evtot Buosy i Loi5 ewsun, Beapor

5. List names and addresses of all sharcholdets, members, or partners of the firm, If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individuel shareholders/partners/members, If a Publicly
held Corporation, Include a copy of the 10K in lien of compleiing this section,

See e‘M]aJoﬂu %ﬁnu€=|ﬁc. 2018 fuius @e—fnw
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6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship 1o the firm entered on line
1. above (if none, enter “Nono™). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract, Such disclosure shall

be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companics not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

9@: Eit?aod_ %EMH;; Wl 2018 AN‘rJum.- éﬁ‘yowx‘. oo a‘meﬂ-gwasmm? T ek

T (e giTeeer oN l.ma’ i v(uw?e*méma,?mr N Twe Pemfmjmw
oe e (adiaer

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, _
bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter “None.” The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or
organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter
before - Nagsau County, its agencies, boards, comrnissions, department heads, legislators or
committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and
Planning Commission, Such raztters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals,
development or immprovement of real property subject to County regulation, proourements. The
term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

(2) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s);

Nowe
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Page 3 of 4

e e o st tmase

(b) Desctibe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, See below for a complet_ﬁr
description of lobbying activities.

Noe

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g.,
Nassau County, New Yotk State):

;«(o.{é

&, VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor or Vender authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears ihat he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his’her knowledge, true and accurate. '

Dated:_ &mﬂl \4, 20l6 Signed: M
g ' 4
Print Name: }J@WH Y. fomin

Tifle: Yoz wemr/ (.€.D.
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Page 4 of 4

The term lobbying shall mean 4ny attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassan County Yegislature, or any member thereof, with respect 1o the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or rvesolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or etnployee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services o construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the dishursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or comumittees, including but not limited to the Open Spacs and
Parks Advisory Committes, the Planning Commission, with respect to the #oning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissioss, depattment heads or commiitees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the egenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring ot scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an slected county officjal or an officer or employee of the county to
Support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or

regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.
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PROPOSAL: For all work in accordance with the drawings and
specifications:

\I{Ewmwwa (oas. 8¢ | T
(EIndiwiouai—Foem Or(COLPOrAtiony as case may be])

Tndividual's Soclal Security Number —

Firm or Corporation's Federal ID Number \1. 235425 |

Pirm or Corporation's Municipal License 1D Number 184

Municipal Licensing Agency CH'EH}%TE‘A =4
| )

By: M\ Date: Sa,uu-’l 19, 201l

{Print) \WH Y. fLopio Title: /mem! {L.E.0.

WHERE BIDDER IS A CORPORATION, ADD:

M
ASsf. Secretary | Micdeis Vizert

ATTEST:

{CORPORATE)
(SERL}

L DPW _ 73 0§ 315 Gontract No. T§2250-03
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QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

Note: All blanks in the form are to pa filled in. Where blanks are not

applicable to your firm, so indicate in each instance.

4,

How many years hag vyoux £irm been in the business under your pPresént
business name?

How many years expesrience in the construction work of a similar

type as this contract nhas your firm had;

a. as a Prime Contractor

b. as a Subcontractor

List below the construction projects youxr firm has under way as of
this date:

Contract Class Percant Name and Address of Owner
Amount of work Completed or Contracting Officer

See Amc«m’a:f#“l

(use additicnal blank sheets if additional space is necesgsary)

I,ist the prejects which your firm as a firm has performed in the
past few years which you feel will qualify you for this work:

Contract Claas Percent Wame and Address of Owner
Amount of work Completed or Contracting Officer

6 Mo e 167 30} Ne pow

T Y T

rt too’s Tovi o¢ Yuminron
1 penaerars  loolh N5, D0,

ft 'IOD% 4

(use additional blank asheets if additional space 1s necessany)

5. Hawve you:

Proposal DFEW N Traffic Signal Malntenance Spétiati

a. ever failed to complete any work awarded to You? 0
1f so; identify the project, the owner, the contract amount,
the circumstances and date of all such failures to complete.

b. ever been defaulted on a contract? _ No©
- If so; identify the project, the owher, the contract amount,
the circumstances and the date of all default actions
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Job

025

055
056
268
277
278
287
288
300
302
304
305
313
315
316
318
319
320
321
322
323
390
391

643
647
649
630
651
652
653
654
635

Owner

Contract

Welsbach Electric Corp. of LI

Job List

Description

Transportation Division

Broadway Maintenance
Garage

Warehouse
N.Y.S.D.O.T.
N.C.D.P.W.

Cily of Long Beach
ServCo (PSE&G)
Vlllage of Valley Stream
Town of Oyster Bay
N.Y.5D.OT.

Town of Islip

Village of Mineola
NCD.PW.
N.CD.PW.
N.C.D.P.W,

Town of Smithtewn
Amerioan Traffic Solutions
City of Long Beach
MN.CDPW,

Town of Oyster Bay
N.CD.E.W.

Miso Maint Contracts
Lump Sums and T&M

N.CDPW.

Town of Riverhead
N.CD.P.W,

Parmingdale State College
Farmingdale State College
N.C.D.P.W,
Shorgham-Wading River 5D
MN.Y.8.0.G5

8.CDP.W

07/15/2016

Con5102
H6200001E

PIN (758.86
PRE 13-109
D262580

DPW 1-2014

T6225002M
H62161
POPW 15000362
15-062

H62564
DP13-129
H62000-03E

835121018
E
835121-D1E
2015-15
2015-06
B93343-018
15-210 EC-1
DA4561-E
DEW 3063

Garage

Warehouse

Roadway Lighting Maint
T.5. Maint Telemetry
8,L. Maintenance

Storm Restoration/Damage Assessment
Sunrise Hwy Lighting System Rehab
Park Fleotrical Service Roquitements
Traffic Signal & Lighting Requirements

&.L. Maint & Inst
5.L. Maintehance
T.8, Maint & Inst
OC Rd Traffic Signals Phass 1

Athletic Lig Uparades Mitchel Park Baseball
Inst Energy Efficlent Lighting

Red Light Camera

Neptune Blvd 8L Improv (Novelli)
Inctdent Management Fhase [V

Syosset Fire Dept T.S, Inst

T.8, Systemn Operations Ph IV

Villages, Towns & Private
Villages, Towns & Private

Industrial Division

Bay Park Settling Tank Rehabilitation
Wastewater Treatment TMDL Upgrade
Bay Parl LCS-43011 CO (Primeor Const)
Dewey Hall Electrical Upgrades
Service Bldg Renovations (Fidele)
Power Drops for Voling Machines

Athletic Fiald

NYS Police Zoue Headquarters
Probation Bldg Restroom Alterations

Start
Date

OIS

01/01/15
01/01/15
01/26/12
06/10/13
04/01/13
01/01/14
01/02/14
03/19/14
06/12/14
07/16/14
09/01/14
01701115
03/01/16
07/23115
01/21/16
12415415
05/01116
07/01/16
07/01116
07/01/16
01/01415
01/04/15

10/28/13
02/24/14
09/12/714
06/15/15
02/01/16
06/29/16
03/28/16
06/10/16
06/22{16

Original

Comp Comp

Date Date
I TTTIZBTE
12/31/16  12/31/16
12/31116  12/31/16
01f25/14 012517
06/09/16 0713116
03/31/14  07/01/16
1231116 12731716
11/06/15  ©7127/16
03/18/15  03/10/17
12/04/15  09/30/16
07/16/17  07/16/17
083117 083117
123116 12131716
08/3117  08/31/17
110115 01/31/16
11/08/16  11/08/16
12031716 12/31/16
09/30/16  05/30/16
06/30/17  06/30/17
08/31/16  08/31/16
06/30/18  06/30/18
12/31/16 12431116
12/31/16 12/31/16
1072715 10/27/16
02/24/16  ©8/31/16
10/01/15  03/3116
1A1s  03/15/16
0511416 05/11/16
10/29/16 10/26/16
09/12/16 09/12/16
01/1118 011118
09/29/16  09/29/16
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c. ever been declared a non-responsibleg bidder by any

nund-edpality—or—public.agency? /]

If so: identify the project, the owner, the contracht amoufit,
the circumstances and the date of all such declarations

d. ever been barred from bidding municipal or public
contracts? I
If so; identify the municipality or public agency, the
circumstances, date and term of disbarment for all debarments.

{use additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

6. Has any officer, partiner or principal of your firm ewver been on
officer, partner or principal of some other firm:

a. that failed to complete a constructlon contract? ND
If so, state name of individual and identify the name of firm,
the project, the owner, the contract amount, the circumstances
and tne date of all such failures to complete for all
principals of the firm.

b. that has ever been defaulted on a contract?
If so; state the name of the individual and identify the
name of the firm, the project, the owner, the contract amount,
the circumstances and the date of all default actions for all
principals of the flrm.

¢. that has ever been declared a non-responsible bidder by any
municipality or public agency? .
Tf so; state the name of the individual and identify the name
of the firm, the project, the owner, the contract amount, the
circumstances and the date of all such declarations for all
principals of the firm. '

- 77 of 316 Contract No. Tg2280-03
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d. that has ever been barred from bidding municipal or public

10,

gomtractes?——Np

If so; stateé the name of the individual and identify the name
of the firm, the municipality or public agency, the
circumstances, date and term of debarment for all debarments
for all principals of the firm.

(use additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

Has any officer or partner of your firm ever falled to complete a
construction contract handled in his name? /]
If a0, state name of individual, name of owner and reason therefor:

Disclose any and all violations of the Prevaliling Wage and
supplemental Payment Requirements of the Labor Law of New York

state. b{Op(G

Disclose any and all other Tabor Taw Violations, including, but not
1imited to, child labox violations, failure to pay wages, OT

unenployment insurance tax delinguencies within the past five years.

r( o€

In what other lines of husiness are you financially interasted?

?(Ul{é. \{6&.6%0& (AR A A QuM’. of L. 18 I\"c('d'uu;‘ g wilet> SuBsmaey o
Ertok boud, e
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11. What ig the construction experience of the principal individuals
of your f£irm?
Pregent Years of Magnitude In
Individual's rosition or Construction and type what semen ;
Nane Qffice Experience of work Capacity i
AO‘EEM 7. Ft.oauo ﬂlﬁénbﬁm/c.ﬁ.o. ZI? Ye1es Gmcﬁkf&d&f P QNN&G/H&HT' )
H¥1

O 7 eugre hoer g Brsoanr 22 Yanos it it
"B\sz I::Eh‘r\ hasr Gect fhose fhansunan 29 Yeans " Coees Mo T

osgth Fandey SuferraibaiT Jo Yenss " £ certitn| St

(use additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

12.

List below the equipment that you own that is avallable for the

proposed Work, giving present lecation where it may be inspected:

Years of Present

Description, Size
Service

Capacity, Year, etc.

Item

Seé ﬂn'rae,m:ﬂf # y»

Location

(use additional plank sheets if additional space is necessary)

NOTE
the submltted hereby agrees upon
the new locatlon where same Nay be found.

13. If any of the above squipment is covered by

conditional bill of sale, lien,

and address of the holder, etc.

U

(ﬁse additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

Gontract No, T62250-03
NG Traffic Signal Malntenance Sr%@c‘ﬁl%ti

81 0f 316
proposal DEW

or like encumbranae,
complete details as to nature and amount of encumbrance,

ghould the equipment be moved from the above mentioned location,
request of the County to state

chattel martgadge,

state the
the name
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Vehicle #

Equipment and Vehicle List

Desctiption

2

2002 FORD PICK, RD

07/19/2018

-~ ™ B &

14
15
18
17
18
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
31
32
33
35
a7
39
A0
44
42
43
44
45
48
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54

1698 MITSU FLAT, WH
1989 FORD PICK, BLK
1987 FORD SUBN, WH
1997 FORD VAN, WH
2004 FORD VAN, WH
1990 INTER VAN, WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2001 FREIG UTIL, WH
2000 FCRD UTIL, WH
1985 INTER UTIL, WH
1897 BMC UTIL, WH
2001 FORD VAN, WH
1997 FORD VAN, WH
1997 FORD VAN, W
1967 FORD VAN, WH
1988 INTER FLAT, WH
1988 INTER FLAT, WH
1982 FORD PIGK, WH
1692 FORD VAN, WH
2002 FORD UTIL, WH
1999 FORD UTIL, WH
1956 FORD UTIL, WH
2002 FORD VAN, WH
1897 FORD VAN, WH
2003 FORD VAN, WH
2010 FORD VAN, WH
2004 FORD UTIL, WH
1990 INTER UTIL, WH
2002 FORD VAN, WH
1998 GMC UTIL, WH
2008 INTER FLAT, WH
1597 FORD VAN, WH
1997 FORD VAN, WH
2001 FREIG UTIL, WH
2002 FORD SUBN, WH
1992 FORD PICK, BY
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
1997 FORD FLAT, WH
1997 FORD VAN, WH

Page 1 of 3
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Vehicle #

Equipment and Vehicle List

Descilption

.56

1995 GMC DUMP, WH

0711912016

58
60
63
85
86
67
68
70
72
73
74
7%
78
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
68
87
89
a0
94
92
83
24
98
96
97
08
99
102
103
104
106
106
108

1995 INTER UTIL, WH
1997 FORD FLAT, WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2001 FORD VAN, WH
2001 FORD VAN, WH
2000 FORD VAN, ‘WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2003 MITSU DELY, WH
2002 FORD SUBN, WH
2001 FORD VAN, WH
1998 WE/CA TRLR, WH
1999 FORD VAN, WH
1995 FORD FLAT, WH
2000 FORD VAN, WH
2004 FORD FLAT, WH
1997 FORD SUBN, WH
1983 GUSTO FLAT, YW
2003 FORD VAN, WH
2004 FORD VAN, WH
2001 GMC UTIL, WH
2008 FORD UTIL, WH
1997 FORD UTIL, WH
1997 FORD UTIL, WH
1998 INTER UTIL, WH
2004 FORD VAN, WH
2000 GMC UTIL, WH
1999 FORD UTIL, BK
1999 INTER UTIL, WH
2001 INTER UTIL, WH
2001 INTER UTIL, WH
1992 GMC RBM, WH
2001 INTER UTIL,, WH
1697 INTER UTIL, WH
1684 FORD UTIL, WH
2000 FORD PICK, WH
1997 FORD DUMP, WH
1997 FORD: DUMP, WH
1997 FORD DUMP, WH
2001 INTER UTH., WH
1988 CURT! FLAT, YW
2000 TO/MBR TRLR, BK

Page 2 of 3

WEL.SBACH ELECTRIC CORP. of L.1.

Vehlcle ID #
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[ U S ——)

WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. of L.I.

Equipment and Vehicle List

0719/2016

Veahicle # Dascription
110 1999 FRHT UTIL, WH
142 1966 TRUCO TRLR,YW i
115 1998 FORD VAN, WH
117 2000 FORD VAN, WH
118 2001 INTER UTIL, WH
119 9008 FORD UTIL, WH
120 1980 BELSH FLAT, YW
121 2006 JTC TRLR, WH
122 1988 CURTILTRL, YW
123 2000 SHERM TRLR, YW
124 2006 JTCS TRLR, NO CL
125 2001 INTER UTIL, WH
126 1994 FORD UTIL, YW
128 1999 INTER T/CR, WH
129 2001 INT UTIL, WH
130 2006 FORD VAN, WH
131 2008 FORD VAN, WH
132 2008 FORD VAN, WH
134 2002 FORD VAN, WH
135 2004 FORD VAN, WH
150 2004 FORD VAN, WH
180 2001 FORD 4D8D, GL
163 2001 FORD PICK, GR
170 1985 BUTLE FLAT, YW
171 1992 CUSTO TRLR, OR
177 2003 FORD VAN, WH
178 2003 FORD YAN, WH
179 2003 FORD VAN, WH
186 2012 FORD SUEN, BK
187 9014 FORD SUBN, GY
188 2014 FORD SUBN, WH

Page 3 of 3
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14, In what manner have you inspected this proposed work?
Explain in detail.

{ .
e CuLuﬁvd'_Hﬂﬁm‘W&ﬁﬂu—'rmaaﬂf’uwMHmpﬁ-m(Mw_&mAm UNDER—

WiZooon € o Ah225002M,

{use additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

15, Explain your plan and lay-out for performing the proposed work.

b Yot 1 e Dorts 1 Aeeotwpite ™ THe Cornatn Dotsmatts > e LT
St ibcrnos Newped ot MALBE o THE { prériatrots

16. Tf a contract ils awarded or a permit is issued, to your firm, who
will have the perscnal supervision of the work? Attach resume.
Ao B Troiva ufon Avikep
7. Tnsurance carried by your firm:
Type Company Limits of Coverage Term

See hrrpmiaec™3
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANGE oY)

_THIS_GERTIFIGATE 18 ISBUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
GERTIFICATE DOEE NOT AF-FIRMATIVELY_ﬁ'ﬂ_NEGATlVEEY‘AMEND;‘EXTEND‘OR'“AI."TF_R-’FHEwGOVERAGEuAEEORDED.;E!.‘LIHEMRQLIQIE.-‘j.._.._
BELOW, THIS CERTIMCATE DF INSURANGCE DOES HOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISBUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR FRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFIGATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANTY if the certiticate halder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tha polivy(tea) must be endorsed, jf BUBRDGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to
the tatms and conditions of the policy, certaln policles may raqulra an endorasmant, A statement on this cartificate does not confar rights to the
gortificate halder In Heu of such endnrsemant{a).

PRODUCER CONTAGT -
MARSH USA, INC. ﬂ,%': | fﬁx
1488 AVENUEOF THE AMERICAS Hih - e, ol
NEW YORK, NY {10034 ENMAL o
At Emoor, Certrequasl@marsh.com | Fax; 203-226-8757 -
INSURER{S] AFEORDING COVERAGE NAIG #
134379-Welsb-COM-15-18 418 IsuRer, s ; Saninanis) Casualty Gompany 20143
JMSLRED \JELSBACH ELECTRIG CORP, OF L. | Instmim B 1 Amerloan Casualty Company Of Reeding, Pa 20027
300 NEWTOWN ROAT WolRER 6 1 Transgortalion Insurarce Co 20494
PLAINVIEN, NY 11808 INBURER D 1
IMSURER I
INSURERF ! . .
COYERAGES GERTIFICATE NUMBER! NYC-007137 208-03 REVISION NUMBER: 1

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUBANGE LIBTED BELOW HAVE BEEN |BSUED 1O THE YEINGD NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLIGY PERIOD
[MDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT ORJOTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT 0 WHICH T8
CERTIHFICATE MAY BE [SSUED CR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANGE AFFORNED BY THE POLIGIE: CRINED HEEEIN IS SUBJEGT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS CF SUCH POLIGIES, EIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY P2 A\ y

LIMITS

TR TYFE OF INFURANGE R POLIGY NUMEER i

A | ¥ | GOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (L 4025756481 G V H OGUURRENCE $ 2,000,000
| oLawmawiae OCCUR ‘ T $ 1,000,000
Lo MED EXP (Any one purion) 1 8 25,000
] PERSONALE ADY INJURY | § 2,000,000
EN'L AGGREGATH LIWIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGOREGATE |8 5,000,000
poey [ X588 [_Jwea PRODUGTS » GOMPIOP AGG | 3. 14,000,000

OTHER: RIS L.
A nurop:cmiie LIABILITY BUA 4026755492 1 5 [i00HA016 Mﬁﬁm WE;”EINOLF- LML [y 2,000,000

E ANTAUTD BODILY INJURY {Par person) | §

[ Akgn=n [ ] SGHERULED ' BODILY INJURY {Por gcaldent | 4

| X | Hirep aUTOS ATeRIED . . . i}'ﬁ?ﬂumt{f; ACE $
] : n Auto Phislosl Damage 4 fnoluded
{ A [ % | umMBRELLALIAB | X | opcun . 0016 [TR1ENE | sacH ogoURRENGE 5 £,000,000
HXOESS LIAR GLATME-MADE, ’ —t | AGBREGATE & §,000,000

X 3

B 'w; Enfa?s lml.;'?ﬂfﬁé’u“ N3 1000 T, G D L (L X 155%5“,5 S *
B | P RARTNETEECUTIVE N (750304 (A) 102016 |10ONIHE | ), eacH AnCIDENT $ 1,000,000
T i ST (A2, OR, W) jrizois | 1UBHENE - oy prehss i FHPLOTED 5. 3,000,000
5&%‘35?5??3?1 O SpeRATIONS below £ DISEASE - FOLIGY UMIT | $- 1,000,000

i VY

| RE WEE JOB #513 - NASSAU COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGHAL MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT #182250-024

DESCAIPTION OF DPERATIONS | LOGATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 104, Add|tional Romarks Sehodule, may lie attashad if wero spaca ba reqi Irod}

AODITIONAL IMSURED UNDER ALL POLICIES [EXCEPT WORKERS QOMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS LIABILITY) WHERE REQUIRED BY CONTRAGT: THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ALL MUNIGIFALITIES,
MUNICIPAL BUB-DIVISIONS, FEE OWRERS OF PROPERTIES B CONBULTANTS

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
COUNTY OF NASSAU EHOULD ANY OF THE ABOYE DESCRIBED FOLICIES BE-CANGELLED BEFORE
HUREAU OF REAL BSTATE & INEURANGE THE EXPIRATION PATE THERECF, NOWCE WL BE DELWERED IN
ONE WEST STREET AGCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY FROVISIONS,
MINEDLA, Y 11501
AUTHORIZED REPRESEHTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.
l Held!| Banarmelater AT B ELEL LA PO
) ©1086-2014 ACORD CORPORATION, Al rights reserved.
AGORD 25 (2014/01) The AGORD name and loge are repistered marks of AGORD

" ATTACHMENT #3






18.

The undersigned hereby declares: That the foregoing information
contained in this bid is a true statement, including, but not

1imited to, the financial condition of the individual firm herein
first named as of the date herein given; the undersigned has read

Proposal DEW NCTmmc&mmmmMmmmﬁﬁgﬁc

that*poxtien~o£~the~instquLiQns_Lp the Bidders entitled

vgualifications and Responsibility of Bidders" and that the
bidder acknowledges 1its affirmative obligation to transmit with
this statement any matters relevant and material to those
contractor qualifications and responsibility standards; that this
statement is for the express purpose of inducing the party to
whom it iz submitted to award the submitted a contract or
igssuance of a permit; that any depository, vendor or other agency
nerein named is authorized to supply such party with any
informatlion necessary to verify this statement; and that it
understands and agrees that any material misrepresentation or
omission of material fact may be deemed grounds for
disqualificatlon of the biddsr as "not respongible, " and may also
subject the bldder to future debarment, penalties, and sanctions,

fo the extent permitted by law.

{ggééh&'a (imaAo
Vies watr/L.6.9.

Suut 18, 201

#6 of 315 Contract Ne T(tL’!ZSﬁ-%PiIl
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NOTE: The bids shall be sworn to by the person signing them, in cne
of the following forms:

{Form of affidavit where Bidder is a corporatlon)
e g RO NEW- Y ORK—

)
)gs.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU )

_Bosé?ﬂ . Foato
That ne resideg at
in the City of

\Wews i sletruce fongs 96 L -
the corporation described in and which executed the £foregoing
instrument; that he knows +the gseal of said corporation; that the seal
affixed to the said instrument {g such corporate seal and was affixed
by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation; that he signed
his name thereto by like order; and fthat he has knowledge of the
several matters therein stated and they are in all respects true.
qubscribed and sworn to before m

this |f¢ day of ja.uf 20 e . /L/

Belng duly sworn, deposes and says:

Street,
that he is the?ww?wam’]cib of

Notazry
PARLENE KUMMER
' s i e
f pffidavit where Bi is - i 0, 0
OF NEW ormy° affidavit where Bidder is & TIXM)  quuiedin SuffolC
Vo8, Coenmisgion Explies A 4, 2018
COUNTY NASSAU )
Being duly sworn, deposes an
That he is a m er of

the firm descril in and which executed the foregoling
duly subscribed thesname of the firm hereunto on beha of the firm;
and that the several tters therein stated are in
subscribed and sworn to
this day of

Notary

(Form of Affidavit

STATE OF NEW YORK }
yss.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU )

er is an individual)

___ Being duly sworf; deposes and says:
That he is the “son described in and who executed he foregoing bid
and that the séveral matters therein stated ave in all\respects true.
qubscribed #hd sworn to before me
, 20

Notary

87 of 315 Contract No, T622560-03M
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MacBride_Eair Employment Principles

NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT IN NORTHERN IRELAND:
MAGERIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES
In accordance with Chapter 807 of the Laws of 1992 the biddet, by submission of this
bid, certifies that it or any individual or legal entity in which the bidder holds a 10% or
greater ownership interest, or any individual or legal entity that holds a 10% or greater
ownership interest In the bidder, either: (answer yes or no to one or both of the following,

as applicable),
(1) havs business operations in Northem ireland,

Yes __ No _X_

{2) shall take lawful steps in good faitn to conduct any business operations they
have in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment
Principtes relating to nondiscrimination in employment and freedom of
workplace opportunity regarding such operations in Northern Ireland, and
shall permit iIndependent monltoring of their compliance with such Principles.

if yes

Yes No

p———r T —

Wewspion euzeraie Conp o7 LT -
{Name of Business} !

(Coftractor’s Signatﬁre)
) ,\cﬂaﬂ-{ 7. feewme, wf;me:t‘r/c.go.
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IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT - CERTIFICATION

VRS LVIEN L A L o e S ed 22l

Pursuant to New York State Finance Law §165-a, Iran Divestinent Actof 2012, the Office of General
Services is required to post on its web site http:/!www.ogs.ny.gov/about/regs/dﬂcs/[istofEntities.pdf a
list of persons who have been determined to engage in invesiment activities in Iran (“the List™), as
defined in that Act, Under Public Authorities Law § 2879-c, Tranian Bnergy Sector Divestment, the
Authotity, may ot enter into or award a Contract unless it obtains a certification from a Bidder, who
shall check the box and make the certification in Subparagraph a, below, that they are not on the List.
I that certification cannot be made, fhe Auihority may consider entering into & Contract, ona case by
case basis if the Bidder checks the box ard makes the certification in Subparagraph b, below, that their
Iran investment is ceasing.

For purposes of this provision, a person cagages in investment activitles in Jran if: (A) the person
provides goods or setvices of twenty miltion dollars or more in the energy sector of Iran, including a
person that provides oil or liquefied natural gas tankers, or products used to construct or maintain
pipelines used 1o teansport oil or liquefied natural gas, for the energy sector of Iran; or {B) the person
is g financial institution that extends twenty million dollars ot mote in credit to another person, for
forty-five days ot more, if that person wili nse the credit to provide goods or services in the energy
sector in Iran,

The Certification ig as follows:

a. Certification that the Bidder is not on the Liist: Bach person, where person
means natural person, corporation, company, limited lisbility company, business
assoclation, parinership society, trust, or any other nongovernmental entity,
organization, ot group, and cach person signing o behalf of any other party,
certifies, and in the case of a joint bid or proposal or partnership each party thereto
certifies as to its own organization, under ponalty of pejury, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief that each person is noton the list created pursuant to paragraph
(b) of subdivision 3 of saction 165-a of the State Finance Law, ot,

b. Certification that the Bidder’s investment in Iran is ceasing: The person

_ cannot make the certification in Subparagraph 8, above, but asks the Authority to
consider them for award of the Contract by certifying, undet penalty of perjury, that
the person’s investment activities in Iran were made before April 12, 2012; the
person’s investment activities in Iran have not been cxpanded or renewed after April
12, 2012; and tho person has adopted, publicized and is implementing a formal plan
to cease its investment activities in Tran and to refrain from engaging in any new
javestments in Iran.

WM}W}M& AT ,'?m.mn[{c.e:o.

Signature/Date Print Name and Position
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1.8, DEPARTMENT OF JUBTIGE |
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

Cartification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(8ub-Reclpient}

This certificetion 18 required by the regulations Implementing Exetullve Order 12549, Dabarment
and Suspension, 28 CER Part 87, Sectlor; 67,610, Particlpants’ respansiblities. The regulaions
wera published as Parl VIl of the May 28, 1988 Federal Register (pages 16160-19214).
{BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUGTIQONE ON REVERSE)

{1) The prospestivé lower tier parficipant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that nelther it
nor Its principals are presently debarred, suspshded, proposed for debarment, daclaratd
eligible, or voluntarly excluded from paricipation In this transaction by any Faderal
department of agenacy.

(2) Where the prospective lower {isr paticipant ls unable to certlfy ta any of the statements in
this certliication, such praspective participant shall attach an explanation to thls proposal,

,.\o-‘y@ﬂ{ Y. oo '\OMEG |O€r¢*r/ﬁ.6",0.

Name and Tile of Authorized Rapresentative | ol
W 0% f‘{/ﬂﬂ (A

Signature -~ Pata

\J\zwmw puEtTUl COMJ. o LT
Name of Organlzation '

200 NaWpwd foid ?wsr(/mf, Wy 1103

Address of Organization |

e I FORM 406111 (REY. 2i8d) Previcus edlifions ara obsolate

03 of 316 Coritract No. T82250-03M
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Insfructions for Certiflcation

1. By slgning and submitiing this propusal, the prospeciive lower fier paticlpant 1s providing the
certification set out below,

2. The certification In this clause is a materlal representation of fact upon which reltance was placed when
this transaction was entered into. If it is latar determined thet the prospective lower ter partlcipant
knowlhgly rendered an erroneocus certification, in additon to other remedies avgilable to the Federal

Government, the departmant or agency whh which this transaction originated may pursue avallable
retnedies, including suspension andfor debarment.

3. The prospactive lowasr Her participant shall provide immediate wrltten notiee to the persen to which this
propesal Is submitted If at any fime the prospective lower tlar partiolpant laams that Its corlification was
arrongous when submiited or has become srroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4. The terms "covered transaction,” “debared," "suspended," “Ineligitsie,™ "lower tler covared {ransaction,”
"participant,” "person," "primary coverad transaction,” "principal," “proposes,” and "voluntarlly excluded," as

used in thls clavse, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and Coverage seatlons of rulas
Implementing Executive Order 12649, :

§. Tha prospective lower tler participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter lnto any lower tler covered fransaction with
a person who |s debarred, suspended, declared ineliglble, or voluntarlly exclided from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction criginated.

8. The prospective lower Her participant further agrees by submiiting this. progosal that it will includs the
olausa fitled, "Cetfification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, mellglbility and Voluntary Excluslon — Lowé;ﬁ"j
Tler Cavered Transaction," without modiflcation tn all lower teér covered transactions and in all rso.licitatlong"
for lower tier covered transactions, B

L

7. A partlclpant In a covered transaation may rely upon a cettification of a prospeciive participant in a lower
tier coverad fransaction that i Iy not debarred, suspended, Ineligble, or voluntarily exciuded from tha

covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is arroncous. A particlpart may declde the. .

method and frequency by which it detarmines the ellgibllity-of Its principals. Each participart may chaok the
Nonprocurement List, .

8. Nothlng contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of & system of rapotts in
“order to render In goad falth the cartification required by this clause, The knowledge and Information of a

particioant Is not required to exceed that which is normally posseased by & prudent person In the ordinary
course of buslness deallngs,

9. Except for transactions-authorlzed under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, 1f & particlpant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tlor covered transaction with a person who lg suspended,
debarred, nelighle, or voluntary excluded from participation In this transaction, In addition fo other
remadles avallable to the Federal Govertiment, the department or agency with which thla transaction
originated may pursue avaliable remedies, including suspension anci/er debarment.
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